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Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Joint Committee on Government and Finance submits this report on studies and other
matters it authorized to be made between the 2006 and2007 regular sessions of the Legislature.

A. The Joint Committee on Government and Finance authorized the followine
subcommittees:

l. Agriculture and Agri-business Committee
2. Insurance Availability and Medical Malpractice Insurance Committee
3. Joint Committee on Technology
4. Legislative Intern Committee
5. Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Subcommittee
6. Post Audits Subcommittee

B. The Joint Committee on Government and Finance received reports from the following:

t.
2.
a

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

Agriculture and Agri-business Committee
Education Subcommittee A - Public Education
Education Subcommittee B - No Child Left Behind
Education Subcommittee C - School Aid Formula
Joint Standing Committee on Finance
Insurance Availability and Medical Malpractice Insurance Committee
Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Subcommittee
Joint Standing Committee on Pensions and Retirement
Select Committee A - Committee on Children. Juveniles and other Issues
Select Committee B - Minority Issues
Select Committee C - Infrastructure
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C. The Joint Committee on Government and Finance received statutorily required reports
from the following:

1. Joint Commission on Economic Development
2. Forest Management Review Commission
3. Legislative Oversight Commission on Health and Human Resources
4. Commission on Interstate Cooperation

D. The Joint Committee on Government and Finance assigned studies to its subcommittees
and to statutory committees/commissions as follows:

l. Agriculture and Agri-business Committee

Voluntary farmland protection programs

Legislative Oversight Commission on Education Accountability

Vocational, technical and adult education
Monitoring implementation of the Pilot Program of Structured In-School

Alternatives to enforce the Student Code of Conduct

Legislative Oversight Commission on Health and Human Resources
Accountability

State of emergency medicine in West Virginia
Need for and the appropriate methodology for providing salary improvements

for counselors employed by the Division of Rehabilitation Services
Prospect of reducing medical care costs for state employees
Public health crisis created in West Virginia created by antibiotic resistance
Relating to the study ofthe feasibility of establishing a drug repository progftrm
Medicaid Waiver Program for the elderly and people with disabilities in West

Virginia
"Money follows the person" concept

Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Subcommittee

Development of Coalwood Way and related sites in the Big Creek District of
McDowell County as historical, cultural and recreational facilities

Select Committee A - Committee on Children. Juveniles. and other Issues

Child Advocacy center criteria
Accessible parking issues

2.

a
J.
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5. Select Committee C - Infrastructure

Feasibility of a state dam safety rehabilitation fund
Availability and connectivity of broadband services and networks in this state

Technology infrastructure development

E. The Joint Committee on Government and Finance referred adopted study resolutions
and other areas of study as listed below to the following standing committees it
authorized to meet between the 2006 and2007 regular sessions of the Legislature:

L Joint Standing Committee on Education

Subcommittee A - Public Education
Public school dress code and uniforms
Employment process of public school coaches
Need for an appropriate methodology for providing salary improvements for

counselors employed by the Division of Rehabilitation Services

Subcommittee B - No Child Left Behind
Cost and other issues associated with No Child Left Behind Act

Subcommittee C - School Aid Formula
School aid formula

Joint Standing Committee on Finance

Subcommittee A
Vehicle privilege tax exemption for new residents

Subcommittee B
Issue of tax reform and any proposals put forth by the Govemor on the subject

Subcommittee C
Cunent and future highway financing

Joint Standing Committee on Government Organization

Subcommittee A
Titling and branding of certain damaged vehicles
All-tenain vehicle safety regulations

Subcommittee B
Need for background checks for professional licensees
Sunrise and sunset legislation processes

Subcommittee C
State grievance procedures

J.
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4. Joint Standing Committee on the Judiciary

Subcommittee A
How the divorce and custody laws prevent or hinder fathers from being

involved in raising their children
Retail sales of alcoholic beverages on Sunday
Methadone clinic regulation

Subcommittee B
The process of granting and denying well work permits for the drilling of gas

wells near active coal mines
Underground Storage Tank Insurance Fund
Refundable deposit on beverage containers
Ownership of coal bed methane and responsibility for damages resulting

therefrom
Impact on ground water aquifers caused by injection of coal sludge into

abandoned undersround mines

G. The Joint Committee on Government and Finance also received monthly and quarterly

status reports on the following:

Lottery
State's General Revenue Fund
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund
Public Employees Insurance Agency
Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Children's Health Insurance Program
Leasing Report, Department of Administration
Department of Health and Human Resources

Medicaid
Welfare
Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Board of Treasury Investments

Post audit reports released by the Post Audits Subcommittee are on file in the Post Audit
Division of the Legislative Auditor's Office. Other reports are on file in the Legislative Manager's
Office.
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Respectfu lly submitted,

Speaker of the House of Delegates

Cochairs, Joint Committee on
Govemment and Finance

Earl Rav'Tomblin
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January 9,2007 - TaPe

(First part of meeting missed on tape""Marlene staffed)

Ferguson: people aren't going to the doctors often, which is a plus' Now' the flip side to that is

the drug side. Drugs are up 8 million dollars higher than they were last year which is about

almost lfo/ohigherand of course the reason forlhat is two-fold' One is price and the other is

utilization. Quite frankly people are following the diagnoses from their doctors, we are getting

better use of drugs and that is probably the rea=son why our medical expenses are down'

Revenues over expenses to daie are 5l million dollars for the period, July through November'

we still have 7 months to go which will deplete that down and whatever excess is reft over that

period will go into the r.r*.. Our new pt* ttut been adopted, there are no increases in

premiums for state employers, (?) Emploiers, or state-empioyees or retirees' Actually retirees

will see a premium r"d.rriiorr. There was also a benefit revisions that were passed and the

MAPD wiil also help with our program' Any questions on PEIA?

President Tomblin: Senator Deem

senator Deem: You said that the premiums were down on retirees and yet that is where the

biggest deficit is coming from I understand. You made some changes though' didn't you that the

government will pick.ri ,o*. of that expense that the state has been picking up?

Ferguson: That is correct sir'

senator Deem: why, I always wonder when I go to theDoctor whether?EIA, which my wife is a

retired teacher, o, *y medicare is primary. If lou can do that now why isn't that been done a

long time ago?

Ferguson: I am gonna ask red to come up but Ted cheatham is the director of PEIA and I'll let

him answer that question. I think it is important to note on the reduction in premiums' really

what you should be focusing on is the maximum out of pocket cost' We are now

charging...before a retiree wourd go to the doctor riterally wourd cost them nothing, now there is

co-pays charged. The intent there is to make sure that people ale afvare that there is an expense

incurred when we go to the doctor. we are not discouraging people from going to the doctor we

are actually making sure that people ale responsible for itt.li o*tt healthcare' As far as the

combination of the two I am going to let Ted answer that'

Senator Deem: Along that line, something that always bothered me was that with the drugs from

PEIA is I get drugs maybe two or tt r". oiru.r, drugs and they say well you owe $15 and I don't

have any idea how *,rih insurance paid on that. Would there be an easy way for people to get a

bill that would show what the state paid and what they paid, the individuals paid. cause they

don't do that now automatically at least'

Ferguson: Well I think in the explanation of benefits, well go ahead and I'll let you answer that

question.



Ted Cheatham: They do not get an explanation of benefits for drugs, you do not. You do get it
for medical. We could start that, there is an expense tied to that.

Senator Deem: Well I don't know if will be justified but it just seems to me that, you know
people say oh it didn't cost me anything and yet it did cost.

Ted Cheatham: Absolutely, absolutely.

Senator Deem: Would that be difficult or would it be benefit cost wise to do it?

Ted Cheatham: I don't think it would but I will look into it for you. I will look into it.

Senator Deem: I don't mean to make an issue out of it.

Ted Cheatham: Back to your original question. I might have misunderstood it but as it stands

today, PEIA coordinates with medicare for retirees so that there is almost 100% benefit today.

So when you go to the physician medicare pays first, PEIA then coordinates with medicare and

pays the balance typically. They are paid typically your co-pays or your co-insurance or anything

you would be responsible for under the plan.

Senator Deem: So if your, say I am past 65 a little bit and then medicare is primary and PEIA

picks up the difference.

Ted Cheatham: Yes, absolutely correct.

President Tomblin: Are the employees at80Yo right now?

Ted Cheatham: No sir. For the plan year beginning July l, which would by FY 2008. Under the

plan the employees will be at80/20.

President Tomblin: The only reason I asked was because I thought you said there was no

increases.

Ted Cheatham: That is correct, there is no planned increases for employers or employees for the

next plan year beginning July l. We are doing that with a financial transfer, which I will happily

explain to you in a lot of detail later, that will get us to 80/20 without a premium increase.

President Tomblin: You going to give us that anytime soon?

Ted Cheatham: I would happily give that to you today, if you'd like right now. In a short term

what we are proposing to do is take 34 - 38 million dollars of employer premium and put it into

the retiree trust fund. By doing that we have lowered the employer share by $38 million and if
the employees contribution stays the same we will hit the 50120 by ratio.

President Tomblin: Well that seems to me like the employee is not paying the 20 percent if the



state is paying the share of money they were supposed to be paying. What am I missing there?

Ted Cheatham: I can ask Jason to explain it better than I can, but that is the way and I will
happily if you'd like put it on paper for you.

President Tomblin: I mean if you are taking money now that is out of general revenue of
appropriations and putting it over.

Ted Cheatham: We are not taking revenue out of general appropriations. We are taking revenue

out of the future employer premium and diverting it to the retiree trust fund for the retiree

liability. So the employer in effect will be paying, although they are paying the same premium

they are paying today, some of that premium is being earmarked to move over to the trust fund.

So the part that is going to the active PEIA is slightly less and that will make the employees

paying 20 percent and the employer paying 80 percent for what is going into active PEIA fund.

Senator Sharpe: I didn't belong to PEIA but what do I have to do to belong to PEIA and what is

the expenses. I have other insurances, I don't know why I have never got on PEIA, I have been

on their life insurance and things like that. It seems like it is pretty advantageous to be on it. Can

you give me a little quick breakdown on what it takes to be in to PEIA.

Jason Haught: Members of the Committee, my name is Jason Haught, Chief Financial Officer,

PEIA. Senator Sharpe, to answer your question, the cost to a member of the legislature to

participate in the plan is, I believe, the pay range of a $36,000 to $42,000, I believe, added with
the employers cost of the plan. So if you're a

Senator Sharpe: I don't have an employer. You mean employer be the state or who would be my

employer.

Jason Haught: Wetl for a member of the legislature you have to pay the full premium. So you

have to pay both the employers share and the employees share.

Senator Sharpe: Are you going to change that any?

Jason Haught: No sir. There is no plans to.

Ferguson: Sir, we can get with you offline and get you what you need sir.

Senator Sharpe: You and I get along pretty good yesterday, let's continue doing that.

Ferguson: Yes sir.

Senator Sharpe: Thank you.

President Tomblin: Any further questions on PEIA? Next BRIM



Ferguson: I think there is a plan to brief the legislature, just with Mr. cheatham to kind of go

through the plan year. Essentially, and maybJl can saythis a little simplistically, but by moving

that money over to the trust fund it automaiically, the percentage that the e-mployees are paying'

automatically brings them by default to the 20Yowithout any movement of their change'

president Tomblin: Well is that one time money that you are moving over there to keep from the

employees having to make any additional payment

Ferguson: Perhaps but, we expect it to be ongoing because our medical trends are continuing to

go down. And, as our medical contends, we-figuteo on a worse case scenario than what we have'

Our medical trends now are now tracking two !t*' t'o*, if you look at those numbers we ale

going down. The graph is going the othJr way which *.*t that the excess funds go over which

automatically then takes the employees without making a move to 20 percent' we will give you

detailed numbers sir, we are actualiy working on a presentation to give to the joint legislature

about PEIA.

president Tomblin: ok, the reason I am going at this, I mean this will be one year and you are

taking money that is already within m. Jytt it to not raise the participants premium' IiTll1l
want to come back here rr."t y.u, and say oh you are 36-million dollars shgrt' you guys are gomg

to have to come up with it because *. ion't iuu. .nough to make the employers share' Can you

be sure that is not going to haPPen?

Ferguson: I am going to reserve that answer until l can show you the hard numbers' our

expectation is, you liro*, as the actuaries have looked at that, the likelihood of that occurring is

low but there are no absolutes with these numbers' I mean ifwe hit' if the pandemic flu hits and

we have to tap into our reserves. t ,nea'there are a lot of what if s that go into that equation but

apparently according to actuaries and the trend the odds are in our favor, significantly' That we

won't have to come back and adjust those numbers'

president Tomblin: well, let',s look at the other side of it. If we come back here next year and

there has been an increase in the expenditures over there, does that mean at that time you will

have to back to trre pattrcipants to urk fot mole money to get them up to their 20 percent of are

you going to ask for the general revenue to pay for it?

Jason Haught: Mr. President, Jason Haught again, what is going to happen-now as of July l'
2007,we are g0l10. Any increases that itt. pi* needs to the state fund will be $3 from the state

$1 from the employees. It will be on an 80f:0 ratio of any increases going forward'

Ferguson: But could it happen' I think is the question'

Jason Haught: AbsolutelY.

president Tomblin: So I mean if there are mor€ expenses this coming year, then automatically the

state is going to have to pay $3 and employees, everybody's share is going to have to go up'



Jason Haught: We will be at the 80120. Any increases will be at80120, yes sir. And there are,

the five year plan does anticipate health care cost to increase and unfortunately more increases to
the state budget.

President Tomblin: Further questions? Senator Sprouse.

Senator Sprouse: Thank you. It might be good maybe before the finance committees because I
think there is a really great story here to be told and from where PEIA was four years ago, I mean

three or four or five years ago where we were pouring money from general revenue into PEIA to
keep it propped up to where we are today. Especially if you are saying that it is coming from
utilization and intemal controls within PEIA that has helped lower those costs. I am interested to
see what is it, how have we made that change over four years because maybe we could do it
elsewhere. Because there is a significant change here in where PEIA was four years ago to where
it is today. Especially whenever we are talking about no increases and we are actually talking
about having enough money to move it over so that we can balance out the employee premiums.

I mean that to me is a very successful story. I am just interested in how it got there, what
components, what did you do, what did PEIA do that turned it. Maybe we could use it elsewhere

in state government. I mean that is areal success story if we are talking about being able to not
only having not to put general revenue funds in but talking about being able to ship money over

from the employer contribution to help balance out or help keep us from having to raise

employee premiums.

Ferguson: And we wi1lbe happy to do that, I can tell you off the cuff that the concerned

leadership of the legislature, I think put some pressure on us to take a look at the best practices.

Senator Sprouse: Legislators are concerned about medicaid, legislators are concemed about other

health care costs and we are not successful there. I mean I am just saying, there had to be some

mechanisms within PEIA that caused the shift, either the shift in utilization or the shift in, or the

change in just the process that allowed us to now be in this position and I am just interested in
what those changes were. I mean it is nice for you to say it is the legislature, likes of the

legislature is concerned about every health care cost and we are not doing a very good job
controlling it but PEIA is been a very great success.

Ferguson: And we will report back, I mean good disease management. We are hiring medical

directors, we have pharmaceutical people so we are taking very close look at it, taking a hard

look at drugs and generics and trying to right size and making sure that we are getting the best

economy of management on the pricing. But we will give you a more detailed answer.

President Tomblin: Senator Kessler did you have...

Senator Kessler: I just think it must be that good democrat leadership we have had around here

the last couple of years.

President Tomblin: Are there further questions on PEIA? If not, the BRIM report sir.



Ferguson: Yes sir, I have got next up CHIP is next but we can go. We are 2 Vz percent ovet
where we were ayear ago on enrollees. We currently have 25,573 enrollees. Our claim costs are

W 5% through November compared to last year. Don't really have an answer to why that is just
more utilization and we have got a bigger population to deal with. We are currently lt% under

budget for the first 5 months. Now that is contrary to what I just said but we have favorable

claim trends, but we still got a better part of the year to go. There was a question last time about

the poverty levels. At200% of the poverty level is $40,000 for a family of 4. At 220% which is

where we are going to go this year with poverty level is $44,000 for a family of 4. That is a

federal requirement.

President Tomblin: Further questions about BRIM?

Ferguson: CHIP

President Tomblin: CHIP I am sorry. If not, BRIM

Ferguson: Next up is the Board of Risk and Insurance Management. Again, our financial

position continues to improve. It really is kind of the center jam in the crown of Department of
Administration, I am extremely proud of Chuck and his people. We have had $11 million in

investment eamings this year as compared to $2.8 million last year. So our investments are

doing very, very well. We have no unfunded liabilities in the Board of Risk and Insurance

Management. However, our Senate Bill 3, and that is the political subdivisions continues to be

problematic. We are in the red there, but we have a plan through better loss control and premium

assessments to hopefully in the next ten year time period to break that down. We currently have

about $15 million liability with the Senate Bill 3 and again Senate Bill 3 is for the political

subdivision, boards of educationo towns and those things. We try to right size those premiums

based on historical losses but it continues to be a challenge.

President Tomblin: How many doctors do you still have in BRIM?

Chuck Jones: Mr. President, the question was how many physicians we have. The only
physicians we have in the program are the physicians that are WVU and Marshall and there are

probably 660 or something like that.

President Tomblin: What is the school of Osteopathic Medicine?

Chuck Jones: Yes sir, Osteopathy School as well.

President Tomblin: 600 and some?

Chuck Jones: Approximately 660 or 670 something like that.

President Tomblin: So all the rest of them that we moved over before they went over to
Physicians Mutual. Have you all looked at it or is there any advantage to moving the coverage

over to the Physicians Mutual? I mean obviously I read where they are lowering premiums and



so forth. Is there an advantage to the state I guess for doing that?

Chuck Jones: We honestly have not looked atthat, whether or not having the coverage for the
individual Physicians. Yet, we don't insure individual physician we insure the school per say.

Therefore, we don't write

President Tomblin: I mean it is the same bottom line, you axe insuring the physicians.

Chuck Jones: Yes. But I am saying to move, these are going to be employees of the school and

they will be insured by Physician Mutual. To answer your question, no we have not looked at
that and a matter of fact from what I understand the schools would like to insure themselves.

That is not something we have looked at.

President Tomblin: Well would it be worthwhile to look at? I don't know if there are these

savings there or not but I mean are we just going to carry them forever when we have gone

through the motions of creating a Physicians Mutual for the availability and hopefully the
affordability.

Chuck Jones: If you would like for us to look at it we will look at it from our perspective and see.

My response would be make sure that we protect the state and any liability we have for the state

and then whatever those physicians would take to the Physicians Mutual as an individual.

President Tomblin: Obviously I want to protect the state too but if you can protect it cheaper than
you are doing it now lets at least look at it. Any questions about BRIM? If not, thank you.

Ferguson: Last up sir is Leasing. We have had l0 changes during the month of December. We

have three new contracts, one is with the Insurance Commission subleasing out a piece of their
lease to Brickstreet, Department of Administration owns a building and subleasing some things
out to DHHR so all these within the confines of government are zero net gains. We also have

some cell tower leases that education has subleased some property out on. We have had four
straight renewals, one renewal with Conections with increase in square footage and two renewals

with rent increases, one for Regional Jail, one for a small office the Treasurer has up in
Morgantown.

President Tomblin: Questions on Leases? If not, thank you sir.

Ferguson: Thank you Mr. President, Mr. Speaker.

President Tomblin: Next we have the monthly report from Health and Human Resources, Mr.
Law.

John Law: Mr. President, I am John Law, the Medicaid report is in your packet if you have
questions Commissioner Adkins is here to answer.

President Tomblin: There is nothing you want to bring to our attention or anything?



John Law: No sir.

President Tomblin: Does anybody have any questions? Thank you sir. Next we will have the
monthly report from the Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council, Ms. Phares.

Shana Phares: I am Shana Phares, I am the Pharmaceutical Advocate for the Governor and also

the Chair for the Cost Management Council. As required by the statute we have given you our
annual report and I just want to share a couple of highlights from that with you. The Council has

worked with Concord University and Tygart Technologies. During the course of 2006 they were

commissioned by the Attorney General's Office to complete a study on electronic prescribing.

We also worked with the Board of Pharmacy on that issue. As required by statute the Council
has made a legislative recommendation to support and we would ask the Joint Committee to
support and pass legislation that would remove the statutory barriers to electronic prescribing.

WV is one of only four states that currently prohibit this practice and it offers immediate

significant savings for payers and also improves patient safety. In addition, also as required by
statute that the Council promulgated the advertising reporting rule in 2006 and on Sunday night
that rule was actually passed out of the Legislative Rule-Making Review Committee. During
2006 the Council, under it's authority to ? An organizations entered the Minnesota MultiState
Group which you have heard me talk about many times before. I talked to you last month that we

had just spoken to a local health association about enrolling local health departments and to date

we have 22 of the 54 County Health Departments that have applied for enrollment. We are going

to work aggressively to get the remainder enrolled in January (TAPE DID NOT PICK
UP....INTERFERENCE STARTS)

Shana (response to Sen Deem's question): I am actually working with Jim Pitrolo who is taking

over as director of policy and I will be doing all the health care and welfare work with Jim.

Senator Deem: You mentioned the Rule Making review added a rule, did that rule have to do

with drug companies cost and advertising and what they pay doctors for promoting their drugs?

Shana: Yes that is the rule.

Senator Deem: Exactlv what did that do?

Shana: What does that rule do? It requires the drug companies to report what they spend on
advertising in this state via television, newspaper and other print ads, via telephone. Requires

them to report the annual payments they make to doctors, annual payments they make to patient

advocacy groups and to pharmacies.

Senator Deem: Wasn't that abig controversy when Speaker Kiss was here and one of the things
he was trying to get your office to do and you didn't do it cause you didn't feel like it. I guess

you weren't in the position to do it but now will that information be forth coming?

Shana: Yes. If the legislature chooses to pass that rule then the companies will be required to
report it and it will be public information. The aggregate information will be public.



Senator Deem: Is that not until the legislature approves the rule.

Shana: That is correct.

Senator Deem: Thank you and good luck in your new job.

Shana: Thank you.

President Tomblin: Senator Kessler

Senator Kessler: Just to follow up with Senator Deem's question. You indicated that the

information will be available in aggregate so it will say 550,000 for physician payments but will
it or will it not list Dr. Jones, Dr. Smith each got $20,000 trips to the Bahamas and

Shana:No it would not name names.

Senator Kessler: It would not give individual identities or how much is spent on individual
doctors or what they comprised what those payment comprised what they are being for or are

they for lunches or dinners or seminars or teaching....there will be no breakdowtl just an

aggregate number.

Shana: Right.

Senator Kessler: That is something we may need to take a look at as well.

President Tomblin: What are you going to do to determine if you don't know who the Doctors

are just the net amount they have spent on docs?

Shana: We also require reporting by drug and I think it will give, especially Medicaid, an idea of
what is happening in the marketplace. They have felt that before, because they meet twice ayeat

to determine what drugs are put on the preferred drug list, and they have had some gut feelings

about what kind of marketing and sampling has gone on and how its influenced what ends up on

that preferred drug list, but they really don't know. People just really don't know how much is

being spent or what is being done. This just gives us our first snap shot of that.

President Tomblin: Are there further questions? If not, thank you. In your booklets you also

have the Board of Treasury Investments Report, the WVU Foundation, I am told this is the first
time they have done that since we have allowed them to do their own investments at WVU and

Marshall, Mental Health Parity Analysis Report for 2006. Is there any other business to come

before the Committee? If not, Delegate Thompson moves that we adjourn. All those in favor

will say I, Oppose no? The I's have it.



Tuesday, January 912007

3:00 pm - 4:00 pm

Senate
Tomblin, Chair
Chafin
Helmick
Kessler
Sharpe
Deem
Sprouse

JAI\UARY INTERIM ATTENDANCE
Legislative Interim Meetings

January 71 8 and 912007

Chair

Mahan
Michael
Staton
Hall
Trump

Joint Committee on Government and Finance

./ ..-. /
b 7Aarn4/r1'!'

/
k-7-
Z+

,/

I certiff that the attendance as noted above
is correct.

Anne Landgrebe

Please return to Brenda in Room 132-E or Fax to 347-4819 ASAP' due to payroll deadline.



Joint Committee on Govemment and Finance Meetine Checklist

Items for Booklet:

BRIM

CHIP

Lease Report

"/

l,'

/

/

/

/

"/

,/
V

Minutes (MAKE SURE THEY ARE APPROVED BY HOMBURG & AARON)

Reports Summary

Lottery

General Revenue

Unemployment Compensation

PEIA

^4rfurd r24r fir.n Al4 "tfrfir/,,',

Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council 'i ^

Board of Treasury Investments Report

,+* ,/ ,. /
Detailed Agenda for President, Speaker, Aaron, Homburg and File Copy

Shortened Agenda for Members 12 Copies - (#o'

Shortened Agenda for Public 30 Copies -b'"/

Requests from other committees (make sure motion is in detailed agenda and a
copy of the request on colored paper is in all booklets)

Call committee staff to check on reports or requests

Call offices that distribute monthly reports to determine who will be presenting
the report.

After meeting give Brenda, Donna, Judy schultz (Senate) and carolyn Epling
(House) a copy of the approved minutes.

-

-\/

4
Medicaid Report ft1o rrrtl



{r

(President Tomblin presides)

AGENDA
JOINT COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AIID F'INANCE

January 9,2007

3:00 - 4:00 p.m.

Approval of December 12.2006. minutes

Committee ReportslRequests :

The following committees submitted interim reports for 2006:

Senate Finance Room

l.

,

b.

d.

g.

h.

J.

k.

Agriculture & Agribusiness Committee (Senator Edgell and Delegate Stemple,
Cochairs)
Joint Commission on Economic Development (Senator McCabe and Delegate
Cann, Chochairs)
Education Subcommittee A - Public Education (Senator Edgell and Delegate
Williams, Cochairs)
Education Subcommittee B - No Child Left Behind (Senator Hunter and Delegate
Paxton, Cochairs)
Education Subcommittee C - School Aid Formula (Senator Plymale and Delegate
Campbell, Cochairs)
Joint Standing Committee on Finance (Senator Helmick and Delegate Michael,
Cochairs)
Forest Management Review Commission (Senator Helmick and Delegate Morgan,
Cochairs)
Legilsative oversight commission on Health and Human Resources
Accountability (Senator Prezioso and Delegate Leach, Cochairs)
fnsurance Availabilify & Medical Malpractice Insurance Subcommittee (Senator
Minard and Delegate Kominar, Cochairs)
Commission on Interstate Cooperation (Senator Jenkins and Delegate Caputo,
Cochairs)
Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Subcommittee (Senator Fanning,
Delegate Paxton and Delegate Richard Thompson, Chairs)
Joint Committee of Pensions and Retirement (Senator Foster and Delegate
Stalnaker, Cochairs)
Select Committee A - Children, Juveniles and Other Issues (Senator Prezioso and
Delegate Mahan, Cochairs)
Select Committee B - Minority Issues (Senator Hunter and Delegate Webster,
Cochairs)
select Committee C- Infrastructure (Senator Unger and Delegate Browning,
Cochairs)

n.
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6.

7.

8.

9.

Monthly/Ouarterly Reports Distribution:
Status Reports on the Lottery Commission, General Revenue Fund and Unemployment
Compensation Trust Fund

Monthly/Ouarterly Reports Distribution :

PEIA, BRIM, CHIP and Leases & Contracts Report -Rohert Ferguson, Jr., Secretary, Admin.

Monthly/Ouarterly Reports Distribution from Department of Health and Human
Resources:
Medicaid Report - Martha Walker, Secretary, DHHR

Monthly Report Distribution - Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council - Shana
Phares, Chair

Board of Treasury Investments Report Distribution

WVU Foundation - Dave Miller

Mental Health Paritv Analysis Report for 2006 - Tim Murphy, Associate Counsel and
Mark Wilson, Director of Insurance Research

Other Business

Adjournment

10.

ll.



AGENDA
JOINT COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AND FINANCE

January 912007

3:00 - 4:00 p.m.

Approval of December 12.206. minutes

Com mittee Reports/Requests

Monthly/Ouarterly Reports distribution
Lottery
General Revenue
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund
PEIA
BRIM
CHIP
Leases and Contracts
Medicaid Report
Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Board of Treasury Investments Report Distribution
WVU Foundation
Mental Health Parity Analysis Report for 2006

Other Business

Adiournment

Senate Finance Room

1.

)

3.

4.

J.
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December 12.2006

3:00 - 4:00 p.m.

Senate
Tomblin, Chair
Chafin (absent)

Helmick
Kessler
Sharpe (absent)

Deem
Sprouse

President Tomblin, Cochair, presided.

Joint Committee on Government and Finance

House
Kiss, Chair
Amores (absent)

Mahan
Michael
Staton
Hall (absent)

Trump

l. Approval of Minutes

Upon motion by Senator Deem, properly adopted, the minutes ofthe November 15,2006, meeting
were approved.

2. Committee ReportslRequests

Legislative Intern Committee - Jason Wazelle
Upon motion by Delegate Michael and properly adopted, the request for two additional intern

positions, not to exceed $10,400, for the 2007 Legislative Session, was authorized.

3. Lottery. General Revenue Reports. and Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund

Distributed to members of the Committee were the following: Lottery Financial report for the month
ended October 31, 2006; the General Revenue Fund status report as of November 30, 2006; and the
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund report for the month ended September 30, 2006, Distributed with
each of the reports were an analysis and a summary of the reports.

4. PEIA. BRIM and CHIP Reports

The following monthly PEIA reports were distributed: Monthly Management Report, Financial
Report, and Prescription Drug Report for October 2006. Ted Cheatham, Director, PEIA, said drugs are still
trending a little higher than last year. Revenues over expenses to date is $39 million.

The following BRIM reports were distributed: An unaudited balance sheet and unaudited income
statement for the period ending October 31,2006. Chuck Jones, Executive Director, BRIM, said the
financial position continues to improve. Investments are up and there is no unfunded liability.

The following reports from CHIP were distributed: A report of enrollment forNovember 2006 and
the financial statements for period ending October 3I,2006. Sharon Carte, Executive Director, CHIP, said
currently there is an enrollmentof 25,270 enrollees for November, which is an increase of 2.7Yo from over
ayear ago. The administrative costs are down aboutTYo.
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5. Leasing Renort. Department of Administration

A leasing report for November l, 2006, through December 4,2006, was distributed. Robert
Ferguson, Jr., Cabinet Secretary, Department of Administration, said there has been 25 changes for the
month with 11 new contracts, 9 straight renewals, 2 renewal adding some square footage and 3 renewals
with rent increases.

6. Departments of Heblth and Human Resources (DHHR) Monthly Report

A Welfare Reform report dated December 2006 was distributed which reflects WV Works cases
statewide and support services payments.

A Medicaid Report dated December 2006 was distributed.

7. Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council

A Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council handout was distributed. Shana Phares, Acting
Pharmaceutical Advocate and Chair ofthe Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council, reported on what the
Council has done during its existence.

8. Board of Treasury Investments Report Distribution

A Board of Treasury Investments Report dated October 2006 was distributed.

9. Interim Meeting Dates

The next interim meeting dates are January 7 - 9,2007.

The meeting was adjourned.
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WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE
Office of the Legislative Auditor

BudgetDivision
Building 7, Roam 332-West Wing
19AA Kanux,ha Blvd East
Charleston, WY 25305-0590

January 7,20A7

304-347-4870

Executive Summary of Lottery, Unemployment, General Revenue and State Road Fund
Reports to Joint Committee

Lottery Commission as of November30, 2ffi6:
Appears to be in good condition. Gross receipts for the months of July -November of fiscal

year 2006-2M7, were S 653.3 million; which was S.'I3aloabove the same months of fiscal year
2005-2006

General Revenue tr'und as of December 31, 2006:
Collections were at 106.9s% of the yearty estimate as of December 31,2006.

State Road Fund as of December 31r 2006:
Fund collections were at fi6.76Yiof the yearly estimate.

Unemployment Compensation Trust as of November30r 2006:
For the first five months of fiscal year 2006-2007,the overall ending trust fund balance was
817.2 million more than the same five months of fiscal year 2005-2006.

Joint Committee on Government and Finanee

I
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Oflice of the Legislutive Auditor

Budget Division
Bailding 7, Roam 332-West Wing
1904 Kanswha Blvd" East
Chafleston, WV 25305-0590

MEMORANDUM

To: Joint Committee on Government and Finance

From: E1len Clark, CPA y
Director Budget Division
Legislative Auditor's Office

Date: January 10, 2007

Re: Review of west virginia Lottery Financial rnformation
As of November 30, 2006 (Fy 2007)

We performed an analysis of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Retaj-ned Earnings for the month ended November 30, 2A06, from
monthly unaudited financial reports furni-shed to our office by
the west virginia Lottery commission. This report is for five
months of fiscal year 2006-2007. The results are as follows:

tottery Revenues:

Gross lottery revenues are receipts from on-line games, instant
games and video lottery. These gross receipts totaled
$653 ,346,000. 00. These gross recej-pts were 5. ?3 I ABovE the
total as of November 30, 2005 of preceding fiscal year, 2005-
2006. This number does not include commission and prize
deductions. Gross profit (Gross revenues minus commissions andprize costs) for July - November 2006 was $ 268,192,000.00; for
the previous fiscal year it was $249,886,000.00. Expressed as a
percentage' gross profit is 7.57t trigher for July - November 2006
than for JuJ-y - November 2005.

Joint Committee on Government und Finunee
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Lottery continued

Operating fncome:

operating income was $ 260,7r3,000.00 for ,Ju1y - November 2006.
For July - November 2005 it was 9 242,923,000.00. This was an
increase of 1 .322.

Operating Transfers to the State of West Virginia:

A total of $ 258,56L,000.00 has been accrued to the state of West
Virginia for fiscal year 20Q6-2007. This is on an accrual basis
and may not correspond to the actual cash transfers made during
the same time period. ( Amounts owed to the different accounts
according to the l,ottery Act are calculated monthly and accrued
to the state; actual cash transfers are often made based upon
actual cash frow needs of the day-to-day operation of the
lottery. )

A schedule of cash transfers fol_Iows:

Bureau of Seni_or Services $ 42,1-36,000. 00

Department of Education $ 32,7A4,000.00
Educational Broadcastinq
Authorlty
Library Commj-ssion $ 70,522,000.00
Higher Education-Central
Office

$ 38,834,000.00

Tourism $ 7,868,000.00
Department of Natural
Resources

$ 3 ,428,000.00

Di-vision of Cu]ture and
History

$ 5,222, ooo. oo

Department of Education and
Arts

$ 1,385, 000.00

State Building Commission $ 5, 000, 000.00
School- Building Authority $ 9,000,000.00
SITBTOTAL BnpcEIARg TRAITSFERS $rse, 0gg,0oo . 00
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Lottery continued

Senate Bill 1010 and 1017
(2006 lottery surplus to TRAFFIC,
Development Office, Office of
Technology, Capital Outlay parks)

Veterans Instant Ti_cket Fund

\04,253, 000. 00

486,000.00

Excess IJot Fund,

General Purpose Fund 27 ,847,000.00
Economic Development Fund 9, 500, 000. oo

Traffic Fund 0

Excess Lottery Surplus n

Educat.ion Improvement Fund 5,000,000.00
WV Tnfrastructure Council Fund 0

Higher Education Improvement
Fund

2l ,004,000.00

State Park Improvement Fund

Refundable Credit 196,000.00
School Building Authority 0. 00

TOTAL EXCESS LOTTERY FUND 59,543, 000 . 00

RACETRACK VTDEO LOTTERY
TRANSFERS:

Tourism Promotion Fund $5, 173,000.00
Development Office promo Fund 9L, 411, 000. 00

Research Challenqe Fund .5? $1,881,000.00
Capitol Renovation and
Improvement Fund . 6875%

$2, 587, 000. o0

Parking Garage Fund .A625% $235, 000 . 00

Parking Garage Fund 1% $500, 000. 00

Cultural Facilities and Cap.
Resources Fund .53

$1,500,000.00
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Lottery continued

* CASH BASIS

Total Applicable to }ast Ty 2006:
Total Cash Distributions July -Nov.
Total- Applied to FY 2006:
Total- Applied to Ey 2007:
Total- Accrued for Ey 2007:

747 ,67 6, 000.00
356 , 431, 000 . 00
747,67 6,000.00
208,7 55, 000.00

49,806, 000.00

Capitol Dome & Cap.
Improvements Fund .58

$1,763,000.00

Workers Compensation Debt
Reduction Fund 7Z

$11, 000,000.00

SI'BTOTEI. VIDEO I,OTTERT
TRJNISEERS:

$26,050,000.00

TOTAI, IRI}ISFTRS *$356 ,43L,O00.00



P.O. BOX 2067
CHARLESTON, WV 25327

PHONE: 304-558-0500
FAX: 304-558-3321
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Joe Manchin III
Covemor

MEMORANDUM

Joint Committee on Government

John C. Musgrave
Director

fflr ;+lri1.:i"; -;:;
r;r F :irj. ij_.s Ji,iij:j:t: fff
1*l ,,, ; fisfli, lT*ld ,_* .""i jt*-- ry',**'i,'l11ii,_i - ;

FROM: John C. Musgrave, Director
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Month Ending November 30, 2006

DATE: December 19,20A6

This report of the Lottery operations is provided pursuant to the State Lottery Act.

Financial statements of the Lottery for the month ending November 30, 2006 are attached. Lottery revenue,
which includes on-line, instant and video lottery sales, was $124,100,708 for the month of November.

Transfers of lottery revenue totaling $46,535,918 made for the month of November to the designated state
agencies per Senate Bill 125, Veterans Instant Ticket Fund and the Racetrack Video Lottery /rct (SZlaZA-lg).
The amount transferred to each agency is shown in Note 8 on pages 14. and 15 of the attached financial
statements.

The number of traditional and limited retailers active as of November 30, 2006 was 1,666 and 1,681 respectively.

A listing of the names and amounts of prize winners has been provided to the Clerk of the Senate, the Clerk of
the House and Legislative Services

If any rnember of the Committee has questions conceming the Lottery, please call me. Also if any members of the
Legislature wish to visit the Lottery offices, I would be pleased to ihow them our facilities and discuss the
Loffery with them.

JCr{/bf
Attaciunent

pc: Honorable Joe Manchin III
James Robert Alsop, Cabinet Secretary - Dept. of Revenue
John Perdue, Treasurer
Glen B. Gainer III, Auditor
Members of the West Virginia Lottery Commission

rvwu,.wvlotterv"com
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
BAI,ANCE SHEETS

(In Thousands)
-Unaudited-

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Current pcirtion of investments held in trust
Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Investments held in trust, less current portion
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accrued nonoperating distributions to the

State of West Virginia
Estimated prize claims
Accounts payable

Other accrued liabilities
Current portion of deferred jackpot prize obligations

Total current liabilities

Deferredjackpot prize obligations, less current portion

Total liabilities
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets

Restricted assets ( see note 8)

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

November 30,

2006

$ 95,676

22,802

503

38

765

119,784

12,623

(tL,277)
1,346

321
$ 121,451

June 30,

2006

$ 197,719

24,790

588

57

1,455

224,609

Ll,719
(1 1,046)

673

612

$ 225,894

I
I

49,806

16,349

1,466

32,888

326
100,835

163

100,ggg

1,346

20,203

(1,096)

20,453

$ 121,451

147,676

15,992

2,745

38,579

336

205,329

316

205,644

673

20,000
(423)

20,250

$ 225,894Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FIVE MONTII PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30.2006
(In Thousands)

-Unaudited-

CURRENT MONTH

2006 2005

$ 6,420 $ 6,258
80525 9,283

77,071 71,683

32,085 28,806

124,101

YEARTO DATE

2006 2005

$ 36,389 $ 40,t24
45,324 43,494

412,895 392,674
158,738 141,645
653,346 617,937

I
t
I
I
I
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Lottery revenues

On-line games

Instant games

Racetrack video lottery
Limited video lottery

Less commissions
On-line games

Instant games
' Racetrack video lottery

Limited video lotterv

Less onJine prizes

Less instant prizes

Less ticket costs

Less vendor fees and costs

Gross profit
Administrativo expenses

Advertising and promotions
Wages and related benefits
Telecommunications
Contractual and professional
Rental

Depreciation and amortization
Other administrative expenses

Other Operating Income

Operating Income
Nonoperating income (expense)

Investment income
Interest expense

Distributions to municipalities and counties
Distributions to racetracks-capital reinvestment
Distributions to the State of West Virginia

Net income

Net assets, beginning ofyear
Net assets, end of year

449

597

43,166

16,980
61,192

3,300
5,787

124
424

438

650
. 40,238 .'

t6,374
57,700

3,120
6,393

L67

466

10,146

49,194

(84)
483

.50, 132
48

1 1.1

93',

2,547

3,173
242,231

84,004

2,909
3,045

23I,455
77,234

314,543

20,795

29,373

831

2,509

53,508

, 242,886

2,799
2,283

797

1,520
zJo
576

418

8,629

1,665

242,923

1,176

(48)
(2,776)
(1,616)

(239,659)
(242,923)

9,635

53?74

51,188

372
(3)

(62e)
(1,442)

(49"399)
(51,101)

87

331,955

18,532

31,013

651

2,403

, 52,599

268,792

3,547
2,516

965

1,679
258

231
459

833

6t*
2,163

77

20,250
$ 20,337 $

250
250

47;412
''l' ,

)\t

, (8)

ldos;'
(1,3 I 8)

' (45,i73)
(47,4t2)

1,576

260,713

3,314
(1e)

(3,111)
(2,133)

(258,561)
(260,s10)

203

20,250
$ 20,453

250

I
I
I

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FIVE MONTTT PERIOD EI\DED NOVEMBER.30. 2006

(In Thousands)
-Unaudited-

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and other sources
Cash payments for:

Personnel costs

Suppliers
Other operating costs

Cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Nonoperating distributions to the State of West Virginia (356,431)
Distributions to municipalities and counties (3,095)
Distributions to racetrack from racetrack cap. reinv. fund (17,931)
Deferred jackpot prize obligations and related interest paid (19)

Cash used in noncapital financing activities Q77,476\

Cash flows from capital and related financing acitivities:
Purchases ofcapital assets (904)

2006

$ 656,910

Q,5t6)
(7,3s0)

Q74,129)
272,915

324
3,099
3,422

(r02,043)

197,719
$ 95,676

2005

612,937

(2,288)
(8,974)

(361,313)
240,362

(271,410)
(2,732)

(15,870)
(4e)

(290,061)

726
1,r79
1,905

(47,794)

1r3,742

$ 65,948

Cash flows from investing activities:
Maturities of investments held in trust
lnvestment earnings received

Cash provided by investing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning ofperiod
Cash and cash equivalents - end ofperiod

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase (decrease) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Increase (decrease) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in estimated prize claims
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Decrease (increase) in other accrued liabilities

Cash provided by operating activities

$ 260,713

231

t,987
85

690

358
(1,279)
10,130

$ 272,915

242,923

576

6,665
119

(s7)
489

(s26)
(9,827)

240,362

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unaudited-

NOTE 1 . LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENT

The West Virginia Lottery @ottery) was established by the State Louery Act (Act) passed April 13,
1985, which created a special fund in the State Treaswy designated as the "State Lottery Fund.i' The
purpose of the Act was to establish and implement a state-operated lottery under the supervision of a
state lottery commission (Commission) and a director. The Commission, consisting of seven members,
and the Director are appointed by the Governor. Under the Act, the Commission has certain powers and
the duty to establish rules for conducting games, to select the type and number of gaming systems or
games and to enter into contracts and agreements, and to do all acts necessary or incidental to the
performance of its duties and exercise of its po\ver and duty to operate the Lottery in a highly efficient
manner. The Act provides that a minimum annual average of 45o/o of the gross amount received from
each lottery shall be allocated for prizes and also provides for certain.limitations on expenses necessary
for operation and administration of the Lottery. To the extent available, remaining neiprofits are to be
distributed to the State of West Virginia. As the State is able to impose its wilt over the Lottery, the
Lottery is considered a component unit of the State and its financial statements are discretely presented
in the comprehensive annual financial report of the State.

NOTE 2 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies of the Lottery is presented below.

BASIS oF PRESENTATTON - The West Virginia Lottery is a component unit of the State of West
Virginia, and is accounted for as a proprietary fund special purpose government engaged in business
type activities. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governrnents," and with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting which requires recognition of
revenue when earned and expenses when incurred. As permitted by Governmental Accounting
Standarcis Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds arul Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,'i the Lottery has
electeci uot to adopt Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued
afterNcvember 30, 1989 unless the GASB specifically adopts such FASB statements oiinterpretations.

The Lottery is included in the State's basic financial statements as a proprietary fund and business type
activity using the accrual basic of accounting. Because of the Lottery's presentation in these financial
statements as a special purpose government engaged in business type activities, there may be differences
in presentation of amounts reported in these financial statements and the basic financial statements of
the State as a result of major fund determination.

USE oF ESTIMATES - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain
estimates and develop assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
related notes to financial statements. Actual results could differ from management's estimates.
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WEST VIRGINIA I,OTTERY
NOTES TO F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unaudited-

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

LOTTERY GAME 0PERATIONS - The West Virginia Lottery derives its revenues from three basic types
of lottery games: instant, on-line, and video type games. The Lottery develops multiple game themes
and prize skuctures to comply with its enabling legislation, including aggregate annual minimum prize
provisions. A11 bonded retailers and agents cornprised principally of grocery and convenience stores
serve as the primary distribution channel for instant and on-line lottery sales to the general public.

The Lottery has contracted with a private vendor to manufacture, distribute, and provide data processing
support forinstant and on-line games. Under the terms of the agreements, the Lottery pays a percentage
of gross revenues oi gioss profits for the processing and manufacture of the games.

Revenue from instant gulmes is recognized when game tickets are sold to the retailers, and the related
prize expense is recorded based on the specific game prize structure. Instant ticket sales and related
prizes do not include the value of free plays issued for the pu{pose of increasing the odds of winning a
prize.

Sales of on-line lottery tickets are made by licensed agents to the public with the use of computerized
terminals. On-line games include POWERBALL, a multi-state 'Jackpot" game; HOT LOTTO, a multi-
state "lotto" game; Cash25 "lotto" game; Daily 3 and 4 "numbeir" gumer; and Travel , a daily "keno"
game. Revenue is reeognized when the agent sells the tickets to the public. Prize expense is recognized
on the basis of actual drawing results. 

,,,

Commissions are paid to instant game retailers and on;line agents at the rate of seven percent of gross
sales. A portion of the commission not to exceed one and one quarter percent of gross sal"s tnuy Ue paia
from unclaimed ptize moneys. The amount paid from unclaimed prize moneys is credited against prize
costs. In addition, retailers and agents are paid limite-d bonus incentives that include prize shares on
winning tickets they sold and a ticket cashing bonus ori winning tickets they cash. On a weekly basis,
retailers and agents must remit amounts due to the Lottery. Retailers may not be able to order additional
instant tickets if payment has not been made for the prwious billing period, while an agent,s on-line
terminal may be rendered inactive if payment is no! received each week. No on. r"tuiler or agent
accounts for a significant amount of the Lottery's sales oI accounts receivable. Historically credit losses
have been nominal and no allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is considered necessary.

Racetrack video lottery is a self-activated video version of lottery games. The board-operated games
allow a player to place bets for the chance to be awarded credits which can either be redeemed foi cash
or be replayed as additional bets. The coin operated games allow a player to use coins, currency, or
tokens to place bets for the chance to receive coin or tolipn awards which may be redeemed for cash or
used for replay in the coin operated games. The racetrack video lottery games' prize structures are
designed to award prizes, or credits, at a stipulated ratd of total bets played, and priie expense is netted
against total video credits played. The Lottery recognizes as racetrack video lottery rivenue "gross
terminal income" equivalent to all wagers, net of related prizes. Amounts required by statute to be paid
to the private and local gov"*meni entities ur. t.po.t"d as commissions. Racetrack video lotrery
legislation has established specific requirements for racetrack video lottery and imposed certain
restrictions limiting the licensing for operation of racetrack video lottery games to horse and dog
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unaudited-

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

racetracks in West Virginia, subject to local county elections permitting the same. The legislation
further stipulates the distribution of revenues from racetrack video lottery games, and requires
any licensed racetrack to be responsible for acquiring the necessary equipmeniand bearing the risk
associated with the costs of operating and marketing the games.

Limited video lottery is also a self-activated video version of lottery games, which were first placed in
operation in December 2001, located in limited licensed retailer areas restricted for adult arnlsement.
The games allow a player to use currency to place bets for the chance to reoeive free games or vouchers
which may be redeemed for cash. The limited video lottery games' prize structures are designed to
award prizes, at a stipulated rate of total bets played, and iriie expense is netted against totai video
credits played. The Lottery recognizes as limited video lottery i"',r"o,r, "gross terminal incorne,,
equivalent to all wagers-, n9t of related prizes. Amounts required by statute to be paid to private entities
are reported as commissions. Limited video lottery permit hoiders are statuiorily responsible for
acquiring equipment and bearing the risk associated wittr-the costs of operating the games.

CASH AND cAsH EQUTVALENTS - Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of interest-earning
deposits with the West Virginia Investment Managetn.oi Bo*a gMnl and are recorded at fair value.

IIYVENToRY - Inventory consists of instant game tickets available for sale to approved Lottery retailers
and are canied at cost.

OTITER AssETs - Other assets consist primarily of deposits restricted for payment of certain Multi-State
Lottery Association activities.

CAPITAL AssETS - The Lottery leases, under a cancelable operating lease, its office and warehouse
facilities" Portions of these facilities are subleased to the Lottery', gu*. vendor. The Lottery also
leases various office equipment under agreements considered to be cancelable operating leases. itental
expense frr the five months ended November 30, 2006 and November 30, 2005 approxinated $257,gA6
and $236,000, respectively. Sublease rental income for the five months ended November 30, 2006 and
Novernber 30, 2005 approximat ed $43,220 and $43,220, respectively.

The Lottery has adopted a policy of capitalizing assets with individual amounts exceeding $25,000.
These assets include leasehold improvements, contributed and purchased equipment, 

"comprised

principaily of technology property, office fumishings and equipm.rrt ,r.r*rr*y to administer lottery
games' are caxried at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straightJine method using three to ten year
lives.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES - The Lottery has accrued $28l,l46and $241,1 26 of vacation and $468,05g
and $452,850 of sick leave at June 30, i006 and 2005, respectively, for estimated obligations that may
arise in connection with compensated absences for vacation and sick leave at the current rate of
employee pay. Employees fully vest in all earned but unused vacation. In accordance with State
personnel policies, employees hired prior to July 1,200I, vest in unused sick leave only upon

tr.t
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

retirement, at which time such unused leave can be converted into employer paid premiums for post-
retirement health care coverage or additional periods of credited serviie for purposes of determining
retirement benefits. For employees hired prior to July l, 1988, the Lottery pays 100% of the post-
retirement health care premium. The Lottery pays 50% of the premium for emplLyees hired after June
30' 1988 through July 1,2001. The estimated obligation for sick leave is basedonhistorical retirement
rates and current health care premiums applicable to employee hire dates. Employees hired after June
30, 2001 do not vest in unused sick leave upon retirement,

NET ASSETS - Net assets are presented as restricted, irniestricted and invested in capital assets which
represents the net book value of all property and equipment of the Lottery.

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES - Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds such
as the Lottery are revenues and expenses that result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods and/or services. Operating revenues for the Lottery are derived from providing various
typT 9f lottery games. Operating expenses include commissions, prize costs, other directlosts of
qto_uigl"g lottery games, and administrative expenses. All. revenuei and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS .. ,

At November 30, 2006 the carrying amounts of deposits (overdraft) with financial institutions were
($16) thousand with a bank balance of $54 thousand. Of this balance $100 thousand was covered by
federal depository insurance with the remaining balance collateralized with securities held by the State
of West Virginia's agent in the State's name.

A summary of the amount on deposit with the V/est Virginia Investment Management Board (IMB) is as
follows (in thousands) :

Amount on deposit with the IMB
Nover.nber 30.2006 June 30.2006

'

The deposits with the IMB are part of the State of West Virginia's consolidated investment cash
liquidity pool and are not separately identifiable as to specific types of securities. Investment income is
pro-rated to the Lbttery at rates specified by the IMB based on the balance of the deposits maintained in
relation to the total deposits of all state agencies participating.in the pool. Such funds are available to
the Lottery with overnight notice.

NOTE4_CAPITALASSETS

A summary of capital asset activity for the month ended November 30, 2006 is as follows (in
thousands):
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Capital Assets:

Historical Cost
At June 30. 2006 Additions Deletions

Historical Cost
At November 30. 2006

I
I
I
t
t
I
3

t
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

Improvements
Equipment

Accumulated
Depreciation:

Improvements
Equipment

rt.7t9

Ftristorical Cost
At June 30,2006

848

$ 904

-

$-

l,l2l
ioo10.598

1,121
r1,502
12,623

Historical Cost
Additions Deletions At November 30. 2006

10.198
880

10,397
$ 11.046 231 1r,277

NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATION IN T}IE MULTI.STATE LOTTERY

]!9- Lottery is a member of the Multi-State Lottery (MUSL),.;which operates the semi-weekly
IOIVPRBALL jackpot lotto game and HOT LOTTO g*", on behalf of participating state lotteries.
Each MUSL member sells game tickets through its agents and makes weekly wire 

-transfers 
to the

MUSL in an amount equivalent to the total prize poof l"s the amount of prizes won in each state.
Lesse-r Prizes are paid diiectly to the winners by each member lottery. The prize pool for p9WERBALL,
and HOT LOTTO is 50% of each drawing period's sales, with minimum jackpoilevels.

Revenues derived from the Lottery's participation in the MUSL POWERBALL jackpot game for the
mgnth and year-to-date periods ended November 30,2a06 were $3,513,2g9 ana $)z,Z{A,971 while
related prize costs for the same periods were $1,836,024 and $1 1,1g3,2i4.

Revenues derived from the Lottery's participation in the HOT LOTTO game for the month and year-to-
date periods ended November 30, 2006 weie $453 ,753 and, $I,876,137-*t it" related prize costs for the
same periods were 5232,L24 and51,062,727.

MUSL places 2Vo of each POWERBALL drawing period's sales in separate prize reserve funds that
::y9 as a contingency reserve to protect the respective MUSL Product Groups from unforeseen prize
liabilities. Currently, the MUSL Board of Directors has placed a $75,000,000 limit on the
POWERBALLPnze Reserve Fund and a $25,000,000 limit on the Set Prize Reserve Fund. These funds
can only be used at the discretion of the respective MUSL Product Group. Once the prize reserve funds
exceed the designated limit, the excess becomes part of that particular prizepool. prize reserve fund
monies are refundable to MUSL Product Group mimbers if theMUSL disbands or, affer one year, if a
member leavesthe MUSL.AI November30,2006 the POWERBN-Lpize reserye funds had a

32
199

10
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NorE 5 - PARTICIPATION IN THE MULTI-SrATE LOTTERY (conrinued)

balance of $94,252,690 of which the Lottery's share was $2,267,945. The Lottery has charged amounts
placed into the prize reserve funds to prize costs as the related sales have occurred.

NOTE 6 - RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERY

The Racetrack Video Lottery legislation stipulates the distribution of racetrack video lottery revenues.
This legislation has been amended since inception to restate revenue distribution based on revenue
benchmarks. Initially, four percent @%) of groJs terminal revenue is allocated for lottery administrative
costs. Sixty-six percent (66%) of net terminal revenue (gross less 47o) is allocated in lieu of
commissions to: the racetracks $7%); other private entities associated with the racing industry Q7%);
and the local county and municipal governments Q%). The remaining revenues (34%) of net-terminal
ret/enue is allocated for distribution to State as specified in the Racetrack Video Lottery Act or
subsequent State budget, as described in the Note 8 titled "Nonoperating Distributions to the State of
West Virginia."

The first benchmark occurs when the current year net terminal revenue meets the fiscal year 1999 net
terrninal revenue. The counties and incorporated municipalities split 50/50 the two percent (2%) net
terminal revenue.

The second benchmark occurs when the current year gross terminal revenue meets the fiscal yew 2001
grcrss terminal revenue. The four percent (4%) is no longer allocated for lottery administrative costs;
instead the State receives this for distribution as specified by legislation or the State budget.

The final benchmark occurs when the current year net terminal revenue meets the fiscal year 2001 net
terminal revenue. At this point a 10olo surcharge is applied to net terminal revenue, with 58% of the
surcharge allocated for distribution to the State as specified by legistation or the State budget, and,42Yo
of the surcharge allocated to separate capital reinvestment funds for each licensed racetrack. After
deduction of the surcharge, 55%o of net terminal revenue is allocated in lieu of commissions to: the
racetracks $2%); other private entities associated with the racing industry QI%); and the local county
and incorporated municipality governments (2%). The remaining net terminal revenue $5%) is
altrocated for distribution to the State as specified in the Racetrack Video Lottery Act or subsequent State
budget, as described in Note 8.

Amounts from the capital reinvestment fund may be distributed to each racetrack if qualiS,ing
expenditures are made within the statutory timeframe; otherwise amounts accumulated in the fund revert
to the state excess lottery revenue fund. A summary of racetrack video lottery revenues for the month
ended November 30, 2006 and year-to-date follows (in thousands):

I1
II
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NOTE 6 - RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERY (continued)

Current Month

2006 20,05

Total credits played

Credits (prizes) won
MWAP Contributions

Gross terminal income
Administrative costs

Net Teriniiial lncome
Less distribution to agents

Racetrack video lottery revenues $32,253

-

$29,886 $156,431

$810p,62

(732,876)

(31s)

$767,358
(695,675)

Year- to
2006

$4,367,091

(3,952,529)

(r,667)

-Date

2005

$4,230,904

(3,839,230)

$77,071
(1,6s2)

$71,683
(1,559)

$412,895

(t4,233\
$392,674

(13,939)

$75,419

(43,166)

$70,124
(40,238)

$398,662

Q42,23r)

$378,735

(231,455)

8147,290

A 
-summary 

of video lottery revenues paid
legislation follows (in thousands):

State Lottery Fund
State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund
Capital Reinvestment Fund
Tourism Promotion Fund 1.375%
Development Office Promotion Fund .3?5 %
Research Challenge Fund .5 %
Capitol Renovation & Improvement Fund .6875 %
Parking Garage Fund .0625 o/o

Parking Garage Fund I o/o

Cultural Facilities & Capitol Resources Fund .5 %
Capitol Dome & Capitol Improvements Fund.5 %
Worker's Compensation Debt Reduction Fund 7 %o

Total nonoperating distributions

or accrued for certain state

'November 30. 2006

$11,894
16,095

1,442
970
265
353
485

44

firnds to conform with the

Year-to Date

$103,690
23;970

2,132
5r378
1,468
1,956
2,690

244
500

1,500
1,913

11,000

$156,431

t46
559

NOTE 7. LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERY

Limited video lottery legislation passed in 2001 has established specific requirements imposing certain
restrictions limiting the licensing for the operation of limited video lottery games to 9O00 tirminals
placed in licensed retailers. These licensed retailers must hold a quali$inf permit for the sale and
consumption on premises of alcohol or non-intoxicating beer.' The iouery hur b""n charged with the
administration, monitoring and regulation of these machines. The legislation further Jpulates the
distribution of revenues from the limited video lottery games, and requirJs any licensees to comply with
all related rules and regulations of the Lottery in order to continue its retailer-status. The Limited Video
Lottery legislation stipulates thatZYo of gross terminal income be deposited into the state lottery fund for
administrative costs. Then, the state share percet{age of gross ptont is to be transfened to the State
Excess Lottery Revenue Fund. Such percentige is between :O *a 50 percent and is subject to change

t2
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NOTE 7 - LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERy (continued)

on a quarterly basis. Two percent is distributed to counties and incorporated municipalities in the
manner prescribed by the statute. The remaining amount of gross profit is paid to ritailers and/or
operators as prescribed in the Act, and is recorded as limited video lottery commissions in the financial
t?tg*..ntl Municipal and county distributions are accounted for as nonoperating expenses. A sunmary
of limited video lottery revenues for the month ended November 30, 2006 and yeai-to-6ate follows (in
thousands):

Current Month

2006 2005

Year- to -Date

2006 2005

Total credits played

Credits (prizes) won
Gross terminal income
Administrative costs

Gross Profit
Commissions

Municipalities and Counties
Lirnited video lottery revenues

$388,958

(356,873)
s347,369
(3 18,562)

$1,937,070
(1,778,332')

$1,722,919
(1,591,274)

$32,085
(64r)

$28,807
(s76)

$158,738
(3,175)

s141,645

Q,833)
$31,444
(r6,980)

(62e)

(t6,374)
(s65)

$155,563
(84,004)

(3,11t)

$138,812

(77,234)

Q,776)t
t
t
I
I
I
t
,l

t
I
I

$13.835

-

$68.448 $s8.802
r_.rr.--_

NOTA 8 . NONOPERATING DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF'WEST VIRGINIA

As required under its enabling legislation, net assets of the Lottery may not exceed $250,000. On June
4,2406 House Bill 106 established additional capitalization up to $20,000,000, in each year beginning
with FY 2006 and continuing for the next six years. Therefore, the Lottery periodically dislibutes
surplus funds, exclusive of amounts derived from limited video lottery and aportion of racetrack video
lottery funds, to the State of West Virginia in accordance with the legislation. For the year ending June
30, 2007 the State Legislature budgeted $170,100,000 of estimated profits of the Lottery for
distributions to designated special revenue accounts of the State of West Virginia. With regard io the
State l,ottery Fund, legislation stipulates that debt service payments be given a priority ovJr all other
transfers in instances where estirnated profits are not sufficient to provide- for iayment of all
appropriated distributions. Debt service payments of $1,800,000 and $1,000,000 p"r mottth for the first
ten months of each fiscal year currently have such priority. Transfers made pursuant to the State Excess
Lottery Revenue Fund have similar requirements; currently payments are $2,900,000 per month for the
first ten months of each fiscal year, with $1,000,000 of this amount beginning Seitember 2004. ln
addition, Legislation provides that, if in any month, there is a shortag. of frrrdr in- the State Excess
Lottery Revenue Fund to make debt service payments, the necessary amount shall be transferred from
the State Lottery Fund to cover such shortfall, after the State Lottery Fund debt service payments have
been made. Repayments to the State Lottery Fund are required to be made in subseq"rnt months as
funds become available. During the month ended November 30, 2006 the Lottlry made such
distributions and accrued additional distributions of $46,575,973. The Lottery does not have a legally
adopted annual budget.

13
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NOTE 8. NONOPERATING DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
(continued)

Since the enactment of the Racetrack Video Lottery Act, the Lottery is also statutorily required to
distribute income from racetrack video lottery operations as described in Note 6. As of November 30,
?906 th. Lottery accrued additional distributions relating to racetrack video lottery operations of
$1,099,716.

Note 7 describes the Limited Video Lottery Act and the statutory distributions required to be made from
limited video lottery operations.

A summary of the cash dishibutions made to certain state agencies to conform to the legislation follows
(in thousands):

BUDGETARY DISTRIBUTIONS
State Lottery Fund:

Bureau of Senior Services
Department of Education
Library Commission
Highgr Education-policy Commission
Totrism
Natural Resources
Division of Culture & Historv
Department of Education & Arts
Buildine Commission
School Building Authority

Total State Lottery Fund

State Excess Lotterv Revenue Fund:
Economic Development Fund
Higher Education Improvement Fund
General Purpose Account
Higher Education Improvement Fund
State Park Improvement Fund
School Building Authority
Refundable Credit
Excess Lottery Surplus
West Va. Infrastructure Council

Total State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund
Senate Bill 1010. 1016 & l0l7

Total Budgetary distributions:

Veterans Instant Ticket Fund

November 30. 2006 Year-to-Date

$ s.sr2
4.278
r.376
5.080
1.029

449
683
181

1.000
1"800

$ 21,399

$ 1,900
' 1,000

:

$ 42,136
32.704
10522
38.834

7.868
3.428
\ )))
1.385
5,000
9.000

$156,099

$ 9,500

5,000

27,947
27,000

196

t:

$

$

$

22,505

43,893

$ 69,543
$ 104,253

$ 329,895

43 $ 486

14
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NOTE 8 - NONOPERATING DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF'WEST VIRGINIA
(continued)

Tourism Promotion Fund 1.375%
Development Office Promotion Fund .375%
Research Challenge Fuqd..5y,o
Capitol Renovation & Improvement Fund .6875%
Parking Garage Fund .0625 %
Parking Garage Fund I %
Cultural Facilities & Cap. Resources Fund .5%
Capitol Dome & Cap. Improvements Fund .5olo
Workers Compensation Debt Reduction FundTyo

Total

Total nonoperating distributions to the
State of West Virginia (cash basis)

Accrued nonoperating distributions, beginning
Accrued nonoperating distributions, end

Total nonoperating distributions to the
State of West Virginia

$ 893
244
325
447

40

25;
395

$ 2,600

$ 5,173
l,4lr
l,gg l
2,597

235
500

1,500
1,763

11.000
26.050

$356,431

(147,676)
49,906

$46,536

(46,g4t.)
49,906

$ 49,399 $2s8"561

NOTE 9 - DEF'ERRED JACKPOT OBLIGATIONS AND INVESTMENTS HEL,D IN TRUST

Prior to-becoming a member of the Multi-State Lottery in 1988, the prize structure of certain garnes
operated solely by the Lottery included jackpot prizes. The Lottery, at its discretion, could choose to
award such prizes in the form of either a lump sum payment or in equal installments over a period of l0
ot ?9 years, through November 30,2006, the Lottery has awarded twenty-one deferred jackpot prizes
totaling approximately $28,868,786. Deferred pnze awards were recognized ur piir. 

-liabilities

equivalent to the present value of future prize payments discounted at interest rates ior govemment
securities in effect on the date prizes were won. The imputed interest portion of the defene d prize
awards is calculated using the effective interest method at rates ranging from 7.1lVo to g.L3%. A
s]rmmary of the present value of the remaining obligations for deferred jackpot prizs, awards follows (in
thousands):

15
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NOTE 9. DEFERRED JACKPOT OBLIGATIONS AND INVESTMENTS HELD IN TRUST
(continued)

Present value of deferred prize award obligations:
Discounted obligations outstanding
Imputed interest accrued

Less current portion ofdiscounted
obligations and accrued interest

Long-term portion of deferred prize
award obligations

Year Ended

June 30,2007
June 30,2008
June 30,2009

November 30.2006

$ 469

20

489

(326)

$-l-6:L

June 30.2006

$ 61s

37

652

(336)

$ jt16

Iutyt cash payments on deferred prize obligations flor each of the remaining three years are as follows
(in thousands):

Original
Discounted
Obligations

Outstanding

189
159
t20

$__*468

The Lottery has purchased long-term investments consisting principally of zero coupon government
securities to fund deferred jackpot prize award obligations. Such investments are maintained in a
separate trust fund administered by the West Virginia,Irivestment Management Board on behalf of the
Lottery and the jackpot prize winners, with investrnent maturities 

-approximating 
deferre d pAze

obligation installment due dates. Investments are caniied at fair value determinea b-y quoted market
prices for the specific obligation or for similar obligations. Changes in fair value are intluaed as part of
investment income. In accordance with Statement No.,3 of the Government Accounting Standards
Board, tirese investments are classified as to level of risk,in Category 1, which includes investments that
are insured or registered, or for which the securities are held by G it^t" or its agent in the State's name.

Imputed
Interest

t7
23
10

$-:i--10

Total

206
182
130

$ 518

t6
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NOTE 10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

All full-time Lottery employees are eligible to participate in the State of West Virginia Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public
employee retirement system. The PERS is one of several plans administered by the West Virginia
Consolidated Public Retirement (CPRB) under the direction of its Board of Trustees, which consists of
the Governor, State Auditor, State Treasurer, Secretary of the Department of Administration, and nine
members appointed by the Govemor. CPRB prepares separately issued financial statements covering all
retireinent systems it administers, which can be obtained from Consolidated Public Retirement Board.
Building 5, Room 1000, State Capitol Complex, Charleston, West Virginia 25305-0720.

Employees who retire at or after age sixty with five or more years of contributory service or who retire
at or after age fifty-five and have completed twenty-five years of credited service with age and credited
service equal to eighty or gteater are eligible for retirement benefits as established by State statute.
Retirement benefits are payable monthly for life, in the form of a straight-line annuity equal to two
percent of the employee's average annual salary from the highest 36 consecutive months within the last
l0 years of employment, multiplied by the number of years of the employee's credited service at the
time of retirement.

Covered employees are required to contribule 4.5Yo of their qlary to the PERS. The Lottery is required
to contribute 10.5Y, of covered employees' salaries to the PERS. The required employee and employet
contribution percentages have been established and changed from time to time by action of the State
Legislature. The required contributions are not actuarially determined; however, actuarial valuations are
performed to assist the Legislature in determining appropriate contributions. The Lottery and employee
contributions, for the period ending November 30,2006 are as follows (in thousands):

Lottery contributions

Employee contributions
Total contributions

November 30",2006

$38,,,:
l6

Year-to Date

$ 187

81

$54 $268

NOTE 1T . RISK MANAGEMENT

The Lottery is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, or damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Lottery participates in
several risk management programs administered by the State of West Virginia. Each of these risk pools
have issued separate audited financial reports on their operations. Those reports include the required
supplementary information conceming the reconciliation of claims liabilities by type of contract attb terr-
Year claim development information. Complete financial statements of the individual insurance
enterprise funds can be obtained directly from their respective administrative offices.

I7
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

WEST VIRGINIA WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION (WCC)

The State of West Virginia operated an exclusive state-managed workers' compensation insurance
program (WCC) prior to December 31, 2005. A framework for the privatization of workers'
compensation insurance in West Virginia was established with the passage of Senate Bill 1004 and the
WCC trust fund was terminated effective December 31, 2005. A privatiied business entity, BrickStreet
Administrative Services (BAS), was established and became the administrator of the WCC Old Fund,
beginning January l, 2006, and thereafter for seven years, and will have all administrative and
adjudicatory authority previously vested in the WCC trust fund in administering old law liabilities and
otherwise processing and deciding old law claims. BAS will be paid a monthly administrative fee and
rated premium to provide a prompt and equitable system for compensation for injury sustained in the
course of and growing out of employment. The monthly administrative fee for the West Virginia Lottery
has been set at a level consistent with prior year payments and the new rate or premium will be
established on an experience rated basis. The West Virginia Lottery is required to participate in the new
BrickStreet Administrative Services (BAS) experience rated pool, whichls expected to be rate adjusted
on a quarterly basis.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE AGENCY (PEIA)

fhe lottery participates in the Public Employees' Insurance Agency which provides air employee
tienefit insurance program to employees. PEIA was established by the State of West Virginia foi State
:itgencies, institutions of higher educations, Boards of Education and component units of the State. In
addition, local governmental entities and certain charitable ar-rd public service orgarizations may request

lt, b9 covered by PEIA. PEIA provides a base employee benefrt insurance program which includes
hcspital, surgical, major medical, prescription drug and basic life and accidental death. Underwriting
and rate_setting policies are established by PEIA. The cost of all coverage as determined by PEIA shali
be paid by the participants. Premiums are established by PEIA and are paid monthly, and are dependent
upon, among other things, coverage required, number of dependents, state vs. non state employles and

lctive employees vs. retired employeeJ and level of compensation. Coverage under these programs is
limited to $1 million lifetime for health and $10,000 of life insurance 

"ou"tug-".
lhe PEIA risk pool retains all risks for the heatth and prescription features of its indemnity plan. pEIA
lras fully transferred the risks of coverage to the Maniged Care Organization (MCO) Plan:to the plan
provider, and has transferred the risks of the life insuran." 

"ou.ruge 
to a third party insurer. PEIA

presently charges equivalent premiums for participants in either the indemnity plan ot th. MCO plan.
Altogether, PEIA insures approximately 205,000 individuals, including participants and dependents.

BOARD OF'' RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT (BRIM)

The Lottery participates in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM), a
common risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for all
State agencies, component units, and other local governmental agencies who wish to participate. The
Lottery pays an arurual premium to BRIM for its general insurance coverage. Fund underwriting and
rate setting policies are established by BzuM. The cost of all coverage as determined by BRIM shall be

l8
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unaudited-

NOTE U - RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinued)

paid by the participants. The BRIM risk pool retains the risk of the first $1 million per property event
and purchases excess insurance on losses ibo'ne that level. Excess coverage, throughan outsidelnsurer
under this program is limited to $200 million per event, subject to limits o-n certain property. BRIM has
$1 million per occrrrence coverage maximum on all tfriid-party liability claims.

l9
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WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE

304-347-4870

Office of the Legislative Auditor

Budga Division
Building 7, Roam 332-West Wing
1904 Kanawha Blvd East
Charleston, WV 25305-0590

Memorandum

To: Honorable Members of the Joi-nt Committee on Government and
Finance

From: Bl-l-en Clark, C.P.A. tp
Director Budget Division
Legislative Auditor's Office

Date: January 2, 2047

Re: Status of General Revenue Fund December 31, 2006

We have revj-ewed the cash revenue flows of the West Virginia
general revenue fund for the months of July-December of fiscal year
2006-2001. The status of the fund collections are as follows:

The net collections were 106.98* of the estimate for the fiscal
year. The amount ABO\|E estimate was $ 116 uillion for tJre year.

Corporate income/business franchise tax was g 61 million abqve the
estimate.

Severance tax was $ 32 mill-ion above the estimate as of December
31, 2006.

foint Committee on Goverument and Finanee
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State Road E\rnd

The state road fund was collected at LA6.76% of the estimate for
the months of July - December. The entire fund was $ 18.2 million
above the estimate for the vear.

Rainy Day and

The Rainy Day
bal-ance of 227

Personal Income Tax Reserve

Fund (Revenue
692,063.45 as

Shortfa1l Reserve Fund)
of December 31, 2006.

had a cash

The
$36

Income
96 as

Special
619,318

Tax Reserve
of December

Fund had a cash. balance of
31.2A06.

,
Balance July 7, 2006 724,153,400.1_g

Cash fl-ow loan to General
Revenue on July 6, 2006
To be repaid 90 days. This is
a normal- occurrence in .Tuty
due to cash flow demands; wil1
be repaid i-n September. Loan
repaid on September 28, 2006.

50, 000, 000. 00

50, 000, 000 . 00

Revenues July I, 2005-June
30,20A6 (Surplus from F.y 2006
to be transferred in Auaust
2006. \

88, 817, 007 . 93

Earnings 8,721, 655.44

Balance December 31, 20AG 221,692,063. 45

Balance July 1-, 2006 36, 6L9, 318 . g6

Revenues July 2006-,lune 2AO1

Balance December 31, 2006 36,619,318.96
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WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE
Offiee of the Legislative Auditor

BudgaDivision
Building 7, Roam3j2-West lfiing
19AA Kanawhs Blvd East
Charleston, WI/ 25305-0590 304-347-4870

To: Honorable Members of the Joint Committee on Government
and Fi-nance

From: EII-en Clark, C.p. 
"ZUDirector Budget Division

Legislative Auditor's Office
Date: January 4, 2007

Re: west virginia unemployment compensation Trust Fund

we have reviewed the November 2aa6 monthry report of the
UnemploYment Compensation Trust Fund we received from WorkForce
west virginia. November is the fifth month of the fiscal year
2006-2007.

For the five months of fiscal year 2AA6-2A01, the trust fund cashflow was as follows:

ITEMS OF NOTE:

Regular benefits paid for July 2A06- November
less than the same time period in fiscal year
disbursements were $ 6.8 million less than in
200s.

2006 were $ 1.8
2006. Total-
July 2005- November

Joint Cammittee on Government and Finanee

Trust Fund Begi.nning Cash Balance T-1-2006 $2qq, 918, 539. 17

Receipts JuIy 1, tAA6 thru ,fune 30, ZAO7 $57,398 ,941 .gt
Disbursements
2A01

,Ju1y 1, 2006 thru June 30, $53, 882 ,295.40

Balance November 30, 2006 $248,435, 191.69



I
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Recej-pts were $I.2 million l_ess than in JuIy 2005 - November
2005. Overal-l ending trust fund balance was $ 17.2 million more
i-n November 2006 than in November 2005.

West Virginia's unemployment rate for the month of November 2A06
I was 4.7 percent. uationlf unadjusted emplolrment rate was 4.3 t.I

Seasonal-Iy adjusted unemployment rates were 5.1 percent for West
Virginia and 4.5 percent nationally.

since November 2005 employment has risen 8,500 with gains in the
following areas z 2,200 in trade, transportation and utirities,
1r600 in construction. Lr40a in natural resources and mining,
1,300 in lej-sure and hospitality, 1,000 in professional and
business services, 500 in government, 600 in educational and
health services, and 300 in information. Declines included 300
in manufacturing, and 100 in fj-nancial services.
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State of West Virginia
Public Employees Insurance Agency

Financial Comments
i'r

Year-to-Date November 30, 2006 and 2005
Accrual Basis

(Unaudited-For Inlernal Use Only)

Amounts indicated in the attached financial statements include the accounls of the West Virqinia Public lnsurance Aoencv
(PEIA) and the West Virqinia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (RHBT). Sufficient resources have not yet become available
for the preparation of separate accountings.

The Budgeted amounts reflected in these statements have been adjusted to incorporate the changes in premium and
expense estimates which resulted from policyholder enrollment chang€s which took place during open enrollment and other
changes in commitmenls which have occurred. Amounts reported in the Buclgeted Column in the attached Statements ot
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings represent a one twelfth per month recognition of the annual buclget
except for claims expenses, which are from a seasonal budget that was developed by PEIA's Actuary.

ln total the amounts inclucled in the Budget Column will accumulate through Plan Year 2007 and at lhe end of our fiscal year
agree to the Actuarial Baseline Forecast which was prepared Ocrober 3, 2OOO and indicates a surplus of $33.694,069.

PEIAs consulting actuaries have prepared an updated Actuarial Baseline Forecast dated December 22,2A06 which indicates
a surplus of $40,496,559 for Plan Year 2007. The Budget Column indicated in these reports have not yet been adjusted
to reflect this update.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Managementg
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Short Term Assets

Cash and Equivalents
Advance Deposit with Carrierffrustee
Receivables - Net
Prepaid lnsurance

Total Short Term Assets

Long Term Assets
Investments

Total Long Term Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Short Term Liabilities

Accounts payable
Claims Payable
Agents Commissions Payable
Unearned Revenue
Current Estimated Claim Reserve

Total Short Term Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences
Estimated Noncurent Claim Reserve

Total Long Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILffIES

Prior Year Net Assets (Deficiency)
Current Year Earnings (Loss)
TOTAL N ET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY)

TOTAL LTABTLTT|ES AND RETATNED EARNtNcS (DEFtCtENCY)

November 30
2005

$ 30,430,669 $
106,335,299

1,596,254

49,023,061
62,597,390

2,O22,963
3,58',1,325 2,422,383

141,933,536 116,065,797

113,596,336 103,410,306
113,596,336 103,410,306

255,529,872 219,476,103

452,501
2,657

832,726
15,982,239
54,992,290

7U,367
161,002
866,806

16,157,665
53,382,560

72,262,413

163,620
125.994,041

71,302,400

166,553
137.281.261

126,157,661 137,447.814

198,420,O74

44,843,685
12.266.113

208,750,214

526,803
10.199,086

57,109,798 10,725,889

$ 255,529,872 $ 219,476,103

01t03t07
DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT

For the five months ending

November 30
2006

Operating Revenues
Premium'Revenues
Less - Excess Insurance

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Court Fees
Claim lnterest Income
lnvestment lncome

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Net Income (Loss)

11,284,6U 2,766,244

12,266,113 10,199,096

34,369,113 $
(2,s58,089)

36,034,502
fi.730,270\

31,811,024

27,155,932
1,925,590

533,331
1,214,722

34,304,232

24,149,580
890,913
516,140

1,314,757
30,829,575 26,871,390

981,449 7,432,842

10,890
189,219

11,084,555

13,156

2,753,088

I
I
I
I

01to3t07
DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only



West Virginia
Children's Health Insurance Program
1018 Kanawha Boulevard East
Suite 209
Charleston, WV 25301

Phone: N4-558-2732
Toll-Free: 1-877-WVA CHIP
Fax:304-558-n4l
www.wvchip.org

Joint Committee on
Gover"H:ll Finance

January 2007
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December 29, 2006 Enrollment 25,27 3

WV CHIP Enrollment

29,000

26,000

Eo
! 24,ooo
E()

g 212,004
ll
E
5
= 2o,ooo

18,000

16,000

tu
v-

F
L

,F

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Annualized Health Gare Expenditures
(Cost per Ghild)

$1,700

$t,600

$1,500

$1,400

s1,3oo

$1,200

$1,100

$1,000

1,6,|i| 1,632

1-s7L {.szs 1.s77 1,s83 1,590 1,584 1'599 1'5W

OOOOrll-

Dec 05 Jan 06 Feb 06 Mar 06 Apr 06 May 06 Jun 06 Jul 0G Aug 06 Sep 06 Oct 06 Nov 06
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West Virginia Ghildren's Health Insurance Program
Gomparative Balance Sheet
November 30, 2006 and 2005

(AccrualBasis)

November30,2006 November30,2005
Assets:

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Due From Federal Government
Due From Other Funds
Accrued Interest Receivable
Fixed Assets, at Historical Cost

TotalAssets

Liabilities:

Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Unpaid Insurance Claims Liability

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

$2,310,610
$2,8',17,O11

$559,719
$11,873
$63,071

$5J62285

$1',\1,246
$1,743,609
$2.830.000

$4.684.855

$1.077.430

$5J02285

$1,816,574
$3,405,079

$715,683
$5,324

$79.512

$a322-Lrc

Variance

$494,036 270h
($588,068) -',\7o/o

($155,964) -22o/o

$6,549 123o/o
($16.441) -21Yo

6259-88$ 4%

$384,679
$1,245,079
$3.400,000

$5.029.759

$992.414

$6-922Jt3

($273,433) -71o/o

$498,530 4oo/o
($570.000) -17o/o

($344.904) -7o/o

$85.016 9o/o

$259-88$ -A%

PRELIM INARY FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only - Unaudited
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West Virginia Children's Health Insurance Program
Gomparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Five Months Ended November 30, 2006 and November 30, 2005
(Modified Accrual Basis)

November 30, 2006 November 30, 2005
Revenues:

FederalGrants
State Appropriations
Investment Earnings

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenditures:
Claims:
Outpatient Services
Physicians & Surgical
Prescribed Drugs
Dental
Inpatient Hospital Services
Vision
Outpatient Mental Health
Inpatient Mental Health
Medical Transportation
Durable & Disposable Med. Equip.
Therapy
Other Services
Less: Collections*
TotalClaims

General and Admin Expenses:
Salaries and Benefits
Program Administration
Eligibility
Outreach & Health Promotion
Cunent
Total Administrative

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Equity, Beginning

Fund Equity, Ending

* Collections are primarily drug rebates and subrogation

$14,063,041
$3,300,535

$50.053

$17.413.629

Variance

$13,255,787 $807,253 6%
$3,521,555 ($221,020') -60/o

$18.073 $31.980 177o/o

$16.795.415 $618.214 4o/o

$3,979,442
$3,447,164
$3,262,740
$2,018,406
$1,834,191

$528,823
$520,661
$381,405
$174,597
$172,168
$145,756

$56,014
($320,281)

$16.201.086

$188,147
$800,888
$127,270

$9,815
$36.370

$1.162.490

$17.363.576

$50,053

$1.027.377

$l-ozz4!to

$4,183,988 ($204,546) -5%
$3,4',t5,624 $31,540 10/o

$3,117,540 $145,200 50/o

$1,997,710 $20,696 1%

$1,221,397 $612,794 50%
$585,460 ($56,637) -',lo%
$550,133 ($29,472) -5o/o

$230,158 $151,247 660/o

$103,884 $70,713 68%
$136,482 $35,686 260/o

$121,906 $23,850 200/0

$35,996 $20,018 560/o

($239.995) ($80.286) 33%
$15.460.283 $740.803 5%

$'t92,737 ($4,590) '2o/o

$838,014 ($37,126) 4o/o

$109,109 $18,161 17o/o

$64,356 ($54,541) -85o/o

$112.843 ($76.473) -680/0

$1.317.059 ($154.569) -12o/o

$16.777.342 $586.234 3%

$18,073 $31,980 1770/o

$974.341 $53.036 5%

$992AM $85-U6 9%

PRELIMINARY FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only - Unaudited
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255
1,084

133
155

0r*
1,218
207

94
60

706

115

82

306
295
443
200

301

1,167

356

226
294
995
155

203
145
966
105

164
587

305
398
143

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
T

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

County
County Total CHIP Total Medicaid

Population Enrollment Enrollment
Rankinq 2003 (0-18 Yrs) Deo06

Vl / CHIP Enrollment Report
December 2006

CHIP/Medicaid
CHIP/Medicaid Enrollment

Enrollment % of Population

Total % # Children Est. #
Insured Insured Uninsured
312002* Rankino* Eliqible'

Barbour
Berkeley
Boone
Braxton

Brooke

Cabell

Calhoun
Clay
Doddridge
Fayefte

Gilmer
Grant

Greenbrier
Hampshire
Hancock

Hanison
Jackson

Jefferson
Kanawha
Lewis

Lincoln
Logan

Marion
Marshall

Mason
McDowell

Mercer
Mineral
Mingo
Monongalia

Monroe
Morgan

Nicholas

Ohio
Pendleton

Pleasants

Pocahontias
Preston

Putnam
Raleigh

Randolph
Ritchie
Roane

Summers
Taylor
Tucker

3,600
21,915
5,982
3,368

5,088
19,009

1,634
2,650

1,873
10,258
't,429

2,596

7,486

5,333
6,602

15,715

6,817
11,059
41,623
3,790
5,251
8,121
11,636

7,957

5,920

5,881
13,106

6,352
6,676
15,355

Dec46

1,677

5,880

2,652
1,592
't,461

8,038

864
1,406
737

4,854
585
953

2,895

1,868
2,245
1.011

6,235

2,436
2,131
17,113
1,773

2,635
4,000

4,428
2,861

2,556

3,752
6,619
2,051

3,388
4,226
917
935

2,543
3,165
M4
521

688
2,447

3,282
7,005
2,509

829
't,665

't,238
1,459
504

898

1,978
7,047

3,008
1,8'18

1,755
9,033
1,019

1,609

882
5,820

690
1,117

3,482
2,173
2,643

54.9o/o

32.2Yo

50.3%
54.0o/o

34.5o/o

47.5o/o

62.4o/o

6O.7o/o

47.1o/o

56.7o/o

48.3o/o

43.0o/o

46.iYo
40.7o/o

40.0o/o

38.1o/o

46.Oo/o

41.5o/o

22.8o/o

46.3o/o

55.4o/o

58.4o/o

55.3olo

44.9o/o

41.2o/o

48.60/o

71.1o/o

58.97o

36.8%

57.0o/o

31.9%
43.5o/o

33.9%
49.0o/o

37.4%
32.8%

34.4o/o

45.3o/o

42.8Yo

29.5o/o

48.7o/o

47.4o/o

4O.60/o

55.8%

51.2o/o

46.1o/o

44.60/o

46.0%

92.5o/o

93.9olo

97.9o/o

95.6olo

98.5olo

91.6%

88.0%
95.1o/o

96.4o/o

92.1o/o

92.8o/o

95.8%

94.8o/o

91.3o/o

92.9o/o

93.6olo

93.97o

93.97o

96.4o/o

88.0%

93.3%
92.'lo/o

95.9olo

97.5%

95.7o/o

93.8%

91.0%

90.7%
88.57o

92.60/o

93.1o/o

94.4o/o

95.6%

99.0%
93.9%

87.7o/o

90.2o/o

93.2o/o

91.7o/o

89.7o/o

96.2o/o

90.5olo

88.9%
90.97o

93.1o/o

94.9o/o

2.714

990
390

394
2,155
326
431
494
800
415
320
431

1,101

284
4't9
679

263
244
453

483
120

95
158

567

626
1,290
478
153
341

222
243
177
113

1.154

1,179
2,996
3,648

564
616
846

3,014
3,908

8,295
2,587
982

2,006
1,460
1,702
681

34
21

4
13

3

39

52
15

6
36

32
11

17
40

31

26

22

23
7

53
27

37
10

5
12

25
41

43
51

33
29

49
19
'14

2
24

54
47

28
38
48

9
44

50
42
30
16

340

651

772
431

327

654
516
217

249
373

1,268
251
566

1,144
196
285
324
480
19

88
224
236
486

1,395

653
81

336
315

356
103

93

7,225
2,826
2,525
19,268

2,099
3,066
4,494
5,228
3,276
2,876
4,183
7,720
2,335
3,807
4,905
1,180

3,475
6,1 15

9,761

1,721

1,790
1,869

7,O40
13,259

17,040
6,301
2,418
3,595
2,853

3,693
't,526

2.199



Upshur
Wayne
Webster
WeEel
Wirt
Wood
Wyoming

5,349

9,926
2,252

4,084
1,471

20,o87

5,522

Totals 403,164 25,273 156,782 182,055

50.4o/o

49.8o/o

58.8%

48.60/o

48.8o/o

44.2o/o

61.0%

45.2o/o

*Based on data from *Heafth lnsurance in WesI Virginia: The Children's Repft" - a suruey by
The lnslitute for Heafth Policy Research at the West Virginia University Robert C. Byrd Science Center

*There may be some uninsured eligibte chitdren in these counties, but according fo fte resuns
of the survey sampling none were bund.

394

603
186
255
121

1,107
442

2,304
4,U3
1,137

1,731

596
7,776
2,924

2,698

4,946
't,323
1,986
717

8,883
3,366

Highest o/o cf Children Insured

2d Highest 9o cf Childten Insured

2d Lowest o/o cf Children Insured

Lowest o/o cf Chibren Insured

90.4o/o

87.7o/o

94.7o/o

92.5o/o

96.3%

90.5%
94.0o/o

93.4Yo

46

55
18

35
8

45

20

547
1,034

103

334
46

1,624
231

22,446

I
I
I
t
I
I
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Legislative Oversight Commission on

Health and Human Resources Accountability

JANUARY 2OO7

Department of Ad m inistration

State Children's Health Insurance Program
UPDATE
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WV CHILDREN'S HEALTH INSURANCE AGENCY
Rrponr FonJ^mu^mv 2007

I. Enrollment on December 29r 2006: 25,273
See Attachment I for enrolltnent by county.

Current l2-Month Enrollment Period: January 2006 through December 2006

fi zs,ooo

EE
(J
g 24,0@

o
.os5 23,000z

n,aN

,.* of *f fo *d ,t",s.,|"o6 uee od *d o<ro

Enrollee Totals: October 2006 to December 2006

Monflt Totul I,Year Total
October

November
December

1,734
1,432
1.310

Average
High
Low

1,756
2,242
1.310

New Enrollee (Never Before on CIIIP) Totals: October 2006 to December 2006

II. Re-enrollment for 3 Month Period: September 2006 to November 2006

IWonth TouI I Year Total
October

November
December

839
638
554

Average
High
Low

850
1,145
554

Total Forms Mailed
@iolleitwithjn
Notice P€riod

Reopenod Cases
AfterClozure Final Clozures

Month Total t1tr % # % fr %
September 2,004
October 1,861

November 1,572

1,191
1,109
875

59%
60%
560/o

213
194
191

11o/o

100h
12o/o

600
558
506

30%
30o/o

32o/o



WVCHIP
Report For January 2007
Page 2

III. Financial Activity
Please see this month'sfinancial statement at Attachment 2.

The average annualized clairns cost per childfor the rnonth ended November 2006 was $1,632.

Annual Expenditures for a 3 Year Period: SFY 2004 - SFY 2006

sFr2006 STPO6
,2006

srr200s rrp%
2005

sF'r2m4 f!?To
?"M4

Federal 34.247.276 81.09 33,767,136 82.26 29,144,455 82.63
State 7.986.385 18.91 7,235,862 17.74 6126.578 17.37
Total Costs 42,233.661 100.00 41.002.998 100.00 35.271.033 100.00

Monthly Budgeted and Current 3 Month Period: September 2006 - November 2006

o
tr
.9

=tr

Budgeted Per
Month

Wtd, Avg.
For Otr.

Actual
November2006 October 2006 Seoteinber 2fr)6

Federal 3.127,204 2.855.136 3.409.961 2.341.554 2,813,894
State 733,542 669.315 801,427 550,325 656,194
Total 3,860.746 3.524.452 4.211.388 2,891,879 3.470.088

ang
.9

=c

Budgeted
Per Month

Wtd. Avg.

For Qtr.
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}WCHIP
Report For January 2007
Page 3

fV. WVCHIP Premium

families with incomes from 200o/oto 220%oFpL.

being accepted. Families will be able to pay their premiums by credit cmd, automated bank
draft, or regular checking on an ongoing basis.

$35 per month - $ingls Child Family
$71 per month - Two or More Children Family

insurance coverage for the preceding 12 month period.

I
I
I
I
I
I
I



I
I VUV CHIP Enrollment Report

December 2006

I County TotalCHlP TotalMedicaid Total CHIP/Medicaid

I County Poputation Enrollment Enrollment CH|P/lrledicaid Enrollment! Rankino 2003 (0-18 Yrs) Dec-06 Dec-06 Enrollment o/o of Pooulation

ATTACHMENT 1

Total o/o # Childrcn Est. #
Insured Insured Uninsurcd
312W2* Rankino* Elioible*

l::nru
Boone

l3ffii
Cabell

t;#;"
ls*r

Greenbrier

lHr""J-

l?ilH:;.Jeffercon

l[#"
^ Logan

lil::il,,
Mason

lil:',#"
Mineral

lilil':h',"

lx';F:"
Pendleton

3,600
21,915
5,982
3,368
5,088
19,009
1,634

2,650
1,873

10,258

1,429
2,596
7,486
5,333
6,602

15,715

6,817
11,059

41,623
3,790
5,251
8,121
11,636

7,957
5,920
5,991
13,106

6,352
6,676
15,355

301

1,167

356
226
294
995
155
203
145

966
105

164

587
305
398
143
990

390

394
2,155
326
431

494
800
415
320
431

1,101

2U
419
679

263
244
453
483
120
95
158

567
626

1,290

478
153

341
222
243
177

113

1,677

5,880
2,652
1,592
1,461

8,039
864

1,406
737

4,954
585
953

2,895
1,869

2,245
1,011

6,235
2,436
2,131
'17,113

1,773
2,635
4,000
4,428
2,861
2,556
3,752
6,619
2,O51

3,389
4,226
917

935
2,543
3,165
444
521
688

2,447
3,282
7,005
2,509
829

1,665
1,239
1,459
504
898

1,978
7,O47

3,008
1,818
1,755

9,033
1,019

1,609

882
5,820
690

1,117

3,482
2,173
2,643

54.9%

32.2o/o

50.3olo

54.0o/o

34.5o/o

47.50/o

62.4o/s

ffi.7o/o

47.1o/o

56.7o/o

48.3o/o

43.Oo/o

46.5o/o

40.70/o

4O.Oo/o

38.1o/o

46.0o/o

41.5o/o

22.8o/o

46.3o/o

55.4o/o

58.4o/o

55.3olo

44.9o/a

41.2o/o

48.60/o

71.1o/o

58.9olo

36.8%
57.Oo/o

31.9o/o

43.5o/o

33-9o/o

49-Oo/o

37.40/o

32.8o/o

34.4o/o

45.3o/o

42.8o/o

29.5o/o

48.7o/o

47.4o/o

4O.60/o

55.8%

51.2o/o

46.1o/o

44.60/o

46.0o/o

92.50/o

93.9olo

97.9o/o

95.60lo

98.5%

91.6%

88.0olo

95.1o/o

!fi.4o/o

92.1o/o

92.8o/o

95.87o

94.8o/o

91.3o/o

92.9o/o

93.6%

255
1,084
133

155

0*
1,218
207
94

60
706

115

82
306
295
443
200

0*
340
651

772

43'l
327

654

516
217
249
373

1,268
251

566
1,144
196

285
324
480

19

88

224
236
486

1,395

653
81

336

315
356
103
93

u
21

4
13

3
39
52
15

6
36
32
11

17
40
31

26

2.714

1,154

1.180

7,225
2,826
2,525
19,268
2,099
3,006
4,494
5,228
3,276
2,876
4,183
7,720
2,335
3,807
4,905

93.9olo

93.9olo

96.4o/o

88.0%
93.37o

92.10/o

95.90/o

97.5o/o

95.7o/o

93.87o

91.0o/o

90.7o/o

88.5%

92.60/o

93.1o/o

89.2o/o

94.4o/o

95.6%
99.0olo

93.9olo

87.7o/o

90.2o/o

93.2o/o

91.7Yo

89.7o/o

96.24/o

90.5olo

88.9%

90.9%
93.1o/o

94.9o/o

99 1

22
23
7

53
27
37
10

5
12

25
41

43
51

33
29
49
19
14

2
24
54
47
28
38
48
I

44
50
42
30
16

ld;:'t;
JUmmers

Pleasants
Pocahontas

Preston
Putnam

Raleigh

Randolph
Rilchie

3,475
6,115
9,761
1,721

1,790

1,869
7,040
13,259
17,040
6,301
2,418
3,595
2,853
3,693
1,526
2,199

1,179
2,996
3,648
564
616
846

3,014
3,908
9,295
2,987
982

2,006
1,460

1,702
681

1,O11

Taylor
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ATTACHMENT 2

West Vlrginia Children's Health Insurance Program
comparative statement of Renenues, Expenditures and Ghanges In Fund Balances

For the Five Months Ended November 30, 20lt6 dnd Novumber 30, 2005
(llodlfied Accrual Basls)

November 30,2006 Novomber 30, 2005
t
I
t
I
I
I
t

Revenues:
FederalGrants
State Appropriatbns
Investment Eamings

Totral Operating Revenues

Operating Expenditures:
Claims:

Outpatient Services
Phpicians & Sugical
Prescribed Drugs
Dental
Inpatient Hospital Services
Vision
Outpatient Mental Health
Inpatient Mental Health
Medical Transportation
Durable & Disposable Med. E

Therapy
Other Services
Less: Collections*
TotalClaims

General and Admin Expenses:
Salaries and Benefits
Program Administration
Eligibility
Outreach & Health Promotion
Cunent
Total Administrative

Total Expenditures

Exess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Equity, Beginning

Fund Equity, Ending

14,063,041
3,300,535

50.053

17.413.629

13,255,787
3,521,555

18.073

16.795.415

4,183,988
3,415,624
3,117,UO
1,997,710
1,221,397

585,460
550,133
230,158
103,884
136,482
121,906
35,996

(239.995)

15.460.283

Variance

807,253 Ba/o

(221,020) -60/o

31,980 1770/o

618.214 4o/o

3,979,442
3,447,164
3,262,740
2,018,406
1,834,191

528,823
520,661
381,405
174,597
172,168
145,756
56,014

(320.2811

16.201.086

188,147
800,888
127,270

9,815
36.370

1.162.490

17.363.576

(204,546) -54/o

31,540 1o/o

145,200 50/o

20,696 1o/o

612,794 500/o

(56,637) -1oo/o

(29,472) -5o/o

151,247 66%
70,713 680/o

35,686 260/o

23,850 20o/o

20,018 58o/o
(80.286) 33o/o

740.803 g%

I
n

I
I
I
t
T

I
I
I

192,737 (4,590)
838,014 (37,126t
109,109 18,161
64,356 (54,541)
112.U3 (76.473\

1.317.059 (154.569)

16.777.342 586.234

-2o/o

-4o/o

17o/o

-85o/o

'680/o
-12o/o

3o/o

31,980 177o/o

53.036 5o/o

95"01c 9%

* Collections are primarily dr"ug rebates and subrogation

50,053 18,073

1.027.377 974.U1

1-O71A30 W2,,4U

PRELru INARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only - Unaudited
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West Virginia Ghildren's Health Insurance Program
YWFIMS Fund 21t{

For the Month Ended November 30, ZXl6

{Aecrual Basis}

Funds lnvested

Interest Eamed

Total

$1,941,709

41,921

$1,983,530

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only - Unaudited

slcHlP\L o c H H R A\Reports\Fjnancials\2007\Nov 06 for Jan 0Ttnvestments
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Department of Administration Leasing Report
For The Period of December 5, 2006 through December 21,2006

NEW CONTRACT OF LEASE

BSI-002 New contract of Sub-Lease for 3 months containing 948 square feet of
office space at $11.60 per square foot, full service, Between Brick Street
Insurance and the Insurance Commission, in Charleston, Kanawha County, West
Virginia.

F&A-031 New Contract of Sub-Lease for 30 years, containing 17 ,764 square feet
of office space at $11.39 per square foot, including snow removal, between the
City of Williamson and Department of Adrninistration, Mingo County, West
Virginia. "Space will be Sub-Leased to Department of Health and Human
Resources by the Department of Administration"

AMC-001 New Contract of Sub-Lease for 5 years, containing a tower site at
$1,100.00 per month, with a 3-5 years option to renew with a 4o/o increase per
year, including utilities, between American Cellular Corporation/Dobson
Communications and Educational Broadcasting Authority, in Preston County,
West Virginia.

STRAIGHT RENEWALS

HEA -069 Renewal of office space, for 1 year, containing 320 square feet, at the
same rate of $7.50 per square foot, including utilities, behrueen Wyoming County
Economic Development Authority and Department of Health and Human
Resources, in Pineville, Wyoming County, West Virginia.

DHS - 098 Renewal of office space, on a month to month basis, containing
4,320 square feet at the same rate of $7.00 per square feet, located in Sutton,
Braxton County, West Virginia.

HHR-143 Renewal of storage space, for 3 years, containing 100 square feet at
the same rate of $6.00 per square foot, no public utilities, between Bobby Tignor
and Department of Health and Human Resources, in Princeton; Mercer County,
West Virginia.

AGO-013 Renewal of storage space, for 1 year, containing 4,000 square feet at
the same rate of $2.25 per square foot, including electricity, between Kanawha-
Roxalana Company and the Attorney General's Office, in Charleston, Kanawha
County, West Virginia.



RENEWAL/CORRECTION IN SOUARE FOOTAGE

CID-002 Renewal of office space, for 1 year, with a correction in square footage
on the sixth floor and basement area, still contains the current square footage of
34,530 at the rate of $9.50 per square foot, including utilities, between
Department of Administration and the West Virginia Development Office, in Bldg
6, Capitol Complex, in Charleston, West Virginia.

RENEWAL/RENT INCREASES

STO-008 Renewal of office space, for 1 year, containing 492 square feet with an
increase from $300.00 per month to $500.00 per month, including utilities with
Co-Owners, Inc. and \l/V State Treasurer's Office, in Morgantown, Monongalia
County, West Virginia.

RJA-004 Renewal of office space, for 5 years, containing 19,616 square feet with
a rent increase from $10.75 per square foot to $12.75 per square foot, including
trash, snow removal and exterminating services, between First Charleston
Corporation, LLC and Regional JailAuthority, in Charleston, Kanawha County,
West Virginia.

I
I
I
I
I
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I
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Department of Health and Human Resources

MEDICAID REPORT
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I B,REAU FoR *ElxcAL $ERvrcEgt' Medicaid Approved Glaims Report
As of December 8, 2006
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This report's data is prepared based on claims received and approved for payment (Modified Accural basis of
Aceounting). Therefore, the data presented in this report will not match the CMS-64 Quarterly Reports which are
prepared on a cash basis.

The following report approxlmates the Medicarc Part-D Prescription Drug Expenditures related to WV's part-D
Premium (clawback) payments.

-- $FY 2006 -..
[rFY 2007

TENTATIVE
nEr* CMS 64 Cateoorv Of Service JUL-SEP 2OO5 f,cT-DEC 2005 JAN.MAR 2OO€ APR-JUN 2OO€ JUL.SEP 2OOf

1A Inpatient Hospital Services 50,660,147 44,239.858 46.U2.049 88.465.831 5E.918.270
1B Inpatient Hospital Services - DSH 13.494.023 13.466.67E 13.470.677 13.477.601 13.487.307
2A Mental Health Facilities 6.454.836 6.912.113 13.562.413 12,299.762 9,507,255
28 Mental Health Facilities - DSH 4.684.394 6.274.180 4,694,816 4,700,836 4.707,635
3 Nursinq FaciliW Services 98.020.447 98.903.504 100.422.510 96,189,829 97,857.721

4B Intermediate Care Facilities - Private
Providers

12,722,547 13,147,300 14,288,039 13,501,343 14,866,833

5 Physicians Services 33.583.781 30,844,222 32.178.805 35.100.502 21.530.207
6 Cutpatient Hospital Services 24,086,719 23.085.591 23.092.102 28.178.798 23.961.328
7 )rescribed Druqs 1 09,529.1 89 119.401.991 77.862.448 72j48.648 73.466.688
7 )art D Premium - State Onlv 0 0 6.871.393 6.832.317 7.036.703

7^.1 Drug Rebate Offset - National Q6.479.767) rc4.649.872\ e8.295.179 Q3.449.375) (24.866.438)
7M Drug Rebate Offset - State (6.074.088) rc.473.002 $.236.973, (10.749.249\ (6.169_739'

8 Dental Services 9.309.731 10.225.378 9.538.773 10,675,862 9,577,198
I Other Practitioners Services 5.745.239 5.127.471 5.390.387 6.262,9M 4,875.101
10 Clinic Services 9.029.258 9.030.351 11.577.234 7,711.808 9,870.649
11 Lab & Radioloqical Services 3.086.682 3.614.604 3,834,362 2.175.779 4,119.084
12 Home Health Services 6.908.765 7.280.231 7,528.U4 7.418.'t16 6.586.593
13 Hysterectomies/Sterilizations 165.370 161.149 207.520 159.288 '154.415
14 Pregnancy Termination 96.251 74,984 90,137 90,528 63.557
15 EPSDT Services 1.151.400 882.248 691,405 4.229.031 6.084.309
16 Rural Health Clinic Services 2.005.835 1,747,828 2.179.575 2.099.858 1.626.705

174 Medicare - Part A Premiums 3,620,829 6,261.928 4.152.571 4.108.236 2.784.018
'l7B Medicare - Part B Premiums 14.2't1.799 14.560.223 15.692.417 16.143.572 10.649.879
18A Manaqed Care Oroanizations 42.730.774 51,288.669 60.115.171 59.817.308 60.065.447
18C Group Health Plan Pavments 58,739 96.095 58.501 76.212 85.876
19 Home & Community-Based Services

(MR/DD)
46,486,558 45,677,907 45,757,241 47,796,799 46,848,858

20 Home & Community-Based Services
(Aqed/Disabled)

15,894,777 ls,026,274 15,203,425 14$47,406 13,690,928

23 Personal Care Services 5.982.676 5.952.653 6.417.084 8.491.635 8.911.936
24 fargeted Case Manaoement 2,210.932 2.398.029 2.284.222 2,593,955 2.044.433
25 Primarv Care Case Manaoement 140.880 122.419 ua.u4 192.360 187.203
26 Hospice Benefits 1,148,368 1.818.491 1.724.716 2,074,858 2.522.74'l
28 =ederally Qualified Health Center 4.022.834 4.348.762 5,572,223 3.907.444 3.357.046
29 Sther Care Services 26.938,503 25.585.317 26.768.853 32.342.339 28.088.551

Unclassified 9,229 1.855 6,837 10.477 211.611
ilt TOTALS 521,637,657 526.431.029 523,181,412 5tj9,(22,fj16 516,709,908

7 Medicaid Prescribed Druos 109.529.189 119,401,991 77.862.448 72,148,648 73,466,688
7.2 Medicare Part D Estimated) 0 0 28,266,867 28,106,119 28,946,904Ill Estimated Medicaid & Medicare

Prescribed Druo Pavments
109,529,189 r 19,401,991 106,129,315 140,2A,767 102,413,592
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Srere Clprol CoamLEx, Bullorr.rc 3, Roou 268 CnnRlesroru, Wesr VtRGtNtA 2SSOSTeuepnox* 304.558-0079 Fax 304-SSg-8tSg

December 29, 2006

The Honorable Earl Ray Tomblin, president
West Virginia Senate
State Capitol Building, Room ZZTM
Charleston, West Viqinia 2S30S

The Honorable Robert *Bob" Kiss, Speaker
West Virginia House of Delegates
State Capitol Building, Room Zg4M
Charleston, West Mrginia 2S30S

Dear President Tomblin and Speaker Kiss:

Pursuant to House Bill4084, SSA-3C-6, please find attached the Annual Report of
theWest Virginia Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council. The Annual Report is due
to the Joint Commiftee on Government and Finance on or befofe December 31 each
calendar year.

lf you have any questions regarding this report, ptease cail me at SSB-007g.

Chair

cc: Delegate Richard Thompson, candidate nominated to be Speaker of the House
Secretary Robert Ferguson, Jr.



2406 Annual Report of
the west virginia Pharmaceutical cost Management Gouncil

Authoritv to Act

S5A-3C'B (8) The council shall reporl to the Legislature's joint committee on
government and finance on or before the first day of September, two thousand four
and on or before the thirty-first day of December, two ihousand four and annually
thereafter to the Legislature and provide recommendations to the Legistature on
peded legislative action and otherfunctions established by the article i requested
by the joint commiftee on government and finance of the Legislature;

Executive Summary

This annual report details the actions taken by the West Virginia Pharmaceutical
Cost Management Councilfor calendar year 2006. The topics include the promulgation
of advertising reporting rules, joining group buying oryanizations, consideration of
electronic prescribing and progress of the central fiil pharmacy.

The Council met seven times during calendar year 2006. Minutes of each meeting
are attached in Appendix A.

Authority to Act

SSA'3C-13 (b)-T!e council shall establish, by legislative rute, the reporting
requirements of information by labelers and manufacturers which shall include all
national aggregate expenses associated with advertising and direct promotion of
prescription drugs through radio, television, magazines, newspapers, d irect mail and
telephone communications as they pertain to residents of this state.

, The Council discussed the draft Advertising Reporting Rule in detail at the May 24,
2006 meeting. At that meeting, the Council elected by a votaof 5-4 to delete Orug detailing
from the draft rule. In addition, modifications were made to the reporting tanguage ii
dealing with prescribers and the threshold for reporting payments io patient advoiacy
groups and pharmacies was raised from $1,000 to $10,000. The Council also voted to file
the reporting rule as an emergency rule in addition to the regutar legislative rulemaking
process.
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On June 27, the Council held..an-gmergency meeting to corect the language
regarding payments to prescribers so it reflected the modified'languag" 

"pprou"d 
6y t[e

!o.unc!l o1 lilay 24,2006. In addition, a{9r consulting with the West-Virlinia University
School of Medicine and Charleston Area MedicatGenier, the language delining a "Oona'-
fide clinicaltrial" was changed to read ""bona-fide clinicattrial" (as disci6eJ in W]G. d;
S5A-3(CX2)) means a clinicaltrialapproved by an appropriate Institutionat Review Board
and conducted in connection with a research studywhere the principal purpose is scientific
research."

Following the required 30day public comment period, the Council met on July 2g,
2006, to review the written comments. A total of 11 issues from the 10 comment letters
were considered- The Council voted on each of the issues and elected to keep the rule
intact.

On August 8, 2006, Secretary of State Betty lreland approved the Ernergency
Advertising and Reporting Rule. This Emergency Rule remains in effect for 15 monthi
unless superseded by a newly adopted regulir rule when and if that rule is passed bythe
|egis|ature.TheapprovedEmergencyRu|eisattachedinAppendixB.

. ^ The.leglslative Rulemaking Review Commiftee considered the regular Advertising
and Reporting Rule at its December 12, 2006 meeting. The Rule was laii overfor furthe-r
consideration during the Janua ry 2001 interims.

Group Buying Organizations

Authority to Act

S5A-3C-8 (d) The Council has the power and authority to:.....(3) Execute as
permifted by applicable federal law, prescription drug purchasing agreements with:
(C) Regional or multi-state purchasing alliances or coniortia, formed-for the pumose
of pooling the combined purchasing power of the individual members in order to
increase bargaining power; ,i :;

and

.a

S5A-3C-11 (b) The provisions of article three TSSSA-3-1 et seq.l, chapter five-a of
this code do not apply to the agreements ant contracts e'Gcuted under the
provisions of this article.

2



M innesota M ulti€tate Contracting All iance for Pharmacy (www.mmcap.org)

H'B' 4031 .was plssed by the West Virginia Legislature during the 2006 RegularLegislative Session' This bitl exempted the weJt Virginia ptiarmaceutical CostManagement councilfrom state purchasing statute and regr.rlations.

At the March 29, 2006 meeting the Councilvoted to join the Minnesota Multi-State
Contracling Alliance for Pharmacy 6nuCne1. MMCAF is a voluntary purchasing
consortium of 43 states and the Gity of Chicago. States become members'and enroii
MMCAP-eligible facilities. To enroll ii MMCAP, iacilities must be eligible to purchase from
a state contract.

MMCAP holds an open and competitive bid forpharmaceuticaldistribution services
for its members. Currently, there are three distributors under contract with MMcAp to
provide these services. Each member state must select one distributor to service its
MMCAP facilities. The Council contacted each of the three distributors and requested a
response to a uniform s,et of questions and for each distributor to make a West Virginia-
specific presentation. One distributor declined to participate. On September 22, iOO6,
AmeriSource Bergen and Cardinal Health made presentationsto an Evaluation Committee
and to the Council. The Council voted to accept the Evaluation Committee-'s
recommendation that Cardinal Health become West Virginia's MMCAP distributor. The
wriften presentations and the Evaluation Committee's lcoring of the presentations is
included in Appendix G.

'Cunently, the Counciland Office of the PharmaceuticatAdvocate are working with
the Association of Local Health Departments to enroll the county health departlment
facilities so they can book flu vaccine in January for the 2007 flu season. MMCAp
promises to provide significant savings on flu vaccine and other pharmaceutical products
to these facilities.

In addition, the Office of the Pharmaceutical Advocate is completing a cost and
logisticalcomparison of the MMCAP pricing to current contract pricing for medicalfacilities
operated by the Department of Health and Human Resources 

-and the Division of
Rehabilitation Services.

During 20A7 ,additional state and government-associated facilities will be evaluated
for entry into MMCAP.

340b Prime Vendor program

The Veteran's Healthcare Act of 1992 created a public health prescription drug
pricing program called 340b. Through the 340b program, a variety of eniities who receiv6
federal funding can access this pricing program. Eligible ent16s include, but are not
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limited to, federally-qualified health centers (FQHCs), certain disproportionate share
hosRitals (DSH), hemophilia treatment centers (nTCs), AIDS drug assiltance programs
(4DlP) and familypla.nning programs. 340b prices are a maximum of 51o/obetowavirage
wholesale prices (AWP) and approximately ig% below Canadian retail prices.

The federal Office of Pharmacy Affairs in the Department of Health and Human
Services conducts a competitive and open bid process to contract with one vendor to
purchase drugs on behalf of 340b-eligibte programs nationwide. The prime vendor
program uses the collective purchasing power of the 340b entities to expand the number
pharmaceuticals available at sub-340b prices.

The West Virginia Family Planning Program in the Office of Matemal, Child and
Family Health, Bureau for Public Health, Depirtment of Health and Human Resources
experience vast price changes in available contraceptives. As part of the Program's search
for more efficient and reliable ways of purchasing contraceptives, it asked the
Pharmaceutical Cost Management Councitto enterthe g4OO Prime Vendor Program. The
Councif voted without dissent to enter the program at its September 22,2006 meeting.
The Council and the Office of the PharmaceuticllAdvocate continues to work closety6ifr
the Family Planning Program to fulfill allthe documentation requirements for entry inio the
prime vendor program.

Electronic Prescribing

Authority to Act

S5A-3C-8 (8) The council shall report to the Legislature's joint committee on
govemment and finance on or before the first day of September, hffo thousand four
and on or before the thirty-first day of December, two ihousand four and annually
thereafter to the Legislature and provide recommendations to the Legislature on
needed legislative action and otherfunctions established bythe article or requested
by the joint committee on government and finance of the Legislature;

ln 2006, as part of the court settlement between Purdue Pharma, lncorporated and
the State of West Virginia, the West Virginia Attorney General's Office awarded a grant to
Concord University and Tygart Technologies, Incorporated. The grant funded a Jtudy to
investigate whether electronic prescribing could contribute to tne effectivenesj of
prescribers and pharmacists in preventing abuse. The Council heard from Mary Raliff of
Tygart Technologies in May on the progress of the report and in September afterihe report
was completed.

The report, entitled, Secure Electronic Prescriptions: Finding Solutions for
Inappropriate Prescribing and Abuse of OxyContin in West Virginia, citei the following:

4
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WestVirginia is one of onlyfourstates which prohibits etectronic prescribing;
electronic prescribing can identify and prevent prescription drug abuse;

electronic prescribing offers immediate significant savings and return on
investment is proven;

physician willingness to adopt electronic prescribing technology is greater
than for electronic medical records; and

networks currently exist to support electronic prescribing in West Virginia.

The three specific recommendations of the report are:

legislative action to remove the statutory prohibitions preventing electronic
prescribing;

theWestVirginia Prescription Drug Monitoring Program should be enhanced
to support data sharing and integration with commercial electronic
prescribing software; and

West Virginia state government should encourage and participate in a public-
private partnership to establish an electronic prescribing pitot in West
Virginia.

The Highlights and Executive Summary of the report aie attached in Appendix D.

At the December 13, 2006 meeting of the Council, Doug Douglas, Executive
Director of the West Virginia Board of Pharmacy discussed the necelsary statutory
modificationsthatwould be needed to permitelectronic prescribing. Mr. Douglas indicated
that a billto make these changes was in development. The Couniil voted to send a lefter
to the President, the Speaker and the Chairs of the Health Committees sharing its support
of this legislation, offering itself as a resource and asking the leaders to give'tul
consideration to this legislation. The letter appears in Appendix E.

Central Fill Pharmacy

In the fall of 2005, the Office of the Pharmaceutical Advocate retained TSG
Consulting to develop a business plan for a Central Fill Pharmacy for the working low-
income who do not have health insurance and are not eligible for public assistance. The
business plan was delivered on December 16, 2005.

At the January 13, 2006 meeting of the Council, TSG presented the plan and

1)

2l

3)
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recommended the following:

' the West Virginia Central Fill Pharmacy (CFP) should be modeled on the
successful Communicare program in South Carolina;

' the CFP is proiected to serve 5,000 people in the first year with a maximum
of 15,000 in the third year;

' the CFP should be an independent 501(cX3) with a licensed pharmacist; and

' legislation should be developed to allow for remote dispensing.

The business plan summary is attached in Appendix F.

After in depth review ard discussion, the Central Fill Subcommittee recommerded
that the Council accept the business plan as a useful and guiding document for the future
board of directors of the Central Fill Pharmacy and recommend to the Govemor and
Legislature to proceed with its implementation. The Council passed a motion accepting
the recommendation without dissent.

In May, the Office of the Pharmaceutical Advocate awarded a grant of $20,000 to
the West Virginia Health Care Education Foundation, the non-profii arm of the West
Virginia Hospital Association for the incorporation and development of a board for the
Central Fill Pharmacy. The Foundation agreed to act as a fiscal intermediaryforthe grant
at no charge.

As outlined in the following list of key events, an interim Executive Director and a
preliminaryBoardof Directorsis inp lace. Cu nentty,theBoard is reviewingand
considering a series of business models and potential partners. The Board expects to
choose a business model in 2007. Upon choosing a business model and/or a partner the
Board and staff of the Central Fill Pharmacy will seek relationships with pharmaceutical
manufacturers, non-profit organizations and foundations, educational institutions, and other
stakeholders in order to build the capacity to deliver affordable and appropriate
pharmaceutical products to thousands of uninsured andlor low-income West Virginians.

' Juty 1, 2006: Brian Cunningham was retained by the West Virginia Healthcare
Education Foundation to serve in the capacity of interim Executive Director of the WV
Central Fill Pharmacy.

' September 8, 2006: The Central Fill Pharmacy Board of Directors met for the first time
at the West Virginia Chamber of Gommerce offices in Charleston. Board members
were introduced to the Central Fill concept, reviewed legaldocuments including articles
of organization and by-laws, and
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November 11,2006: The second meeting of the Central Fill pharmacy Board of
Directors was held at the-West Virginia H6spital Association offices in cn"rr"rion.
Board members were offered an opportuniiy to review presentations on various
business models and organizationai-structuies including that of South Carolina
Communicare.

' December 13, 2006: The Central Fill Pharmacy Board of Directors met via conference
call in orderto discuss and consider competing business plans and operational modets.

Conclusion

During calendar year 2006, the Councilworked assiduously to fulfill the statutory
requirement to promulgate an advertising and reporting r.ule. The Cbuncil received a great
deal of.useful input from legislators, legislative sta*, the Secretary of State;s O"flfi:
professionalassociations, advocates anddrug manufacturers. Legisiative staff and staff
9f the Secretary of State's office provided guidince on following allfie requirements of the
legislative rulemaking process. The Council appreciates the assistance of these
professionals.

In 2007, the Council intends to work to further fulfill the remaining provisions of its
statutory mandate.
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WV Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Meeting Minutes
January 13, 2006

Govemor's Press Conference Roorn

Members Present: Shana Phares, Chair; Bill Lytton (representing Sandy Vanin;
Peggy King (representing Nancy Atkins); Keith Huffman; Kevin Outterson;
Wayne Spiggle; Jerry Roeche (representing Martha Walker); Steve Neil; J. J.
Bernabei; Leah Summers, Debbie Waller

others Present: Richard Stevens, wV pharmacists Association; Angela
vance, AARP; Jan Meinig, AstraZeneca; James R. Fealy, Law office of enilip
Reale; John Brown, Brown communications: Brian cunningham, wVpcA; p-nil
Schenk, WVPCA; Sharon Garte, WVCHIp; perry Bryant, WVAHC; Tony Gregory,
wVHA; Jack canfield, Jack canfield, LLC; cathy Burcham, centrar Firl
Pharmacy; cindy snyder, GlaxosmithKline; Dan Kurrand, covenant House;
Gregory Hoyer, Law Offices of Lewis Glasser Casey & Rollins; Nick Casey, Law
offices of Lewis Glasser casey & Rollins; wayne Miller; Forest Labs; Dan
Foster, wV Legislature; Thom Stevens, Government Relations specialists;
Raymona Kinneberg, Johnson & Johnson

shana Phares opened the meeting and asked for approvar of the
December 8, 2005 meeting minutes. Bill Lytton made a motion to approve the
minutes, Leah summers seconded and the motion passed unanimousty.

Shana discussed the materials presented to the group by Kevin
Outterson. Professor Outterson expressed his interest in being nominated by the
councilto serve on the united states Trade Representative (USTR).
Appointments include: 1) Public health or health care community representative
to the Industry Trade Advisory Committee on Chemicals, Pharmaceuticals, or 2l
the Industry Trade Advisory committee on Intellectuar property Rights.
Professor Outterson wanted a letter of recommendation by the Councilfor his
appointment to the above committees. Shana moved that a letter of
recommendation would be sent for Professor Outterson's appointment. Wayne
Spiggle seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously.

Phil Schenk and Brian Cunningham, Primary Care Association, updated
the group on 340b programs. A handout on the 340b drug program sites and a
status report on hospital participation in the 340b program were distributed.
They reported that under the curent regulations, in order for a hospital to
participate in the 340b programs, it must be receiving Medicare DSH payments
under the Medicare PPS program, and have a Medicare DSH percentage that
exceeds a specific threshold. Only 11 hospitals in West Virginia are eligible to
participate in the program. The WV HospitalAssociation has been exploring with
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Senator Rockefeller's office the possibility of adding CriticalAccess Hospitals,
which are exempt from Medicare PPS systems, and therefore ineligible for the
340b program, to the list of eligible entities under this program. There is
legislation pending before Congress regarding this issue. The WVpCA will
continue to monitor progress on this legislation. lf this legislation passes, WV's
19 criticalaccess hospitals could be participants in the 340b program.

The hope would be to get as many 340b programs as possible all over the
state. Hopefully, by the end of FY 2006, there will be a 340b program in the
northern panhandle.

shana informed the group that the dispensing fee is now $8.2s. This
issue will be discussed at the Medical Services Advlsory Councilthis aftemoon.

The next item of business was the NAco drug discount card. shana
distributed a draft of a letter to all the presidents of the county commissions in the
state. She read the letter to the group. A few changes were discussed. Wayne
spiggle made a motion to accept the letter with the changes. professor
Outterson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. A letterwill
be sent to all the presidents of the county commission in the state. The letter will
be signed by Shana Phares as the Chair of the Council and also as the Acting
Pharmaceutical Advocate.

Dr. Spiggle put forth a motion to the Council regarding the importation of
prescription medications. Dr. Spiggle asked the group to read the motion.

The West Virginia Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
recommends that the West Virginia Legislature should collaborate with the State
of lllinois, wisconsin, Kansas, Vermont, and Missouri in the program known as l-
SaveRx, a clearinghouse that provides access to imported medications for its
citizens. Discussion ensued on the motion. Professor Outterson was in favor of
the motion and thinks importation is a good thing for the state. Leah Summers
and others stressed their stand on this issue from the beginning. lt is not legal in
the State of WV to import drugs until the purchasing laws are changed. There
was discussion regarding the marketing of the 340b programs. There was no
consensus reached on this agenda item. Dr. Spiggle withdrew the motion. The
council accepted the withdrawal.

Professor Outterson made a motion that the Council recognizes that
importation is not the best route. The council recognizes that many West
Virginians are now buying foreign drugs over the internet because drugs are so
expensive. ln order to provide a safer local alternative, the State is rapidly
expanding the 340b program throughout West Virginia. The councilwill market
the expansion of 340b programs, and the centralfill pharmacy. The council
encourages any West Virginians buying foreign drugs to enroll in the 340b



qrogram being offered in the State of WV. J.J. Bernabie seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

Keith Huffman will present the draft of the legislative rule on the reporting
form at the next Council meeting.

shana Phares asked peggy King to report on Medicare part D. peggy
reported that WV is in a much better position than other states on the MediCare
Pa.$ D Prescription Drug pran. The Bureau for Medical services set up a
collaborative and non-partisan MMA workgroup over a year ago to plan for the
implementation and challenges posed by part'D. wV beganlhnning for the
implementation of Part D well before otfrer states. Partneiships with t-he federal
government, numerous other state agencies and the private sector enabled the
Department to better serve wV's dual eligible populaiion.

Also the Call Center located at the Bureau of Senior Services has been
a great asset to the Medicare Part D. Four lines come into the call center being
manned by volunteers who have been trained on the issues. A question was
brought up regarding how many people have applied for the Low Income
Supplement. Bill Lytton wasn't sure, but would get the information to Shana. Mr.
Lyttol provided by phone the foilowing numbers since November 1s, 130
people have signed up for the low-income supplement. Everyone is pre-
screened.

Shana introduced Tom Susman, TSG Consulting to discuss the business
plan for the Central Fill Pharmacy. TSG Consulting wai retained by Governor
Joe Manchin and the PharmaceuticalAdvocate Office to develop a business plan
for the establishment of a Central Fill Pharmacy for the working poor who do not
have health insurance or public assistance. The medicationJfor the CFp would
be donated by participating pharmaceutical manufactures. (you may obtain the
business plan summary on the Council's website at:

under presentation documents. )

Some highlights of the plan:
. Based on the South Carolina Communicare program
r Poected to serve s,000 people in the first year with a maximum

of 15,000 in the third year.
. Recommended to be an independent s01o 3 with a licensed

pharmacist
o Recommends legislation to allow for remote dispensing

It is recommended that the state fund no more than $300K per year. Also
funds from the AG's office from the Oxycontin settlement committeO $bOOX tor
this project but has not been verified at this time. Partial year funding could
come from the PharmaceuticalAdvocate's Office rolloveifrom FY ZOOS witn
match from Benedum.
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This will take lots of energy and communication. The central Fill
Pharmacy will meet again before the Council's next meeting and report back to
the Councilat the February meeting.

The next meeting was scheduled for Friday, February 10, 2006 at g:30
a.m. Debbie Waller will check to see if the Govemor's Press Conference Room
is available at that time. Afler checking, the Press Room is not available untit
12230 so the next council meeting will be 12:30 - 3:30 p.m. in the
Governor's Press Conference Room.

Some agenda items for the February 10 meeting:

r Revisit Marketing Piece
. Report from Central Fill Phannacy
r Strategy for 340b (Shana will need some help in reviewing contracts

(Leah and Kevin for assistance) J.J & steve (prescribing patterns)

shana asked if there was any other business for today. Dr. Spiggle made a
motion for the adjournment of the meeting. Steve Neil seconded the motion and
the motion passed unanimously.

Next Meeting: February 10,2006, i2:30 p.m. in the Governor's press
Gonference Room



WV Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Meeting Minutes
March 29,2006

Governor's Press Conference Room
12:OO - 4:00 p.m.

Members Present: shana Phares, Chair; Leah summers; Felice Joseph; Jerry
Roesche (representing secretary Martha warker); wayne spiggle, J. J.
Bernabei; Peggy King (representing commissioner Nancy Atkirs)

9thers Pregent: Larry swann, PhRMA/Merck; pat white, wV Health Right;
James Fealy, Law offices of Philip A. Reale; steve Liles, provider syneigies;
Tamara Tolliver, WV Association of Free Clinics; Jeff Graham, Beckiey Health
Right; Jim wallace, TSG consulting; steve Haid, BMS; scott Finn, charleston
Gazette; Perry Bryant, WVAHC; Tony Gregory, WV HospitalAssociation; Sharon
carte, wVCHIP; Peggy King, BMS (Medicaid); pat weaver, sankyo; Larry
Messina, Associated Press; Gregory Hoyer. LGCR; Raymona Kinneberg, Bill J.
croach & Associates; Jeff Johnson, wV senate staff; Gaylene Miller, nnhp;
Brian Cunningham, WVPCA; Mark DiMaio, AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals; Jan
Meinig, AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals; philip Reale, phRMA; Ronnie coleman,
Schering-Plough; John Brown, phRMA; Josh Maclntire, WeBE - Charleston;
Brent Fushimi, Sankyo; Thom stevens, Government Relations specialist;
Richard D. Stevens, WV Pharmacists Association

shana Phares opened the meeting and wercomed everyone. gheggkecf

Iq a motlon to approv . pi. 
-WavQe spiogle made a motion to approve the minutes as submJiied. Leah

summers seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimousiv.

shana discussed upcoming meetings of the pcMc. Dr. spiggle had
made a request to schedule meetings in advance. After discussion, lhe
following meetings of the PCMC were scheduled:

Wednesday, April 26, 2A06
Wednesday, May 24,20A6
Wednesday, June 28, 2006

Debbie Waller will confirm location of the meetings as soon as possible. The
Governor's Press Conference Room will be used if available.

Central Fill Pharmacv Committee Renort and presentation

Dr. Spiggle shared with the group the recommendation of the Central Fill
subcommittee after reviewing the Business Plan that was prepared by TSG
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Consultants. The subcommittee recommended acceptance of the business plan
as a useful advisory document.

Dr. Spiggle introduced Tamara Tolliver, WV Association of Free Clinics, to
qresent a powerpoint presentation on an option for the Central Fill Pharmacy.
Ms. Tolliver shared with the group a fact sheet noting statistical information on
uninsured residents in the State of WV. She pointed out that the pcMc
recommended that the Central Fill Pharmacy be implemented utilizing a private,
501(CX3) status - securing available medications into one location wfrile
streamlining the process for participation. She stated that instead of reinventing
the wheel, build on the WV Free Clinic model, but pull in the experience of efforts
that are working in other states: Maryland, Georgia, South Carolina, Minnesota,
etc. By using a WV Free Clinic site, no legislative changes would be needed.
Beckley Health Right Free Clinic has space to accommodate the CFp at no
additional expense. The CFP would be under the same 501(CX3) status as the
free.clinic so they would not have to apply for their own. A steeiing committee
would be established to oversee the CFp under Beckley Health nigrtt.

_ Dr. Spiggle is working on getting letters of support for the Central Fill
Pharmacy from companies, organizations, etc. to be sent to the Governor.

Shana Phares stated that the business plan recommended that the CFP
be physically located in Charleston with their own 501(CX3) only an option for the
CFP.

Shana shared with the group that H.B. 4031, which passed the
Legislature, states that purchasing regulations do not apply to agreements and
contracts executed by the PCMC. She also shared with the group that the
western states Contracting Alliance presented to a group of itate agency
peopfe, and others on March2a-22,2006. She shared with them a powerpoint
presentation on MMCAP. MMCAP is a consortium of 43 states and the City of
Chicago. MMCAP maintains contracts for: PharmaceuticalsA/accines/OTCs.
Hospital & Medical Supplies, Influenza Vaccine, Prescription Filling, etc. Each
state has a membership agreement with MMcAp. you can visit MMCAp's
website at www.mmcap.org to learn more. Shana also reported that funds to
purchase antibiotics for Threat Preparedness expire 8/31/06. Shana asked the
Councilfor a vote to pursue membership in MMCAP. Dr. Spiggle made a motion
to Pursue membership in MMCAP without concerns: Felice Joseph seconded the



Shana updated the group on what was going on with the Pharmaceutical
Advocate. A powerpoint presentation was disiribuied for everyone's review.

o A contract is in process to include the Division of Rehabilitation
services (hospitals) and DHHR state Hospitals - when new
contract is in place for April 1, the rate will be cost - .175o/o.. Department of Military Affairs buys $600-$300 in OTC drugs for the
State Police Academy at slightly below AWP - will now be supplied
through Division of Rehabilitation Services. Also working with PEIA
on prescriptions for injured troopers on Workers'Comp.

. Expand the number of clinics using 340b anangements.

. Enhanced dispensing fee of $8.25. CMS has until June 17, 2006 to
approve or question. Estimated annual savings to Medicaid -
$450,000.

. 340b AIDS Drug Assistance Program - ADAP currently operates
on a rebate mode. By using the Division of Rehabilitaiion
Seryices, ADAP couldpurchlse drugs direcily through 340b. 340b Hemophilia - Hemophilia Treatment Centers are eligible for
340b. Ongoing discussions with CAMC, Bureau of Public Health,
Medicaid, PEIA and CHlp

o 340b PEIA - Ongoing discussions between WVPCA and pElA
about a 340b pilot

Peggy King, Bureau of Medical Services (Medicaid), introduced Steve
Liles, Provider synergies. Mr. Libs spoke to the group about rop$ - The
Optimal PDL Solution. lt is a state Medicaid pharmaceutical purchasing pool,
administered by Provider Synergies, L.L.c. In April of 200b, charter members
included Louisiana, Maryland and west Virginia. They now have added
wisconsin and Delaware. More to join in 2006. The purpose of rop$ is to
generate additional savings for each participating state and to reduce
expenditures for pharmaceuticals for the Medicaid population. provider
Synergies utilizes each state's individual drug utilization data and recommends
the best action for each state. Each state's P&T committee acts independently.
There has been a savings in WV's PDL of over $145 million through 2005. A
question and answer period followed,

Shana reported on the establishment of additional subcommittees. The
subcommittees include:

o E_prescribing
o Professional Education Programs
r Polypharmacy and Utilization Review

Shana and Debbie willget some background information on each subcommittee
and send out to members and get people signed up for the subcommittees.
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Shana asked were there other issues. Being none. Felice Joseoh made a
motion to adiourn the meetinq. J. J. Bernabei seconded the motion and the
motion passed unanimousllt

Next meeting - April 26, 12:00 - 4:00 p.m. - Debbie will send an e-mail to
everyone and confirm location.



WV Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Meeting Minutes

May 24,2006

Members Present: shana Phares, Chair, Kevin outterson, Felice Joseph, Leah
summers, steve Neal, Peggy King (representing Nancy Atkins), Jerry Roueche
(representing Martha walker), wayne spiggle, sandra Vanin, Debbie waller,
(Staff), Hardy Scragg (Staff)

Shana Phares opened the meeting and asked for approval of the March
29, 2006 Council Meeting Minutes. Peggy King asked that an amendment be
made to the minutes on Page 3; change Medicare to Medicaid. Peggy King
made a motion to approve the minutes as amended. Felice Joseph seconded
and the motion passed unanimously.

Shana introduced Mary Ratliff, Tygart Technology, Inc. who presented to
the group a power point presentation on lmplementing Technology to lmprove
Care, Reduce Cost and Fight Prescription Drug Abuse. Ms. Ratliff reported that
E-prescribing is an integrated network. The network provides real-time data.
Prescriber flexibility is the key. You have hardware options, location options,
integration options.

Medicare Part D rules require alle-prescribing systems to use common
standards. Many of the key standards are already in place and all systems are
HIPAA compliant. Essential features of e-prescribing:

o Patient data
. Drug data
o Clinical decision support
o Pharmacy selection
. Medication history
o Electronic transmission and receipt
o Streamlined renewal

The steps needed to move forward:

o Speed elimination of legal barriers
. ldentify partners to support pilot
. Design e-prescribing pilot

-goals
-prescribers
-e-prescribing system
-measurement of results
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You can view the power point presentation on the council's website at

Shana thanked Mary for the presentation. Shana suggested that the
Board of Pharmacy appear at our next meeting and react to the issue of e-
prescribing. Dr. Spiggle also wanted the Boaid of Pharmacy to explain their
take on remote dispensing

. Shana suggested holding off on the Central Fill Pharmacy Update and the
Subcommittee Appointments untilthe June meeting so that nprb time could be
spent on the Marketing Reporting Rule. Also at the June meeting we will hear
presentations from 3 distributors so that councilcan make a decision which
distributor to select regarding MMCAP.

Shana updated the group on the legislative rule making process regarding
the Marketing Reporting Rule. The regurar rure-making stepJare:

o Initial Filing
. public Comment (30-day period)
r Public Hearing (optional unless required by legislation authorizing

rule
o Agency Approved Filing (no later than g0 days after hearing or

close of comment period)
o Review and approval by Legislative Rule Marking and Review

Commiftee (usually during interims, may be amended by
committee)

o Modified Rule Filing (if committee requests modifications, agency
files modified rule.

. Review and Approval by House & Senate Committee(s). Passage in House and Senate
r Signature by Governor - Final Filingo Effective Date

Filed as an Emergency Rule:

o Submit to the Secretary of State's Office for approval
r Goes the same process as above.

Shana asked that Professor Outterson go through the rule one section at
a time and the council should determine if the rule performs to statute.

No change
No change
No change

a.
b.
c.

Pnarmaceuticat nOv

Section 2.1:



Section 3.1

Section 3.2

Appendix A

Add prescription drugs - Should read: "Dispensed" or
'Dispensing" means the act of selling or prwiding
pharmaceutical drugs or prescription druos to a member of the
general public, usually performed by a licensed pharmacist or
other licensed health care provider.
Add or pharmaceutical drugs for human-use - Should read:
"Prescrlption drugs" or "pharmaceutical drugs" means drugs for
human use for which a prescription is required for the drug to be
legally dispensed.
No change
No change

a. Remove marketing in the 4th sentence.

a. No change

I
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d.

e.

f.
g.

Heading: Remove Marketing

1. Remove Last Sentence "Since Generic drugs are not generally
subject to Advertising or Marketing, if a Drug Manufacturer's,
Pharmaceutical Manufacture's, or Labeler's predominate line of
business is Generic drugs, the entity is not required to report under
this Form.

2. After much discussion on#2 - 5-4 vote passed to delete entire
paragraph. The vote carried.

3. After much discussion and Amy Tolliver, WV Medical
Association, referred to a letter sent to Keith Huffman when the
rule was being written from the WV MedicalAssociation, it was
agreed that an amendment was necessary. Dr. Spiggle made a
motion to include the language from the WV State Medical
Association which reads: " Report the aggregate amount of
payments made by the Company directly or indirectly to all West
Virginia prescribers except those items excluded under 5A-3c-13
(3). The Company need not report total annual amounts under
$10,000 per year. The motion carried with one opposing vote.

4. No change. - Passed with 1 opposing vote.

5. Change $1,000 to $10,000 in sentence 6. Passed with
1 opposing vote.

6. Change $1,000 to $10,000 in sentence 4. Passed with 1

opposing vote and 1 abstaining vote.
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7. Retain as is. Passed

8. Retain as is. Passed

Change last sentence: I certify that this form is true, conect and complete -
change to: I believe that this form is true, conect and complete.

Shana read the process of an emergency rule. Shana asked the Councit
for a vote to file the modified reporting form as an emergency rule. The vote
was 54. The reporting form will be modified and sent to the Secretary of State's
Office.

Peggy King made a motion to adjoum. Felice Joseph seconded the
motion. The motion canied.

Next Meeting: June 28, 2006



WV Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Emergency Meeting

June 27,2AA6
WV Development Office Conference Room

1:30 p.m.

Members Present or Participating by Conference Call:

Shana Phares, Chair: Felice Joseph; Bill Lytton (representing Sandra Vanin):
Jerry Roueche (representing Martha Walker); Dr. Wayne Spiggle; Kevin
outterson, J. J. Bernabei; Leah summers. Debbie waller, staff, Hardy scragg,
Staff

The meeting was called to order by Shana Phares. The business of the
day was to review the amended emergency rule for Pharmaceutical Advertising
Expense Reporting.

Page 1 - Bona-fide clinicaltrial. Language was changed based on
conversations with the WV University Schoolof Medicine and Charleston Area
Medical Center. lt now reads: "Bona-fide clinicaltrial" (as described in W.Va.
Code S5A-3C-13(cX2)) means a clinicaltrial approved by an appropriate
Institutional Review Board and conducted in connection with a research study
where the principle purpose is scientific research.

Page 2 - The PharmaceuticalAdvocate proposed that the definition of
'West Virginia Drug Detailer" be removed as it is not referenced in the text of the
rule.

On Appendix A, tables were added which prescribes a specific reporting
format to make the Appendix a reporting form.

On Appendix A, page 3, the paragraph about requiring reporting of
payments to West Virginia prescribers was the initial reason for the emergency
meeting. When the emergency rule was submitted, after the Council meeting on
May 24,2006, a mistake was made by the Pharmaceutical Advocate Office and
the language was not correct as stated in the notes from the meeting. Shana
sent an e-mail to members and others early this morning for their review. lt
reads: Complete the following table. List the number of West Virginia
Prescribers whose total amount of individually received gifts, grants or payments
of any kind made directly or indirectly by the company fall within the numerical
categories. ltems excluded under Section 5A-3C-13(c) shall not be included in
the annual payment amounts:
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After discussion, a motion was made by J. J. Bemabei and seconded by
Bill Lytton to accept this pafticular section of the Appendix. The vote passed 6-2,
with Leah Summers and Felice Joseph opposing.

Shana then asked for a vote for accepting the entire document. The vote
passed 6-2, with Leah Summers and Felice Joseph opposing. Felice noted that
her reason for opposing was she doesn't feel it falls under thb scope of the
Council's authority.

A justification nanative on the emergency rule was e-mailed to everyone
on.IVlonday, June 26th. An amended version wls e-mailed to everyone on June
27In with a new paragraph added. Shana reported that the Pharmaceutical
Advertising Expense Reporting Form would be e-mailed to everyone this
afternoon and also a copy of the justification narrative. lf after reviewing the
narrative, comments can be submitted to the PharmaceuticalAdvocate Office by
Noon on June 28h. The emergency rule will be filed at the Secretary of State's
Office by 5:00 p.m. on June 28h.

Shana asked for a motion to adjourn. Felice Joseph made the motion to
adjourn; Bill Lytton seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

AnnualAggregate Amount of Gifts,
Grants and Payments

Total Number of Prescribers

$1,000 - $2,500
$2,501 - $5,000
$i:-0!1- $t,5gg_
$7,501 - $10,000
$10,001 or over



WV pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
July 28, 2006

1:00 p.m.
Tiger Morton Conference Room

Meeting Minutes

Members Participating: shana Phares, chair, J.J. Bernabei, wayne spiggle,
Kevin outterson, Leah summers, steven Neil, peggy King, representing-Nancy
Atkins, Martha walker, Bill Lytton, representing sandra vinin, Keith Huffman,

The meeting was called to order. The only agenda item is to consider
comments that were submitted to the PharmaceuticilAdvocate Office regarding
the emergency rule.

Comments

1) Delete gifUgrants/payments to patient advocacy groups - submitted by Men's
Health Center, Wyeth Pharmaceuticals, PHRMA

2) Limit all of the requested data submissions to aggregate expenses for the
advertising/direct promotion of drugs and delete allietdrences to public release
of company submissions and information - submitted by Biotechnology Industry
Organization, Genentech, Wyeth Pharmaceutica ls, pH RMA

3) Restore drug detailing disclosure - submitted by AARP West Virginia, West
Virginians for Affordable Health care and Deregate Don perdue

After much discussion. Steven Neil moved to reiect the comment. Dr. Spiqqle
seconded. The motion carried

4) Align definition of dispensing in advertising reporting rule with the definition of
dispensing in the West Virginia Board of Pharmacy's rules - submitted by the
WV Pharmacists Association.

carried.
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5) Change references in rule from drugs to prescription drugs to exclude OTC
products - Wyeth Pharmaceuticals

Steven Neil moved to reiect the comment. Bill Lvtton seconded. The motion
canied.

6) Council does not have authority to collect data by individual presoiption drug,
only in the aggregate - submitted by Wyeth Pharmaceuticals, PHRMA

Martha Walker moved to reiect the comment. Bill LWon seconded. The motion
carried.

7) Payments to physicians is beyond the scope of the statute - submitted by
PHRMA

Dr. Spiqqle moved to reiect the comment. Peogv Kinq seconded. The motion
canied.

8) Question regarding payments to pharmacies is ambigious and beyond the
scope of the statute - submitted by PHRMA

Dr. Spiqole moved to reiect the comment. Steven Neil seconded. The motion
carried.

9) Delete "clinicaltrials which do not qualify a bona fide clinicaltrial must be
reported. Clinicaltrials are already identified in the statute and are publicly
avaihble - submitted by PHARMA.

Dr. Spiqsle moved to reiect the comment. Steven Neil seconded. The motion
carried.

10) Signature block is repetitive - Delete first sentence in the signature block and
revise the signature line to read, "Based on information and belief, I certify that
the information provided is true, correct and complete - submitted by PHRMA.

Dr. Spiqqle moved to reigct the comments. Peqgv Kinq seconded. -The motion
carried.

1 1) Use only prescription drugs in rule and drop pharmaceutical drugs and drugs
- submitted by PHRMA.

Dr. Spioqle moved to reiect the comment. Martha Walker seconded. The motion
carried.



!2) Advertising rule does not constitute an emergency - submitted by wyeth
Pharmaceuticals, PHRMA

Comments and letters of response will be submitted to the Secretary of State's
Office before 5:00 p.m. today, July 28, 2006.

Steven Neil made a motion to adioun. Bill LWon seconded. The motion carried.

rrb*it 
"r "n "r"ro"nay 

rrle.do not n""d , foilo*-rp uot*
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WV Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council
Meeting Minutes

September 22,2006
WV Development Office Conference Room

Members Present: Shana Phares, Chair; Peggy King (representing Nancy Atkins);
Jerry Roeche (representing Martha Walker); Felice Joseph; Wayne
Spiggle; J. J. Bemabei; Leah Summers; Sandy Vanin; Debbie
Waller, Staff

others Present: Angela Vance, MRP; Dan Kurland, Covenant House; Marsha
Monis, House of Delegates; Richard Stevens, WV Pharmacists
Association; Gregory Hoyer, Rite Aid; Jack Canfield, GSK; John
Brown, Brown Communications; Phil Kabler, Charleston Gazefte;
Phil Reale, PHrma

Shana Phares opened the rneeting and welcomed everyone in attendance and
the members participating by conference call.

Selection of MMCAP Distributor

Shana updated the group on the MMCAP process. The State of West Virginia
recently joined MMCAP. The State is in the process of choosing a distributor. Three
vendors were asked by the PhannaceuticalAdvocate Office to complete a Request for
Presentation. Cardinal Health and Amerisource Bergen responded to the request.
An evaluation committee made up of Shana, Scott Brown, Pharmacist, Cabin Creek
Health Center, representing the Primary Care Center; Jimmy Plear, Deputy Director,
Regional JailAuthority; Kristy Pritt, CFO, Behavioral Health and Health Facilities;
Saundra Boyd, Pharmacist, Department of Education and the Arts, Division of
Rehabilitation Services; Todd Hudnall, Process Efficiency Specialist, Governor's Public
Works Project.

Both Cardinal Health and AmerisourceBergen presented to the Evaluation
Committee and a score sheet was used to rate the distributors on criteria taken from the
Request for Presentation.

By a request from a Council member, Cardinal Health and Amerisource also
presented to the Council; Cardinal Health presenting first. A question and answer
period followed.



Housekeeoino

Shana asked for a motion to accept the May 24,2006 minutes. Felice Joseph

passed bv consensus.

The June 27 ,2006 minutes of the Council were reviewed. Dr. Spiqsle made a

passed bv consensus.

The July 28, 2006 minutes of the Council were reviewed. Dr. Sniqqte rnade a
and

bv consensus.

Being ahead of the agenda, Shana asked Dr. Spiggle to give a brief update on
the Central Fill Pharmacy. Dr. Spiggle reported that Brian Cunningham was hired as
interim Executive Director and a board of directors have been choien. The board met
on September 8 and reviewed draft by-laws, articles of organization, and mission
statement including goals and strategies. The Board witl also be working on whether to
be a free-standing pharmacy or join with a free clinic. A question was asked as to
whether the board meetings were going to be public meetings. The board will visit that
issue when they become incorporated.

Shana asked Council members to share agenda items with her by e-mailfor the
next meeting.

340b Prime Vendor Program

Shana introduced Hardy Scragg who is working with the Pharmaceutical
Advocate Office to share with the group some benefiti of the 340b prime Vendor
Program. Authorization will be requested by the Council to join the 340b prime Vendor
Program on behalf of the Family planning program.

Hardy reported that as part of the original 3408 legislation, the government was
also required to establish a prime vendor program. fneFVp serves iis participants in
tl[ee primary roles: a) Negotiating sub-340b pricing on pharmaceuticals, b) Esiablishing
distribution solutions and networks that access to affordable medications, and c)
Providing other value-added products and service. PRP does not affect any other
contracts. HPPI was awarded the Prime Vendor contract in 2OO4 and the extension in
2006. PRP's mission is to improve access to affordable medications for covered
entities and their patients. The benefits of PVP to covered entities: 1) No risk or cost to
participate, 2) No change of distributor required, 3) Maximize pharmacy purchasing
power through single national program, 4) Access to sub-ceiling prices for drugs and
discounts on other products/services, 5) Longer term contracts to base formulary
decisions, and 6) Special contracting initiatives for hospitals, community health centers,
and family planning clinics.
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AmeriSourceBergen then presented to the Council. A question and answer
period followed.

Shana shared the score sheet from the Evaluation Committee. Cardinal Health
scored the highest. J. J. Bemebei made a motion to acceot the Evaluation comminee
recommendation. Felice Joseph seconded the m
consensus.

Mary Ratliff shared with the Council a final report entitled "secure Electronic
Prescriptions: Finding Solutions for Inappropriate Prescribing and Abuse of OxyContin
in West Virginia". The findings from this report suggest early action. Listed below
are the recommendations:

1- Pursue immediate legislative action to remove legal barriers.2- Enhance the WV Prescription Drug Monitoring Prigram for electronic
prescribing interface

3- Initiate a wV e-prescribing pilot with 3s0 to s00 physicians.

The PharmaceuticalAdvocate Office willwork on inviting Doug Douglas, Board
of Pharmacy to present at our next Gouncil meeting.

- Beinq no tufh9!,bu n to adiourn the meetins.
Dt.Soiqql" r*"ond"d th" rotion. Th"



west virginia Pharmaceutical cost Management council
Meeting Minutes

December 13, 2006

Meeting held in the WV Development Office Conference Room

Members Present: shana Phares, chair; Felice Joseph, pErA; John Law
(representing Martha Walker, DHHR); J. J. Bernabei (participated by conference
call); Leah Summers, Mylan Laboratories; Kevin butterson (participated by
conference call);Todd Hudnall, Stafi; Debbie Waller, Staff

Shana Phares opened the meeting and welcomed everyone. The minutes
from the September 22, 20AO council meeting were reviewed. Felice Joseoh
{Lade a motion to aporove the September 22. 2006 minutes as written. Leah
surnmers seconded the motipn and thq qnotion passed bv consqnsus.

Shana introduced Doug Douglass, Executive Director and General
Counsel of the WV Board of Pharmacy. Mr. Douglas reported that legislation is
being drafted to modify state law that bars the electronic transmission of
prescriptions. West Virginia is one of four states that prohibits e-prescribing.
The Board of Pharmacy has been working closely with the Governoi's Office to
draft corrective legislation.

Mary Ratliff reported to the council in September and shared the final
report entitled "Secure Electronic Prescriptions: Finding So/ufrons for
lnappropriate Prescribing and Abuse of axyContin in West virginia." The
recommendations from that report were 1) pursue immediate legislative action to
remove legal barriers, 2) enhance the WV Prescription Drug Monitoring Program
for electronic prescribing interface, and 3) initiate a WV e-prescribing pilot with
350 to 500 physicians.

A motion was made bv J.J. Bernabei for the council to support the Board
of Pharmacv to introduce leqislation that would remove statutorv barriers to e-
prescribinq. Felice Joseph second.ed the motion and the motion passed bv
consensus.

Consistent with statute and past practice, the Chair will draft a letter to the
President of the Senate and Speaker of the House with a copy to the legislative
health committee chairs expressing the Council's support for e-prescribing
legislation.

Shana Phares reported on the Advertising Rule. The Legislative
Rulemaking Review Committee considered on the rule at the December
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legislative interims. There was a technical error when the rule was filed. The rule
should have been submitted under the Pharmaceutical Cost Management
Council not the PharmaceuticalAdvocate Office. The rule was laid over and will
be revisited at the January interims. To clarify the technical enor, a letter from
Secretary Ferguson, Department of Administration, documenting that Ms. phares
was designated as chair of the Phannaceutical Cost Management Council on
December 1, 2005 and copies of the minutes that reflect votel by the Council in
support of the Advertising Rule will be distributed to the Co-chairs of the
Legislative Rulemaking Review Committee and the Health Committee Chairs.

Ms. Phares informed the Council that Counsel for the Legislative
Rulemaking Review Committee has requested that some instructions be included
on the Advertising Reporting Fonn. ln addition, a definition of direct to consumer
(DTC) advertising was requested to be included in the rule body. Ms. Phares
presented the DTC definition used by the Food and Drug Administration. Kevin
Outterson suggested that the be changed to reflect what was written in statute.
Professor Outterson's suggestion was accepted without objection. The Chair wilt
forward the modified rule to the Council then will submit the revised rule to the
Legislative Rulemaking Review Commiftee.

The next Council meeting will be set up after the January interims.
Debbie willwork with members to secure a date.

Todd Hudnall, Senior Project Manager, Pharmaceutical Advocate Office,
updated the group onMMCAP. The Counciljoined MMCAP and Cardinal Health
was chosen as the distributor. Shana and Todd made a presentation to the local
health departments and are getting them signed up to participate in MMCAP.
The health departments will be able to purchase flu vaccines at a significant
savings.

There will be an update on the Central Fill Pharmacy at the January
council meeting.

Shana gave a brief update on the PharmaceuticalAdvocate's activities.

o Working with PEIA and Primary Centers - 340b prescription drugs
- pilot set up - started September 6, 2000 - evaluate after g
months

r The Advocate worked with Express Scripts to promote Rx
Outreach, their low-cost, generic mail order program

o The Advocate also worked closely with_Wal-Mart to bring their $4
generic drug program to West Virginia

r Heinz Family Philanthropies- Heinz provides free technical
assistance on pharmaceutical issues for states. The
Philanthropies will be working on four issues for West Virginia.
Debbie will send Council members a copy of the letter from the



Governor to Heinz on specific projects that Heinz is working on in
West Virginia.

. Shana will e-mail draft of the annual report for members to review.
Will be submitted by December 30, 2000

There being no further business, Felice Joseph made a motion to adioum
the meetino. Kevin Outterson seconded lhe motion. The motion passed bv
consensus.
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Appendix A

Appendix B

Appendix G

Appendix D

Appendix E

Appendix F

Appendices

Minutes of all Council meetings for calendar year 2006

Approved Emergency Advertising and Reporting Rule

Cardinal Health Presentation, Amerisource Bergen Presentation
and MMCAP Evaluation Committee Scoring Sheet

Secure Electronic Prescriptions: Finding Solutions for I nappropriate
Prescribing and Abuse of OxyContin in West Virginia - Highlights
and Executive Summary

Letter to the President of the Senate, Speaker of the House and
Chairs of the Health Legislative Committees recommending
support of legislation to remove statutory baniers to electronic
prescribing

TSG Consulting Business Plan for the Central Fill Pharmacy -
Executive Summary

8
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TITLE 206
LEGISLATIVE RULE

WEST VIRGINIA PHARMACEUTICAL COST MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

SERIES 1

PHARMACEUTICAL ADVERTISING EXPENSE REPORTING

S 206-1-1. General.

1.1 Scope. This Rule establishes the reporting requirements of all
manufacturers and labelers of prescription drugs disponsed in this state, that employ,
direct" or utilize marketing representatives, as mandated by W.Va. Code $5A-3C-13, - 15.

' 1.2 Authority. - - W.Va Code $5A-3C-8(d), -13, -15 Executive Order No. l8-
04.

1.3 Filing Date. - -

1.4 Effective Date. - -

$206-1-2. Definitions.

2.1 Terms not defined in this rule have the meanings ascribed to them by
W.Va. Code $5A-3C. As used in this rule:

"Aggregate" or'oaggregate data" includes information collected by the Council
which does not disclose personally-identifiable information about specific West Virginia
Prescribers or which does not otherwise identify specific individuals or companies.

"Aggregate list" includes the information put into the report by the Council,
pursuant to W.Va Code $5A-3C-13(e) and which contains only aggregate data.

"Bona-fide clinical trial" (as described in W.Va. Code $5A-3C-13(cX2)) means a

clinical trial approved by an appropriate Institutional Review Board and conducted in
connection with a research study where the principle purpose is scientific research.

"Dispensedoo or "Dispensingo'means the act of selling or providing prescription
drugs or pharmaceutical drugs to a member of the general public, usually performed by a
licensed pharmacist or other licensed health care provider.

"Prescription drugs" or "pharmaceutical drugs" means drugs for human use for
which a prescription is required for the drug to be legally dispensed.
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"West Virginia Prescriber" means a physician or other health care professional
licensed to prescribe pharmaceutical drugs in the State of West Virginia.

$ 206-f-3. Required Reporting.

3.1 After the effective date of these rules, all drug manufacturers,
pharmaceutical manufacturers, andlor labelers whose pharmaceutical drugs are dispensed

in West Virginia or to a West Virginia resident via mail, must complete and file with the
Council Appendix A to this rule on or before April first of each year for the advertising
expenses occurring in the peceding calendar year.

3.2 Signed originals of completed Appendix A forms shall be filed with the
Council, at the Offrce of the Pharmaceutical Advocate, Building 3, Capitol Complex,
Charleston, West Virginia. The Council may adopt procedures to also permit electronic
filing.
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Appendix A

Reporting Form

West Virginia Pharmaceutical Advertising Expenses

Name of reporting entity

Report for calender yeer

If this form is filed on behalf of a group of entities which file a US federal income tor
retum as a consolidated group, attach a copy of the organizational chart showing all
members of the consolidated group for federal income tax purposes and check here:

All references to the 'oCompany" in the form refer to the reporting entity and to all
members of its consolidated group for US federal income tax purposes. All capitalized
terms not otherwise defined by Council rule have the meaning provided in the
PHARMACEUTICAL AVAILABILITY AND AFFORDABILITY ACT OF 2004 (the
"Act'o)o W.Va Code $5A-3C.

l. Every Drug Manufacturer, Pharmaceutical Manufacturer, or Labeler which
engages in business in West Virginia (the "Company") is required to complete
this reporting Form.

2. Complete the following table. List the number of West Virginia Prescribers
whose total amount of individually received gifts, grants or payments of any kind
made directly or indirectly by the company fall within the numerical categories.
Items excluded under Section 5A-3C-13(c) shall not be included in the annual
payment amounts.

Annual Aggregate Amount of Gifts,
Grants and Payments

Total Number of Prescribers

$1,000 - $2,500

$2,501 - $5,000

$5,001 - s7,500

$7,501 - $10,000

$10,001 or over



Name of Drug
(chemical name and brand
name)

Type of Advertising
(television, radio, prinf or
other)

Total Expenditure
on Advertising

Complete the following table listing all drugs Advertised by the Company using
direct-to-consumer (DTC) Advertising reaching West Virgini4 together with the
total expenditure by the Company on such DTC Advertising targeting West
Virginia. If the Company does not track these amounts for West Virginia, the
Company may report West Virginia's ratable share of national or regional
expenses. The Company may exclude any DTC Advertising which had only a

remote or indirect impact on the West Virginia market. Provide this information
in aggregate by drug. This aggregate data will be a public record.

Complete the following table listing all gifts, grants or payments of any kind
made directly or indirectly to any disease-specific patient support group or
disease-specific patient advocacy group which: (a) has members or affiliates in
West Virginia; and (b) lobbies or otherwise appears before the West Virginia
Legislature or State agencies to advocate for a drug Advertised, Manufactured,
owned, or distributed by the Company. The Company need not report annual
amounts which do not exceed $10,000 per year. Report the total annual amount

for each such group. The aggregate list will be a public record.

Name of Advocacy Group Amount of Annual Payments
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Complete the following table listing all Advertising programs with or involving
pharmacies licensed in West Virginia. Provide the names of the pharmacies
together with a summary of the financial and other arrangements under the
program. The Company need not report annual amounts which do not exceed

$10,000 per year. The aggregate list will be a public record.

Pharmacy Type of Advertising Amount of Payment

6. The Company is permitted" but not required, to furnish the information described
in Section 5A-3C-13(c) of the Act. Clinical trials which do not quali$ as Bona
Fide Clinical Trials must be reported.

For each of the categories above, the Company should respond to the best of its
ability. If the Company is unable to respond to a particular question, it should
explain why it is not able to respond fully, and should describe what alternative
information is available. The purpose of this provision is to ease the reporting
burden on the Company, while allowing the State to collect the Advertising
information which is readily available. All questions relate to the reporting period
indicated above.

This Form is signed under penalties of perjury by a senior officer of the
Company.

I believe that this Form is trueo conect and complete:

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:
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MINNESOTA CONTRACTING ALLIANCE FOR PHARMACY
(MMCAP) STATE OF WEST VtRGtNtA
PHARMACEUTICAL COST MANAGEMENT COUNCI L

Request for Proposal
Primary wholesale Drug services proposal for MMCAP
State of West Virginia

Teri Janz
Director, Alternate Care Sales
414-476-7114
Cardinal Health, Inc
7000 Cardinal Place
Dublin, OH 43017
www.cardinal.com

September 20, 2006



September 20, 2006

RFP Subiect: Proposal to provide Primary Wholesale Drug SeMces for MMCAp State of West
Virginia

Distributor Name: Cardinal Health, Inc

Business Address: 7000 Cardinal Place
Dublin, OH 43017

Telephone Number: 614-757-5000

Website: www. cardinal. com

Printed Name ofAuthorized Person: Teri Janz

Title: Director, Altemate Care Sales

Authorized Signature

Datc _8/l.8/zoo6

Email Address: teri..ianz@cardinal.com

Phonc Number: 41 4-47 6-T 1 1 4
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REQUEST FOR PRESENTATION
STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

PHARMACEUTICAL COST MANAGEMENT COUNCTL

Part I GENERAL tNFORilATtON

1.1 Purpose:
The Pharmaceutical Cost Management Councit (PCMC) is soliciting presentations to
select a Distributor to distribute all pharmaceuticat producis and serviJes statewide to all
Mi nnesota Contracting Alliance for Pharmacy ( MMCAP)-enrolled facilities.

1.2 Project:
The purposg. o{ this project is to select a Distributor. to distribute all pharmaceutical
products and services statewide to all Minnesota Contracting Alliance for pharmacy
(MMCAP) enrolled facilities which may include, but are not limiied to: the Department oi
Health and Human Resources - strate-owned hospitals, the Bureau for public Health and
local heath departments; Department of Educaiion and the Arts - statewide Student
Health Services and the Division of Rehabilitation Services; Department of Military
Affairs and Public Sgf"tY - State Police, Division of Corrections, and the Regional Jait
Authority, MMCAP-eligible hospitals and clinics.

1.3 Evaluation:
An evaluation committee will . review the presentations, interview company
representatives, if available, and make a recommendation to the West Virginia
Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council.

{.5 Recommendation Approval and Selection
Once the WVPCMC approves the recommendation, the Chair of the Councit will notify
the selected vendor by letter and copy MMCAP.

PAft Z PERFORMANCE SPECIFIOTTIONS

2.r The State of West Virginia has MMCAP-eligible facilities over a geographic area of more
than z4,ooo-square miles. Please answer tle following question"s uSout yout company's
ability to deliver in a timely manner:

2.r.r How late in the day can a facility plaee a regular order and receive the next
business day?

Cardinal Health customers can place orders by 10:00 PM EDT and receive the
next business day.

2.r.2 What is the latest delivery time for regular orders?
This varies by location the delivery times.start at 6:00 AM and most are
completed by 12:00 PM EDT.

2.1.3 How late in the day can a facility place an emergency order and receive it the next
dav?
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This varies by location; however Cardinal Health is capable of same day
Emergency orders anyrvhere within our tenitory.

2.r.4 What is the dclivery timeframe for emergency.orclers?

This varies by location; horever Cardinal Health is capable of same day
Emergency orders anywhere within ourtenitory.

It is expected that MlvlC.4,P-eligible facilities from all 55 counties in West Virginia will
9n19ll. Howlong *i-ll it lke lour company to pmvidJiquipment and trainiig for a
facifity after it enrolls in MMCAp? '

Cardinal Health can deliver equipment and training within 30 days of enrollment date.
Please see attached detailed implementation planl

what equipment and software-are pryvided to your MMcAp eustomers (i.e. tpe of
computer, on-line catalog, patient informationiinteraction software, trananetd
-scanners)?

Ga rd ina l.com -Orderlno

Cardinal.com Ordering from Cardinal Health Pharmaceutical Distribution is a
comprehensive, pharmacy order and inventory management solution through the
Internet. The application streamtines the ordeiing proiess and helps controlthe
pharmacy's inventory capital investment. Cardinil.com transcends the traditional
boundaries associated with ordering pharmaceuticals and checking order status.
Real-time access through the Intemet provides the pharmacy withireedom to
monitor business anywhere, anytime.

Cardinal.com benefits and features:

. Real-time stock status

. Up-to-the-minuteproductpricing
o Real-time allocation of product
o Instantaneous order confinnationo Electronic credits and returns
o Real.timeprocurementreportingcapabilities
o Contract/program ranking drives purchasing activity. Highlights prefened producrts
. Department Codes & physical Inventory Moduleo CentralOrderingControl

Cardinal.com Ordering enables you to:

o Enhance the pharmacy's operational efficiencies. Optimize your contract portfolio utilizationo Reduce total number of units of pharmacy shelves

' lmprove service levels related to manufacturer back-order situations

Additionally, upgrades to Cardinal.com are performed electronically with no
customer intervention immediately after successful alpha and beta testing



peraods. with windows base software, major releases of software, which occur
routin-ely every quarter, require on-site visits that are normally completed 30-90
lgvs lo1 date_of general release. However, cardinat.com applicaiions
(cardinal.com ordering, entelligence, and Mobile solutions) aie updated
immediately as enhancements are made to the Website.

Securitv

Cardinal.com uses certain security measures to help protect against the loss,
misuse and alteration of the information provided on the Site. For example, our
site uses secure socket Layer (ssl) technology. In addition, your accouni
information and profile are password-protecteO to netp restrict access to this
information to you authorized.

Gentral Order Controt

The central Buyer, has a comprehensive view of how staff are able to order
products. The result is better compliance, fewer reflex orders and improved daily
pharmacy operations.

The Cenkal Buyer uses Pharmacy Admin to implement Central Order Control in
the following ways:! The Central Buyer sets rights for other users

o Read Only
o Requisition Only - The user can build and send an order

thatgres to the central buyer for approval (it doesn't go
directly to Cardinal)

o Place Order Rights. The Central Buyer retrieves orders created by staff that has
Requisition only rights to approve and send to cardinal Health.

' The central Buyer can Assign access to formulary catalogs to
controlwhich products staff can view (and Order) to drive
compliance.

Enhnnced Orderinq

To improve service levels, cardinal has developed Enhanced ordering, a real
time, on-line interactive alternative product selection capability. whenever a
product is identified as being oout" at the servicing distribution center during an
ordering session, Two Pass will provide up to five alternative products from which
the customer can choose. These alternatives are generated by searching the
entire inventory of the distribution center, sorting them by contract and best price.
They are then presented to the customer who can select one of the suggested
alternatives or choose to forgo them. once selected, the chosen product is
processed as any other item that is ordered. The order confirmation will note the
item that was originally selected, and the alternative that was picked. This "hard
copy" can be used by the pharmacy to document manufacturer inability to supply

cHolcEill
cHolcE, a PO-based, just-intime electronic order and inventory management
system, was developed by Cardinal Distribution to meet the needs of large and
small retail, hospital, acute and long-term care facitities. lts item database
contains net acquisition and contract pricing. lt provides numerous features
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including purchase history, suggested ordering, inventory management, pre-
defined and custom report generation and interdepartmentaibilling.

' CHOICE can be used.as a basic item catalog and order entry system or
?: ql integrated inventory management system that appliei reporting,
Min/Max or suggested order quantity (soo) and compiiance tools to
maximize inventory investment and to maintain inventory levels to meet
consumer demands.

' cHolcE interfaces to a wide range of third-party applications.

' CHOICE provides stock status information for each item. When placing
orders, CHOICE notifies the customer if an item is available, temporarily
out of stock or backordered by the manufac{urer. Knowing the stock
status of items prior to transmission of orders increases order efftciency
and expecfations. Customers receive order confirmations within ten
minutes of placing an order. printed confirmations, which can be
customized, document what will be received with the next delivery.

Mobile Solutions

Mobile Solutions allows customers to order and receive product using a handheld
device. The user can send/receive current catalog data, submit ordeis for
fulfillment, transfer orders to cardinal.com ordering and retrieve their receiving
data, all in the palrn of their hand. The device offers greater flexibility in the
management of the receiving process, allowing receiving to take place at any
lo_cation within the pharmacy. Mobile Solutions wireless technology increasei
efficiency_in the pharmacy through time saved receiving, re-slocking and ordering
product. The promotion of ordering from inventory places a greater emphasis on
managing capital investment in products. overall, the application places the
purchasing manager closer to the receiving and ordering process, increasing
flexibility and efficiency in working with the product

Mobile Solutions enables you to:

. Enables greater flexibility in managing capital investment in productso Drives compliance and contract pull-through

. Speeds ordering process - efficiencye Promotes ordering from inventory
o Leverages the information in cardinal.com to enable more informed

purchasing decisions at the point of order
r Increases speed of product receipt
o Increases speed of physical inventory process

Mobile Solutions ($100 monthly fee) is a hand held PC designed to work as both
an ordering and receiving unit. As product is received, you can record product by
piece, case and tote with a quick scan of the license plate. Since the device is
completely self-contained and not constrained by a computer cable, product can
actually be checked-in anywhere in the pharmacy or warehouse. Data can then
be transfened to and evaluated on cardinal.com. The system is already being
used in a number of facilities and implementation can be accomptished in 24
hours.



EDI

Cardinal Health will provide its portion of the interface between Buyer's system
and Cardinal Health's ordering system. Any additional interfaces required by the
manufadurer of Buyer's software/hardware will be at Buyer's sole expense.

Cardinal Health Pharmaceutical Distribution deployed a new WindowslNT based
EDI server system in late 1997, entering full production in March 1998. This
system is handling tens of thousands of electronic documents with a growing
number of trading partners in a very controlled, audited and monitored
environment. This modern system is built upon the same client-server
infrastructure used by the CSW, QC, and AMS systems (Pharmaceutical
Distribution acronyms for ourwarehouse management and automation systems).
Fault resistance has been designed into the EDI server's architecture with
redundant nodes containing multiple processors and RAID storage arrays.

The customer EDI system is managed and upgraded as needed to ensure that
peak utilization does not exceed 50% and aveiage utilization does not exceed
25o/o.The performance headroom has proven criticalin ensuring that Cardinal
can meet the EDI requirements of the most demanding customers. Cardinal
expects that this system will be the fastest growing system within the lT
infrastructure and will require the use of the latest hardware and systems
software available.

Cardinal's customer EDI server Uses Gentrar/NT from Sterling Commerce for
EDI document translation with IBM's MQ-Series message distribution manager to
route EDI 3ctivity around the organization. Many of the EDI transactions will
trigger subsequent EDI transactions to occur before the overall EC transaction is
completed. The example below is an illustration of the type of customer EDI
transaction Cardinal Distribution manages each day with its customers.

Electronic Purchase Order. The process begins with the receipt from a customer
of an EDI PO (850), followed by the delivery to the customer of an Order
Confirmation (855), an Advanced Shipment Notice (ASN) (856) is created once
the order is picked, then an Electronic Invoice (810), which is followed by a
Electronic Funds Transfer Remittance Advice (820) from the customer.

This complex EC transaction occurs tens of thousands of times daily between
Cardinal and customers and must be completely accurate and error free.

Remote monitoring and automated alarming are criticalto operating a high
volume real-time business system like Cardinal's EDI server. These audits,
monitors, and alarms have been custom built by Cardinal's customer EDI
development team using state-of-the-art Distributed Common Object
Management (DCOM) tools. These tools allow the EDI server to pull information
together from across the enterprise to audit the data passing through the system.
For example, one simple business rule is that the Accounts Receivable (AR)
system must agree with the invoice information received from the distribution
center system. Another is the sequence of transactions required by the
custome/s EC relationship.

The EDI server is also responsible for a number of less time critical EDI
transactions including providing item price catalogs (832), sales reporting (867),
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as well as a number of specialized transactions. The item price catalog (g32) is a
critical business document for successful implementation of modern E-c'
relationships. The item price catalog provides the customer with the latest item.
contract, and pricing information from Cardinal. This item information is then
used to feed the customers order management, inventory control and financiat
management systems with accurate replacement cost information.

Cardinal Heatth supports direct order capabilities through the CardinalASS|ST
program as well as through the E-Nvision perpetual inventory program utilizing a
Medication Retrievalsystem carouselto order product from utilizaiion data.
Cardinalsupports all810, 894 and 880 EDI protocol documents for Electronic
invoicing as well as 820 notices for electronic remittances. Cardinal's Pricing
matrix includes all applicable discounts for electronic payments

Cardinal supports many different customer interfaces today. Cardinal also has
an Internet based ordering system that includes realtime pricing, order
confirmations and item information. Cardinal wifl commit to work with the
participants to best support needed interfaces.
Cardinalsupports a wide variety of EDI documents from item maintenance order
procurement to payment process.

These documents include:
850 - Purchase Order
855 - Purchase Order Acknowledgment
856 - Advanced Ship Notice
810 - Invoice
894 - Invoice
880 - Invoice
832 - Price Catalog
180 - Merchandise Retum Authorization
997 - Functional Acknowledgment
820 - Electronic remit

Cardinal supports many versions of each of these documents.
our primary vAN is GE, however we do support inter-connects with all vAN,s.

cardinalsupports many different customer interfaces today. As mentioned
previously, Cardinal.com order Intemet based ordering system includes realtime
pricing, order confirmations and item information. Caidinalwill commit to work
with the participants to best support needed interfaces.

Telxon

A proven hand held ordering system which allows customers to order at the SKU
level directly from the shelf location enabling highly efficient and accurate
ordering practices.

Phone and/or FAX



In the case of connectivity issues Cardinal Health will accept orders via
telephone and fax at no additional charge to MMCAp.

entelliqence

entelligence is Cardinal Health's executive pharmacy information management
toolthat allows customers to take control and effectively manage and monitor
your procurement strategy. entelligence rolls up purchase data from each of the
points of purchasing within an organization and provides cornprehensive
reporting to evaluate purchasing. Reports provided through entelligence provide
a complete picture of where cost savings opportunities reside, by froviding timely
data to help your organization reduce costs by improving purcnaling and
inventory management decisions. Your organization gains immediaie access to
detailed item usage information while flexible reporting provides information in
the format that is mosl usefulfor your needs.

entelligence enables you to:
o Focus on the big picture
r Leverage your agreements
o Assess the value of your contracts. Understand lhe marketplace
. Gain control of your procurement strategyo Increase your negotiation power
. Obtain accurate and timely information. Reduce costs through effective contracting

entelligence provides you with the following features:o Access to 36 months of purchase history. Multi-pharmacyreporting
o Invoice leveldetail
o Budgetary forecasting and analysis. Brand-to-generic savings analysisr Therapeutic interchange analysis. Contract management
. ldentify contract missed opportunities
. Manufacturer back order reporting
o On-line catalog

There is a $300 *qtltv charge for up to 5 users of the entelligence reporting product, with
an additional cost of $60 per additional user after that.

It is unclerstood that at some times some products may not be available in the distributor
warehouse but would be available from the manufacturer. Please outline how vnu would
ensure that the facility received the requested product.

Cardinal Health customers can place drop ship orders through our customer care
centers. The customer care centers would handle facilitating the proper ordering and
delivery from the manufacturer of the specific items requested.

f)oas yotrr company require a minimum order? What is the minimum volume order
acceptcd?

r All facilities will receive one free delivery per week.
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' All invoiced orders totaling less than $750.00 will have a $20 delivery fee added.. All accounts with volume greater than 915,000 will receive daily delivery S
days/week

' Any account with volume less than $15,000 will be charged $20 per delivery
' lf anY member has four or less deliveries per month, the will be credited all

delivery charges on the following month.

2.6 Please de.scribe y-ou-Ilompany's presence in the State of West Virginia. Include the size and
locrtion of eachiacility a;d tto*iuny personnel your company employs in West Virginia.
The Cardinal Health distribution centerls locatedin Wheeliirg, wesi Virginia, and we service
the entire state of Wesl Virginia. Facility size = 200,000 sq. ft. Total cdmpany personnel
located in West Virginia is approximately 160 people.

PARTg PROPOSALFORMAT

B.r.r Title Page:

Title Page - should state the RFP, the narne of the Distributor, Distributor's
business address, telephone number, web site and name of auihoriz.ed contact
persln lo_speak on behalf of the Distributor and authorized contact person's
email address. The title page must be signed and dated by an authorized person.

For example, the title page might appear i,vith text as follows:

lfr sybject: Proposalto provide pharmaceutical goods and serwice.
Distributor Name
Busines.s Addness
Telephone Nu-
Website
Printed
Title

Name of Authorized Person

t
I
I
I
I

Authorized Signatune
Date
Email Addrress

9.r.2 Table ofContents:
Bidder must clearly identify the material by seetion and page number in the
bidder's table of contents.

g.r.g Propo$al Format:
Bidders must organize &eir proposals into sections that follow the format of this
RFP.

.3.r4 Due date
Written proposals must be received no later than 5:oo p.m. EDT on
September ao, eoo6. Proposals should be mailed to:

Office of the Pharmaceutical Advocate
Capitol Complex
Building 3, Room 265
Charleston, WV 253o5

11



Alternately proposals may also be emailed to:

sphares Gr)r.rvgov. org and
d waller(rD rtvgor'. org.

Evaluation Proess
A committee will waluate the written presentations. Distributors will be
permitted to provide supplementary information via telephone conference or in
person on the morning of September 22, zoo6. The selection of the successful
Distributor will be made by consensus of the evaluation committee.
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A*R urceBergen

September 20. 2006

Ms. Shana Kay Phares
Acting Pharmaceutical Advocate
State of West Virginia
Capitol Complex
Building 3, Room 265
Charleston, WV 25305

Dear Shana.

On behalf of AmerisourceBergen, thank you for allowing us the opportunity to respond to the State of
West Virginia's Request for Presentation. In answeringyour quesiions an'd responding to your
requlremcnts. we have paid attention to both the technicaland the business issues that wiit define an
effective solution for your organization. The enclosed proposal presents services and solutions
designed to assist the State of West Virginia address its most critical needs and achieve its core
objectives.

AmensourceBergen is comrnitted to exceeding the state of west Virginia's expectalions through
teamwork. tnnovation. and industry leadership. as well as an unparatleled comrnilment to ensu-ring the
health and safety of your care nelwork. We believe these are importanl factors to consider as yoJ
evaluate our proposal and, equally important, as you identi{y a partner for future success.

We look lorward to the opportunity to review our proposal with you and are excited about
strengthening our partnership with the State of West Virginia. ihank you again for your consideration.
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Michael D. Thompson
Vice President. Alternate Care
North Central Region
AmerisourceBergen Corporation
Phone: (614) 409-6t42
Email: mthompson@amerrsourceberg en. com



Title Page

RFP Subiect: Proposal to provide pharmaceutical goods and service.

DistributorName AmerisourceBergenDrugCorporation

Business Address 1300 Morris Drive, Chesterbrook, pA 19037

Telephone Number 610-727-7000

website www.amerisourcebergen.com

Printed Name of Authorized person

Tile Vice President, Alternate Care

Michael D. Thornpson

Authorized S

Date ?y't

Email Address mthompson@amerisourcebergen.com
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RFP Response

Part 1 GENERAL INFORMATTON

1'1 
ifiSt1ermaceuticat Gosr Management council
(PCMC) is soliciting presentations to select a
Distributor to distribute all pharmaceutical products
and services statewide to all Minnesota Contracting
Alliance for Pharmacy ( M MCAp)-enrolled facilities.

Understood.

1.2 Proiect:
The purpose of this project is to select a Distributor to
distribute all pharmaceutical products and services
statewide to all Minnesota Contracting Alliance for
Pharmacy (MMCAP) enrolled facilities which may
include, but are not limited to: the Departmerrt ot
Health and Human Resources - state-owned
hospitals, the Bureau for Public Health and local
heath departments; Department of Educatisn and
the Arts - statewide Student Health Services and the
Division of Rehabilitation Services; Department of
Military Affairs and Public Safety - State police,
Division of Conections, and the Regional Jail
Authority, MMGAP-eligible hospitats and clinics.

Understood.

Evaluation:
An evaluation commiftee will review the
presentations, interview company representatives, if
available, and make a recommendation to the West
Virginia Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council.

Understood.

Recommendation Approval and Selection
Once the WVPCMC approves the recommendation,
the Chair of the Council will notify the selected vendor
by letter and copy MMCAP.

Understood.

1.3

1.4

SJ.
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transn!all.{rl fr di<r:tri::r'l wiltr ll}ird pirties with.iltt Lttrj exoreas raritten consent of Amerisflllce8em4n.

P art 2 PERFORIIIANCE SPECIFICAT|ONS

2.1 The State of West Virginia has MMCAP-eligible facilities over a geographic
area of more than 24,000 square miles. Please answer the following questions
about your company's ability to deliver in a timely manner:

2.1.1 How late in the day can a facility place a regular order and receive the
next business day?

The State of West Virginia will be serviced by our Columbus, Ohio and
Richmond, Virginia Distribution Centers" Generally, Columbus will
service locations.North of l-64 and Richmond will service locations
South of l-64. The Columbus Distribution Center order cut-off time for
orders placed Sunday - Thursday for next day delivery Monday - Friday
is B:00 pm. The Richmond Distribution Center order cut-off time for
orders placed Sunday - Thursday for next day delivery Monday - Friday
is 7:00 pm.

2.1.2 What is the latest delivery time for regular orders?

AmerisourceBergen maintains flexibility in our delivery routinE system to
adjust our routes to accommodate our customers. Prior to
implementation, AmerisourceBergen and the State of West Virginia will
discuss and mutually agree upon a delivery schedule. Please note that
orders originating from our Columbus Distribution Center would be
delivered no later than noon for acute care hospitals and no later than
4:00 pm for remaining facilities. Orders originating from our Richmond
Distribution Center would be delivered no later than noon.

2.1.3 How late in the day can a facility place an emergency order and receive
it the next day?

The regular order cut off time for next day delivery is 7:00 pm for the
Richmond Distribution Center and B:00 pm for the Columbus
Distribution Center. Any orders received after these times will be
delivered the 2nd day from order placement.

AmerisourceBergen provides emergency delivery service for life-saving
or life sustaining emergencies 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. Prior
to implementation, each State of West Virginia facility will receive the
Emergency Services phone number for its servicing distribution center.
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2.2

Each facility will also receive the instructions for using this service in true
medical emergencies. when a state of west Virginia facility
experiences a medicalemergency, they simply dial the phone number
and follow the instructions to ensure follow up. The assigned
AmerisourceBergen associate will respond to the callwithin 30 minutes,
identify and authenticate the State of West Virginia facility, record the
need, and provide an estimated delivery time for the product. The
associate will then arrange for delivery of the order.

Please refer to the AmerisourceBergen/MMCAP contract for emergency
delivery service charges.

2.1.4 What is the delivery timeframe for emergency orders?

The delivery timeframe for emergency orders is dependent upon the
time the emergency order is placed, the location of the facility, and' courier availability. Generally, a life saving or life sustaining emergency
order should reach the facility within 4 - 7 hours of order placement.

It is expected that MMGAP-eligible facilities from all 55 counties in West
Virginia will enroll. How long will it take your company to provide equipment
and training for a facility after it enrolls in MMCAp?

AmerisourceBergen currently services the following State of West Virginia
locations: Mildred Mitchell-Bateman Hospital, william R. Sharpe, Jr. Hospital,
and welch community Hospital. No conversion is necessary for these
locations.

Should additional sites require conversion, AmerisourceBergen has developed
a comprehensive planning and implementation process for new customers and
facilities. Tab: Sample lmplementation Plan ouflines the process and
implementation work plan that guides each new facility irnplementation.
AmerisourceBergen will set up the entire State of West Virginia account within
60 days; however each implementation plan is customized and can be adjusted
lo meet the needs of the State of West Virginia.

The process begins with an implementation planning meeting with key State of
West Virginia facility staff. AmerisourceBergen recommends that the various
stakeholders in the process attend the meeting, including representatives of
Pharmacy, lr, Accounting, Inventory Management, and any other personnel
associated with the pharmacy operations.

sJ.
trilnsrnitl.ed nf discussQrl wil.lt thild uartief with({rt thq exore$s written c{rnsetrt of Amerisoutc.eberoen.
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AmerisourceBergen initiates the kick-off meeting approximately eight weeks in
advance (eight weeks is preferred, but we haveionducted converiions in less
time) of the actual conversion date covering the following topics:

' Mapping of lmplementation Team key contacts with responsibilities for both
the customer and AmerisourceBergen * including Executive $ponsor.
Account Manager, and lmplementation project Managerr Communication protocols and procedures

. Verification of current locations and mapping of State of West virginia
locations to AmerisourceBergen Distribuiioicenter locationsr Review of current usage of all Rx and non-Rx items and any unique
customer requirements (i.e., specialformulary issues, sticker format, etc.)e current lr protocols for system interfacing, ordering, receiving, payment,
and reporting - including development of any cross reference tables for
converting NDC numbers to AmerisourceBergen item numbers. current accounting protocols for accounts payable, credits, debits, etc.r Review of the conversion implementation work ptan * including timeline and
responsibilities

Each week, the AmerisourceBergen Project Manager conducts an internal
planning call with the distribution center personnellmpacted by the conversion.
along with the Account Manager, respective department managers (lr,
Accounting; Finance, operations, programs. etc.) to ensure thit tasks are
completed on time and to resolve any outstanding issues. The project
Manager and Account Manager subsequently conduct a call with the State of
West Virginia facility to inform them of the progress against the work plan and
to receive any updates to the overall conversion process as requested. This
process continues each week until the day of the actual conversion.

Of note regarding the conversion implementation work plan is the level of detail
for new account set-up, testing of the preferred ordering and payment systems,
and training of all pharmacy personnel on any applicable AmerisourceBergen
systems. we take great care to ensure that all accounts are properly
established with all associated protocols in place.

Approximately four weeks from the conversion date, AmerisourceBergen tests
all ordering, receiving, and reporting systems to ensure that every acCount is
'live" and ready to go on the day of implementation. The AmerisourceBergen
Project Manager and lT staff conduct hands-on training via Webex sessions
and on-site as requested by the State of West Virginia facility. Further, we
provide a custom customer packet containing all relevant infbrmation for
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2.3

pharmacy personnel (i.e.. new account number, instructions on the
AmerisourceBergen systems, returns procedures, list of distribution center
contacts and phone numbers, hours of operation for the distribution center,
etc.). We also ensure that corporate staff andlor regional managers are able to
train additional personnel as required.

A few weeks prior to the conversion date, AmerisourceBergen conducts a "dry
run" of the ordering system by requesting that each ordering location send a
srnall test order to us, ensuring that the ofder is received and the items are
picked, packed, and ultimately shipped on time to the appropriate locations.
The drivers making the deliveries will become aware of'the appropriate delivery
protocols (i.e", who to see, location of the delivery point, etc.). In adclition.
AmerisourceBergen will dispatch a local Account Manager to flre facility to
ensure that the pharmacy staff has received the conversion packet, aniwer any
remaining questions, and perform any finaltraining required on the systems"

On the day of conversion, the AmerisourceBergen Project Manager will set up
a "command post" to oversee the actual conversion and addresJany issues
that come up during the initial day of deliveries. Finally, the day after the initial
deliveries, AmerisourceBergen Customer Service will call the State of West
Virginia to assess satisfaction with the service and make any adjustments as
requested by the pharmacy personnel.

The AmerisourceBergen conversion implementation process has resulted in
many very satisfied customers. The process is implemented with the utmost
care for the customer and its patient base, with the overall objective of no
disruption in service. We conduct each conversion with heavy emphasis on
defining customer requirements during the planning phase. constant
communication, coordination, training, and testing of all systems to en$ure a
smooth and "seamless" conversion.

what equipment and software are provided to your MMCAp customers (i.e.
type of computer, on-line catalog, patient information/interaction software,
handheld scanners)?

AmerisourceBergen will offer a variety of order entry solutions to the State of
west Virginia incfuding: ECH0'(desktop), catalog and order Entry (web-
based), iScan'" (wireless Palnro'unit), and Telxon devices. All information
relative to associated fees has been provided in accordance with
AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation's executed agreement with MMcAp.

sJ.
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ECHO
AmerisourceBergen will provide a state-olthe-art inventory managemenf
system called ECHO. ECHO allows the user to efficiently place an order with
complete flexibility. ECHO provides an effective means of accessing important
contract information, contract compliance data, and wholesaler stock status
within minutes of order transmission. AmerisourceBergen will confirm item
shipment and display alternatives for items not available due to manufacturer
back orders. These reports can identify opportunities for the user in formulary
sutrstitutiorrs. track usage patterns, and identify changes in pricing as they
occur. A sophisticated report writer empowers the pharmacy to harness the
vast amount of data available within ECHO. The "auto-check" feature assures
contract compliance with each purchase order.

Each EcHo system is able to handle up to gg9 account numbers, each with
pricing and contract information. ECHO is also capable of operating under a
"depot" system whereby remote siles can assemble their order requests,
transmit them to AmerisourceBergen, be received by a central ordering location
for final review, and submitted back to AmerisourceBergen for final processing.

All of the ECHO modules will be designed to give the latest technology for
control of the customer's inventory. In addition, AmerisourceBergen will
provide ECHO Inventory Module or ElM. A companion to EcHo, EIM enables
the pharmacy to conduct physical inventory quickly and accuratery. The
extensive array of management reports contained within EIM provides the keys
to effective inventory control and reduction, other features include
AmerisourceBergen's Inter-Departmental Billing Module. This module
manages the tracking and reporting of medications and supplies dispensed to
olher departments and will greatly ease the burden of providing a full
accounting of these activities.

Online Catalog & Order Entry
Our online ordering platform will enable the $tate of West Virginia to access
current product and pricing information to maximize savings and streamline
operations allowing the State of West Virginia to spend less time with
administrative tasks and more time with patient interaction. The Catalog &
order Entry application provides online access to AmerisourceBergen's
complete catalog enabling the State of West Virginia to get detailed information
on items and view on-hand availability. The system will automatically identify
group and personal contracts. Additionally, non-contract items for which a
contract equivalent is available will be highlighted with a list of substitutions only
a click away. The State of west virginia can quickly allocate product, make

transtnitled or diricus:ieii raith third oa*ieti withorrt the exrrress wriflen conserlt of Arnerisourc'e6et.oen.
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instant substitutions, and place orders direcily with the servicing
AmerisourceBergen distribution facility. All product and pricing information is
rea l-time a nd tra nsactions occu r immed iately.

iScan
AmerisourceBergen also offers a Palm-based bar-code scanning system for
ordering and receiving with optional RF remote wireless interface, Designed as
a closed loop system, iscan provides precise ordering and receiving
functionality and optimizes the supply chain by providing the State of west
Virginia with efficiencies in accuracy and productivity. i5can strearnlines order
entry with the option of templates. Many facilities have standard orders that
they place on a weekly or monthly basis. These orders can be entered into
iScan and saved as templates. State of West Virginia facilities can create a
new Po from a template and then modifo quantities, remove, and add items as
needed. Creating a 200-line order is reduced from hours to minutes. You can
then upload the data for order review, transmitting, and ailocation.

To close the loop, iscan also offers receiving functionality with the following
features:

. Reconcile incoming purchase orders via bar-code scan. Retain the ability of manual reconciliation with the addition of multi*user
capability

. The optional convenience of "grocery style'; scanning speeds order
reconciliation

. Includes advanced support of wireless RF Palm scanning devices. Superior "learning" capabilities allows for easy product association with
unrecognized bar-code scans

. Support of ASN Tote Receiving - allows receipt from a bar-code tote or case
scan

Telxon Machines
AmerisourceBergen commits to provide each ordering location a Telxon unit
with bar-code scan capability.

EQ.LIO and Hardware Charqes
o EverY MMCAP ordering location will have access to either the Windowsftr

based ECHO program or the Internet based Online Catalog & Order Entry
program free of charge for the duration of the agreement.

o EverY MMCAP ordering location will have access to a Telxon order entry
unit free of charge for the duration of the agreemenl.

s.
transrnitled
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2.4

. Any MMCAP ordering location purchasing over $23,000 per month will be
eligible for PC hardware at no additional charge. The minimum
specifications are as follows:

Pentium lV (2.0 GHz)
40-Gigabyte Hard Drive
256 Megs RAM
17 inch VGA Color Monitor
56k Baud Modem
CD-ROM - 48x

. Any MMCAP ordering location purchasing less than $25,000 per month will
be eligible for PC hardware at a rental cost of $50.00 per month.

r Those facilities electing to utilize Radio Frequency i$can will be assessed a
one-time charge of $1,500.

AmerisourceBergen retains title to all hardware and software and each MMCAP
facility must return them upon termination of any executed agreement. ,

It is understood that ai some times some products may not be available in the
distrib-utor warehouse but would be available from the manufacturer. Please
outline how you would ensure that the facility received the requested product.

AmerisourceBergen will process drop ship orders from allmanufacturers
provided that the manufacturers are approved AmerisourceBergen vendors"
Many "drop ship only items" are identified in the order entry system and the
state of west Virginia can order them through the ordering system for
automatic shipment. All other drop ship items must be ordered through the
Customer Service Department at the local distribution center" Drop ships will
be charged at cost +0%. Additional charges may apply should the State of
West Virginia elect to expeditiously process a drop shipment that would result
in "uncustomary" delivery charges. Changes in pricing, policies, or procedures
by the manufacturer may result in additional charges.

Does your company require a minimum order? What is the minimum volume
order accepted?

AmerisourceBergen does not require a minimum order volume. The number of
weekly deliveries is; however, predicated on the following purchasing volume
criteria as determined by our current agreement with MMCAP;

o Any single delivery location purchasing greater than $15,000 per month will
be eligible to receive 5 deliveries per week.

sl.
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2.6

o Any single delivery location purchasing between $10,001 and $14,ggg per
month will be eligible for two deliveries per week.. Any single delivery location purchasing befueen $1 and $10,000 per month
will be eligible for one delivery per week.

o Any delivery location needing additional deliveries will be assessed a fee of
$20.00 per delivery. lf the invoice amount is over $750.00, there will be no
additional delivery charge.

Please describe your company's presence in the State of West Virginia. Include
the size and location of each facility and how many personnel your-company
employs in West Virginia.

AmerisourceBergen does not have a distribution center located in the State of
West Virginia. AmerisourceBergen currently has (2) employees who reside in
the State of West Virginia.

sJ.
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A*R"urceBergen"
Gonversion and Name: State of West Virginia 'o IABC Servicing Distribution Center: Columbus. Odrlmplementation and Richmond, VA

ABC Custorner Advcrcate: TBI)
ABC Conversion Team Mernbers: TBI)

Plan t
' Convgrsion procodurc

Kick Off Tasks
, lssign Custonrer Advocate

Assign Custornersupport :

D,otennlne Prorect Toam

Set Schedule lor Galls '

I Provlde Capeclty Analysls to Technacal
Infrastructure Team

Week 1

i.f . OOtaln key Contactana Ffione Number.
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Comments :l
I
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:
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i

Account Review
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Converaaon Procedure
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Flad Copy
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EDI

f .f e Oenne Price Stcker Requlremefrts
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EDI Delivery 
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Secure Electronic Prescriptions: Finding Solutions for Inappropriate
Prescribing and Abuse of oxycontin in west Virginia

STUDY HIGHLIGHTS

Electronic prescribing offers new approaches to help stem the
rising tide of prescription drug abuse in West Virginia, in
particular the abuse and diversion of OxyContin. Automating
access to a patient's medication history as the physician prepares a
prescription using electronic prescribing tools would empower
the physician to prevent doctor shopping and identify when
medical intervention might be needed to help a patient deal with
prescription drug problems. Additionally, physicians,
pharmacies, and health plan benefit providers are recognizing and
affirming that e-prescribing can improve patient safety, streamline
the delivery, and reduce the cost of health care. In response to tl'ris
demand, fully integrated electronic prescribing products and
servioes are commercially available, the offerings are maturing,
and the market for such products and services is growing.

The benefits attributable to e-prescribing are being realized in
numerous pilot implementations in other states. Today, lives arc
treing saved and tangible return-on-investment (ROI) is beirrg
achieved through the inrplementation of e-prescribing. The
Center for Information
Technology Leadership
(CITL) estimates that
nationwide adoption of
electronic prescribing
will eliminate nearly 2.1
million adverse drug
events (ADEs) per year in
the U.S. This would
prevent nearly 1..3 million
provider visits, more
than 190,000
hospitalizations, and
more than L36,000life-
threatening ADEs. CITL
also projected that
nationwide adoption of
electronic prescribing
would save $27 billion a year, primarily as a result of decreased
spending on prescription drugs. A savings of $2 billion would be
attributable to reduced ADE-related hospitalizations and visits.[l J
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E-prescribing can identify
and prevent prescription
drug abuse.

$27 billion in annual
savings is achievable.

Figure 1. E-prescribing is connecting the
health care community.
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Secure Electronic Prescriptions - Study Highligtrts 2

"What is most striking
about these statistics is
that much of this harm is
preventable, since a
variety of strategies and
.techniques exist for
reducing medication
errors."

West Virginia is 1 of onty 4
states currently restricting
e-prescribing.

A June 2ffi report by the Institute of Medicine [15] substantiatcs
thme findingp - estimating that there are at least 1..5 million
preventable adverse drug events per year. This report also states,
"what is most striking about these statistics is that much of this
harm is preventable, since a variety of strategies and techniques
exist for reducing medication errors", and cites e-prescribing as
one remedy.

Three key recommendations arise from the primary conclusion of
this study, that electronic prescribing is an importint aclvance that
will benefit all parties to the health care pr@ess -- patients,
medical practitioners, hospitals, pharmacists, insurance prcrviders
and govemment. The three recommendations are:

o Recommendation 1 - Legislative Action: The West Virginia
Board of Pharmacy should recommend and champion
legislative action to permit "fully automated', e-prescribing in
WV. These legislative changes should be made soon as
possible. west virginia is one of only four states in the nation
where e-prescribing is currently restricted.

o Recornmendation 2 - Enhanced preecription Drug
Monitoring Program: The West Virginii prescription Drug
Monitoring system (PDtvfP) should be enhanced to facilitate
and support data sharing and seamless integration with
commercial E[lS solu tions.

r Recommendation 3 - Initiate e-prescribing pilofi West
Virginia state Government should encourage and participate
in a public-private initiative to establish an e-prescribing pilot
in West Virginia. The pilot should subsidize the cost of
deploying electronic prescription systems (EflSs) to 35&500
l4y'V physicians and should be implemented as soon as
possible. Delaying implementation of an electronic
prescribing pilot will prolong the problenr of risks to patient
safety and increased health costs. This approach will enable
physicians to invest in technology incrementally, starting with
e-prescribing systems and migrating to full electronic health
records in the future.

Implementing these three recommendations will require a
commitment to aggressive action by many parties in the health
c?r€ dr€ha: Failure to act decisively and soon will cost in patient
safety, health care expense, and lost opportunities to impict the
social and personal effects of drug abuse.



t
EXECUTIVE SUM]IIARY

The Problem

Abuse of the prescription drug OxyContin has grown exponentially in the United States since
the mid 1990s - a trend that is particularly prevalent in rural regions including West Virginia.
AZOA2 study by the National Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH) estimated that over 1.9
nrillion individuals have used OxyContin non-medically at least once in their lifetime. Illegal
use of prescription drugs pose a major threat to health, as well as leading to crime that
adverscly impacts whole communities. Tackling the prescription drug epidemic requires
efforts on many fronts. Controlling access to these addictive drugs at the source may be one of
the most effective means of slowing the spread of addiction and use.

In FY2004, West Virginia retail purchase of prescription drugs totalecl $1.46 billion, anr{ hospital
and physician care totaled $6.73 billion. If those costs grow it}y" per year as projected, the cost
of prescription drugs will reach $1.84 billion and hospital and physician care will reacl.r $8.48
billion by 2W, altogether $10.32 billion of the total health care cost in the state. Tlrerefore,
identifying and implementing solutions to mitigate these huge cost increases is critical.
Electronic prescribing, through prevention of adverse drug events, better formulary compliance
and increase substitution of generics has been shown to reduce tlrese rising health care costs.

Purpose of the Study

As part of the implementation of court directives in the settlement of the state's case against
Purduc ['harma, Inc. over the addictive qualities of the drug OxyContin, the West Virginia
Attorncy General's Office awarded a grant to a research team organized through a partnership
betwecrr Concord University, a state-supported university located in Athens, West Virginia, and
Tygart Technology,Inc., a native West Virginia technology company. The team was tasked to
condut-'t a stutly ancl report whether electronic prescribing technology can make a significant
differcrrce irr tlre effectiveness of the physician and pharmacist in preventing abuse. By
providing information to doctors and pharmacists at the time patients are served, electronic
prescribing offers the potential of improving prevention of abuse and diversion.

As benefits in preventing drug abuse and diversion would depend on broad use, the study also
focuses on identifying and publicizing the principal benefits of electronic prescribing -
improving patient safety and reducing costs. To this end the study attempts to:

. iclentify tlre benefiLs of electronic prescribing that will contribute to successful
implementation;

o identify the barriers that must be removed for implementation to begin;
. evaluate state of the technology available for implementation;
e determine the readiness of physicians, pharmacists and pharmacies to implement

electronic prescribing;
o identify best-practices that should be adopted in initiating electronic prescribing; and
. recommend the next steps to implement solutions that will successfully reduce abuse.
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Secure Elechonic Ptu"dptioog:E*ggtive Summary 4

Summary of Findings

It l!" lbury of prescription drugs grew in the 1990s, many states took action to pass enabling
legislation that would allow a state agency to collect prur.iiption drug clata from pharmacieslrr
t'lecFonic form and create access to that data for phyiicians, regutatois and law enforcement
pcrsonnel.

The West Virginia B?ut9 of Pharmacy operates the West Virginia Prescription Drug Monitoring
Program (PDMP), which currently provides physicians and pharmacists with medication
history information that assists in identifying instances of abuse and diversion of controlled
sutrstances.

This study found that the WV PDMP is under-utilized, with only about 10% of active physicians
authorized to use the system and only half of pharmacies using it to check patient nredication
histories for controlled substances.

It is technically feasible and warranted to integrate medication history information from the WV
PDMP seamlessly into the commercial e-prescribing process, while siill maintaining the privacy
arrd security protections established by the WV Boird of Pharmacy. Integrating WV pOtr4p
nredication history into the e-prescribing process will rnitigate all bf the p-robleins identified
abot'c - increasing utilization of the system and improving physician awareness of drug abuse
and diversion.

Electronic Prescribing

In the simplest of terrns, electronic prescribing refers to the use of computing devices to enter,
nroclify, review, and output or communicate drug prescriptions. Howevei, this study embraces
a broatler interpretation of electronic prescribing toimply the use of a fully integratecl ioftware
a;-rplication that incorporates data from patient recorcls, provides the prescribJr with autonratccl
clinical decision support, generates, modifies and stores a prescription within a patient recorcl,
transnrits the prescription to a pharmacy, confirms electronic transmission, and is interoperable.
with other patient record systems that may be accessible by other clinicians.

Benefits of Electronic Prescribing

The bcnefits of electronic prescribing are increasingly well documented in both research ancl
general publications. The combination of benefits - improvecl safety, prevention of abuse,
efficiency, cost control, ancl improvecl delivery of healtir services - crosses the full spectrum of
health care, frotn patient to medical provider to pharmacy to insurer. Although the various
benefits nray concentrate at one level or another, it is now generally accepted t-hut th" overall
advantages of electronic prescribing are significant.

Benefits include:

' Improved Safety through Clinical Decision Support Integrated with Patient Record
o Drug i.tcraction alerts about drugs used in tombination.



Secure Electronic Prescriptions - Executive Summary 5

o Drug - diagnosis alerts when drug is not appropriate for the diagnosis.o Allcrgy alerts when an allergic reaction is possible.
o Appropriate dosage information for the patient's weight, age or other factors.o Itrevention of Over-Prescribing and Diversion of Drugso Ileduction of Errors (Legibility, Drug ldentification, Dosage)r Inrproved Compliance with Insurance Forrnularies or Preferred Drug Listso Reduction of Time in pharmacy Callbacks

. Other Cost Reductions
o Reduction of Adverse Drug Events avoids costs incurred to treat resulting harm.o Reduction of physicianlpharmacist administration costs.
o Reduction of patient medication cost through informed decision-making.

The combined benefits of better safety, better use of generics and other factors reflected in the
overall cost of medical care where electronic prescribing is used may be the single best indicator of
the economic advantages-of electronic prescribir,g, at le"ast for patients and payers. One e-
prescribing pilot proiect found the increase in medical costs over the study p"ri.r.l ftrr the pilot
group to be 19.3% less than the increase for the control group.[2] Applied to projectecl increases of
$952 nrillion for total health care costs from 2006 to 2007 in w"ri viignia, thepotential savings
could anrount to approximately $184 million.

E-Prescribing Attitudes, Trends and Issues in West Virginia

A sampling of medical and pharmacy professionals were surveyed and interviewed to gain a
better understanding of the current prescription writing ancl diipensing practices ancl to
iclentify the pnrblems and concerns about current practices. We also atlemptetl to gauge tl-re
prevailing attituc{es of health professionals about the potential advantages and disi'dva'ntages of
e-prescribirrg and to understand the readiness of the health communitlio, u-prur.ribing un.t to
identify any preliminary work already underway.

The ilrterviews and surverys produced surprisingly consistent responses in a number of
important areas. The key findings include,

r physicians and pharmacists believe drug-seeking behaviors are very common ancl they
share a serious concern about abuse and diversion of drugs;

' physicians and pharmacists are struggling with the compiexities and restrictions of plan
formularies, especially Medicare Part D, in clelivering quality patient care and
appropriate service;

o physicians and pharmacists express serious concerns about traditional prescribing
practices, especially issues of accuracy and legibili ty, safety, security of prescriptions,
time required to resolve coverage issues, and cost

o physicians are generally positive about moving to electronic prescribing and electronic
rnedical records, defining the integration of drug and formulary informltion anrl
nredication history as the chief benefit, and the implementation effort and leanring curve
as the key concern;

o pharmacists are generally positive about implementing electronic prescribing, and
expect to be ready to participate; defining the time savings as the key benefit ancl cost as
a key concern; and
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o hosPital administrators identify the lack of a complete medication history and other
patient data as the most significant barrier to effective care.

Electronic Prescribing and Electronic Health Records

Electronic prescribing is a subcomponent of the larger Electronic Health Record (EHR) ancl
Health Information Network movement. Federal, Jtate and local governments and the other
stakeholders in more affordable health care are establishing publii-private partnerships to
facilitate collaboration and share the costs related to the impiementation of Llectronic health
records.

Given the scogre, complexitp cost and number of interest groups involved in full-scale EHR
irnplemerrtation, many_organizations have "tested the e-health recorcls waters" by cleploying
Electronic Prescribing-Syslems (EPS) in advance of Electronic Medical Record (glr4n) ryr-tu*r.
The rationale supporting tlre immediate imprementation of EPS includes:

o E-prescribing offers significant immediate savings ancl return on investment (ROI) is
proven.

' 'Ihe cost, risk antl effort required to implement e-prescribing systems is lower.o A physician's willingness and capacity to adopt EIIS technology is greater than EMR.o fi successful EIIS implementation builds positive momentum ior aJoption of EMR.r Networks currently exist to support e-prescribing in west Virginia.
o PrescriPtion drug insurance eligibility and formulary information for over 60% of all

residents is already availabre and many more could be added easily.
o Medication history for west virginiani is also available.
o Medication history related to controlted substances dispensed in West Virginia retail

pharmacies is available via the WV pDMp.
o { migration path exists for integrating EI€ capabilities into future EMR deploynrents.

Barriers to Implementation of Electronic prescribing in west virginia

Regulatgrv Barriers

West Virginia is one of only four states where regulatory barriers are inhibiting the acloption of
electronic prescribing. Two provisions must be revised:

o The provision limiting electronic transmission of the prescription through an
intermediary should be eliminated.

o Provisions implying a signature must be handwritten should be removed, except as
provided otherwise by.the Drug Enforcement Administration.

Plrysicinn's Reluctance to Bear tlrc Cost and Change presuibing practices

The fundamental problem slowing adoption of EPS (and electronic medical record systems) is a
misalignment of econontic incentives. In other words, a physician must make the investnrent in
electronic Prescribing (or EMRs), while a significant share of the savings will be capturecl by
insuraltce companies and public health care programs. Without subsidies, physicians have



I
lreen reluctant to rnake the investment in technology and product penetration rates havc, been
low.

Implementing e-Prescribing Systems

T'his study examines in detail the technical architecture of electronic prescribing systems and
reviews two products from leading vendors who were responsive and willing to share detailed
infornration about system functionality. Based on the analysis of existing services ancl
colnponents that make up the complex technical architectuie of electronic prescribing and the
number ancl extent of pilot programs operating in other states, it seems clear that electronic
prcscribing has reached maturity as a robust and reliable technology.

Although the development of functional and data standards continues, the adoption of federal
rcquirentents and standards for all electronic prescribing systems through the Medicare
Modernization Act forces all vendors to upgrade their products continually and meet all
standartls, including the privacy requirement of HIPAA, if their systems are to be used for
Medicare-covered patients. Therefore, concerns about physicians implementing non-standard
Programs that are unable to be upgraded or integrated into other electronic medical recorcl
systenrs do not seem to be warranted.

That said, it is still clear that efforts to encourage e-prescribing through pilot initiatives should
strive to utilize very high-functioning and stable systems that meet the needs of West Virginia
practitioners, provide a real opportunity to impact the drug abuse and diversion problenr, ancl
provide real patient safety and cost reduction benefits.

Recommendation one, to advocate and champion legislative action to permit "fully automatecl"
e-prescribing in WV, would facilitate the subsequent development of pilots in light of the
charrging federal regulations and the current state of the technology, thus bridging the gap for
West Virginians with regard to improved patient care.

Ilecotntnendation two, to enhance the WV PDMP system and integrate access with e-
prescribing systems, is vital to achieving the goal of reducing abuse and diversion of OxyContin
and other controlled substances. Although opioid narcotics (Schedule II) prescriptions
currently require handwritten signatures under Drug Enforcement Administration rules,
physicians could still use EllS systems to prepare those prescriptions and achieve the benefits of
this errlrancement. With the PDMP access, prescribing physicians would automatically receive
Sclredule ll-IV controlled substance medication history as a seamtessly integrated step in the e-
prescril'ring process. fncreased utilization of the WV Prescription Monitoring Program will
improve a physician's awareness of potential prescription drug abuse and diversion.

Recommendation three, to establish a pilot initiative to subsidize the cost of deploying
electronic prescription systems @nss) to 350-500 WV physicians, is essential to develop a
critical mass of participating physicians in order to achieve significant benefits from e-
prescribing. A joint public-private pilot initiative is recommended. This new approach would
broaden the impact and share the cost across the agencies and insurers who will gain the most
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in cost reductions. A trusted third party should be used to design and manage the pilot and .

monitor the outcomes.

Seven key principles are recommended for implementing the proposed pilot program:
1. ldentify and involve public and private organizations ihuf *o,rld recogniie the greatest

_ gostsavirrgs. from e-prescribing in order to establish a funding souice for a pilotlroject.
2. Establish pilot goals and benefie using measurable criteria - ihun collect 

",.,.1 
,upo.i

metrics throughout the pilot.
3. Create an environment where "win-win" relationships can develop between

stakeholders - Payers, health care providers, patients, and technology venclors.
4. "Intelligently target" those practitioners who are most likely to prJuce maximum

program benefits.
5. Establish compelling incentives to stimulate participation, facilitate execution, and drive

utilization of e-prescribing. Defineand enforce requirements that must be met in orcler
to receive incentives.

6. Define requirements (functional, customer support, financial, etc.) ancl assist
practitioners with product selection by performing formal evaluations and negotiating
volume pricing.

7. Effectively communicate with stakeholders by performing "outreach" and public
relations activities before, during and after prog[am implementation.

Flealth care is a universal service that is needed by all West Virginians. We are all enriched by
the benefits of medical care and we are all impacted by its cost. Because of the breadth and
cliver.sity of organizations that comprise the health care community, it can be difficult to agree
orr wl'ro sl'rould provide the leadership for implementing change.

The key to achieving the benefits of these recommendations is for those in a position of
leaderslrip to BEGIN - as soon as possible, and to the extent of their power. Taking action to
implement electronic prescriptions will bring immediate benefie that exceed the financial costs.
Physicians and pharmacists appear to be ready and waiting for this advance, and patients are
already paying the price of delay. Without immediate action, West Virginia will once again be
vying for last place intl"re nation in progress in this area, but should - anA coulcl - leap firrward
into tlrt. top ranks of electronic prescribing states.
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Srere CAptroL CouptD<, BulLorr.rc 3, Roott 265
Teupnorue: 304-558-fl)79

CnRnlesroru, Wesr VtRGtNtA ms
Fe,r 304SSB{lSg

December 28,2006

The Honorable Earl Ray Tomblin'The Honorable Robert Kiss
Joint Commiftee on Government and Finance
lapitol Complex, Main Building
Charleston, West Virginia z53ds

Dear President Tomblin and Speaker Kiss:

Pursuant to {.ta, cgde s5A-3G8 (8) the west Virginia pharmaceuticat costManagement council is taskeo *tl p.rovidi;g ,"*m"ndations to the Legislature onneeded legislative action. Accordingly, the 
"corn.ir 

hereby expresses its support forlegislation that would remove statutory barriers to electronic iresJriulng.

Electronic prescribing describes a process in which providers use computerdevicesto enter, modify and transmit drug presciiptions electronically to a pharmacy. Electronicprescribing promises to improve patient.safety, prevent diversion of prescription drugs,save time in reduced calf-backs bei\rveen ilre pnlrmacy gno the physicia-n:, and save moneyfor payors bv increas!1g {opulary compliance, reducing dupiic;6 ;iaims ano reducingrejected claims. westVirginia is one otonlyil;trt;;ir,rii prhioid;b;i;"nic prescribing.

In 2006' a9 oart of a court settlement between Purdue pharma, Inc. and the Stateof west Virginia, the west Virginia Attomey Generaljs office awaia"c r g*nt to concorduniversity and rygart rechnologies, Inc. to inu"ttlg"t*un"tn"r electronic prescribing couldassist prescribers and pharmacists in the pr"o"niion of.prescription drug abuse. In Mayof 2006' Mary Ratliff of rygart rechologiei aooresr"o ffi" council on tni progress of thestudy and again in september afterpJ$!vrport*"r completed. The report, entiled,secure Electronic Prescriptions: Finding sodtio^-f;r'inappropriate prescribing and Abuseof oxycontin in westvirginia is attachid d;t;r;i"formation and review.



Again, the West Virginia Pharmaceutical Cost Management Council supportslegislation that would make the necessary changes to permit electronic prescribing.
Should you have any questions regarding eleitronic prescribing 6r need furtherinformation, please contact me at S5g-b07g. -

Sincerely,
4{/Wlv^^
Shana Kay Rhares
Chair
west Virginia Pharmaceutical cost Management council

senator Roman Prezioso, chair, senate Health committee
Delegate Don Perdue, Chair, House Heatth Committee
Delegate Rick rhompson, candidate nominated for speaker of the House
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TSG Consulting Business Plan
for the Central Fill Pharmacy

Executive Summary
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Patients must have access to life-saving_rnedicines in order to benefit from them. Too many are denied
the benefits of quality care due to lack of health insurame or lack of health care information. For
example:

r In 2004, 45.8 million Amerhans - includirg more than 294,000 West Virginians - were
uninsured, up from 45 million in 2003;I More than eight out of 10 pople who are uninsured corne ftom working families;

' In 2004, 15.1 million uninsured Americans lived in househotds earning less than $25,000; ard.r Uninsured children arc more than ttree times less likely than insured children to get a needed
prescription.

To improve the health care system and promote a trealthien nation, more than 1,200 national ard state
organizations, health care providers, patient advocacy groups and olher key playen in the health care
syst9l have partnered with America's pharmaceuticaliompanies to devedpan innovative way to
provide access to medicines through a patient-bcused initiative called the Partnenhip for Presiription
Assistance (PPA).

ACHIEVEMENT: The Pannership for
Prescription Assistance has matched more
than one rnillion patients, including 44,ooo
patients in West Virginia, to prescription
assistance programs that appear to meet
their needs.

CHALLENGE: Bringing the program to
the millions of potentially eligible people
who rernain unaware of patient assistance

i Programs.
t- ---- - - -.-- ----

Launched in April 2005, the Partnuship for
Prescdption Assistance is the largest private-sector
effort to help qualifying patients uulro lack
prescription coverage get the medicines they need
through the public or private program that's right for
them. The Partnership for Prescrigion Assistarrce
has launched $ate-based chapten in nealy allS0
states (in addition to Washington, D.C. and Puerto
Rico) with the help of hundreds of local patient,
provider and civic partner organizations.

!1 April 2004, West Virginia launched its own prescription assistance clearinghouse called Rx for West
Virginia. Since its launch, Rx for West Virginia has matched more than 44,000 West Virginians to
patient assistance program,s that appear to meet their needs. lts success helped pave ihe way for the
nationwide Partnership for Prescrigion Assistance.

In June 2005, Rx for West Virginia joined the Partnership for Prescription Assistance as the state
chapter of the PPA and is now known as the Partnership for Prescriition Assistance of West Virginia.
ln just seven months since joining the PPA and with the support of more than l5 local organiza$6ns,
more than 10,000 West Virginians have been matched to a patient assisarrce program tiat likely
meets their needs, and more than one million patients nationally have been matchfo.

This report provides an overview of the Partnership for Presuiption Assistance of West Virginia in its
first seven months of operations sincejoining the PPA, as welias national prggram researci ard data
results, including:



Details on the west virginia prcgram's operational statistics;
National progra m sa$sfactbn and fulfi llment results;
Data from nationalthird-qatl.$rweys of patieils who have used the program.and the expertise
of thought leaders in the health care sector; and,r Information on challenges with enrollment, lessons learned and ongoing system improvements.
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West Virginia is home to more than 294,0ffi uninsured residents. Many of them may have difficulty
affording. thejr medicines and do not real[e help is available to them. Rx for Wes Virginia joined the
Partnership for Prescription Assistance in June 2005 to:

I Raise awareness about and increase participation in existing patient assi$ance programs;r Drive potential enrollees to the toll-free number and web site; and,r Make patient assistance programs easier for patients and providers to access,

Through a toll'hee number -- 1-888-4PPA-NOW (1-888-477-2669)- and a usa-friendg web sire
(umru.rxforuru.org), the_Partnership for Prescri$bn Assistance oiw.st virglnia 169;; single pint of
access to mtre than 475 public and.private patient assistance Fqram1 irrciuding rue thai ltig
progfrarnsofferedbypharmaceutical'conrpairies. -'.--r--i

More than 15 stare and local organizations, incbding the American Diabetes Association - West

Y.itSinlt Chapter, We* Virginia Chamber of Commeice, West Virginia psychotogicaf Associatbn and
West virginia Nurses Association, hqv_e partnaed with America'ipharmaceuticil companies to spread
the word about the program in West Virginia.

The.Partnenlip for Prescriptbn Assistance of West Virginia is also working with a fast-groning list of
bcalcommun$ leaden to create and prornote the proglram.



Help for Those Wn tlave Diffiadty Paying for Their ltedicines

Many people have difficulty affording heahh care, including prescription medicines, and are eligible for
public and private programs based 0n their age 0r income. A number of patient assistance programs,

FACT: In zoa1, rnore than
lS5rooo West Virginians earned
less than zoo percent of the
federal poverty level and did
not have health insurance.

about which information is available through the Partnership
for Prescription Assistance of We$ Virginia, provides help to
people who lack prescription coverage and eam less than
200 percent of the federal poverty level (approximately

$19,0m for an individual or $31,000 for a family of three).

industry'sponsored and federal assistance programs. Over the years, industry-sponsored assistanie
programs have resulted in tens of millions of prescrigions filled for uninsured and low-income
Amerhans:

- In 2002, 13.387,890 prescriptions were filled;
- In 2003, 18,160,523 prescriptions were filled; and
- In 2004, more than 22 million prescriptions were filled.

But much more work remains. Too feuv patients across the country, and in West Virginia, are aware 0f
how they can receive help or even that prescription assistance programs exist. That's why the
Partnership for Prescription Assistarrce has created a navigationalsystem that makes it easier for
many more West Virginians - and patients across the country - to get help with their prescriptions
through the program thafs right fs them.

Access to Medicines through Pubtic and fuivate Prescription Assistance Programs

Patients who contact the Padnership for Prescription Assistance of West Virginia are directed to the
prescription assistance programs most likely t0 meet their needs. The Partnership for Prescription
Assistance of West Virginia helps patients who lack prescription coverage:

- Obtain information about and applications for more than 475 patient assistance programs,
including Medicaid, Medicare and the State Children's Health Insurance Program; and

- Access information about programs that may provide assistance with more than 2,500
medicines.
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The Partnenhipfor Prescription Assl$ance of West Vlrginia is complementing rhe federal
government's efforts to raise tuareness about the newfledlcare Piescription"Drug Bernfn Uy:

- Providing information on the lou-incone berpfiu and- Distributing Medi'care brochures and dher informational materials at partnership for
Prescrigion Assistance of West Virginia events and through ne proEam,r.iii[.rn r (1.ggg.
4PPA.NOW)and Web site (umnr.rrtoryrry.org). 

- -. --'

Easy Enrollnnnt

Finding the rbht patieil assistance {9Strt can be complicated. That's why the partnoship for
Prescription Assistance of Wat Virginia offers:

- A single toll-free number and Web site; and,- Information about available prograrns.

For those who call, a trained specialisl asks a short series of questions, provides initial feedback and
helps patients identiff the specificprograms for which they ma'y qualify. Similar assistance and
information is available on the Web site.

Patients rnust simply provide:

- Age;

- State of residence and Zlp code;
- Estimated gross annual household income;
- Number of people lMng in their household;
- The name of the medicine they are currently taking or have been prescribed; and.- lf applicable, the type of health ins.rance and/or piescription coverage eligibility.

All responses to these questions are completely confidential.

"I can'a belieoe I fouail all ten of my
meili catians thr ough the P or:tterchip for
Presription Assistcace. It,s a mirach!"

- Partnership for prescription

Assistance Caller:-------------------------:--- ------ -.-j odine. The patient must provide any remaining
information and bring the forms to his or her health cure prouider's office. The healtir care proiider

A patient who may qualify willreceive information about
app.lication processes and appropriate appllcations by
mail. The appfications include the informatbn the
patient provided on the phone. Web site visitors can
print their applicafions after prwiding information

must sign the form and provid.e specific prexription infonnation (or simply anmh the pesciiptions).
Depending on the.program, either the pitient oi ttn tream care prwider mails the forms to the
company sponsoring the_specific program. Finally, the prescription medicines are either sent to the
heahh care prwider's officeor to the patient's trome. sbme patient assistance Fograms mail a
pharmacy c_ard to patienb. Patients ian use these cards to iet mer medicines at liial pharmacies
(see figure 1).



ffi'r'
lj-:1ll.- -l

l;.- - .'-t :l
l:r.. 1 tl

I ---*- |L:t114:1.] |

f|
PnJ

ll- , ',-l
lrto= l

Patienta call a
toll-free
numberr

-.---I-

E

--..-EI

-!--l or

| -.-'-...i{- -'at-: -::tr {.}JJ{ar4%ru
| : !:ljr.:::-:t. -'l

Patients vlsit
a user-friendly

lfleb slte

Figure 1. Partnership for Prescription Assistance
Enrollment and Application process

Trained rpeclalietr Application
help them through $re forms are mailed
appficatr'ms prcGess to the caller

Patients bring
the foms to
their health

care provlder

Patlents
recsive their
medicinee'H'

Patients search for a Patients
program ofiering the download
mediclnetheyneed appllcationform

Although each patient assistance program has its own timeline, the companies involved in the
Partnership for Prescription Assistance of West Wrginia are committed to getting medicines to eligible
patients as quickly as possibfe. Paients may contact the organization sponsoring a specific patient
assistance program to inquire when they will receive their medicines.
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A Strang Start: fi[ore Than 41,Ut0 Wed Wrghia Patients lhtched to prograns Sirce 20N;
|0,UnMak'hd in the Last Serrolrr Nonttu

[re.nanry.nhip for Prescriptbn Assistarre of West Virginia launched in April 2004 as Rx for Wesr
Virginia. Sirrce its launch, the.program has matched mdre than 44,000 pe6pb in Wes,t Virginia o
patient assistance qroEams.that appear to meet their needs. In June zbos, nx for west v-irginia joined
the Partnership for Prescription Assistance. Sincejoining the nationwide ppA program, the
Pannership for Prescription Assistance of West Vflinia ias helped more than ]O,6OO patients. The
data that follows provides information since the nafonat launch of the Partnership for Prescription
Assistame in April 2005.

- More than 10,0fi) people in West Virginia have searched for programs on eithen
uuvuw.rxforuv.org or through I {g8,lppA.l{Olrll;

- The callcenter has received 6,649 calls and orchestrated more than 4,500 matches since the
launch of the nationalprogram (see fgure 2a); and,- The Web site has received 5,773 visltors and orchestrated more than S,0@ matches since the
launch of the national prqram {see figure 2b).

- lgutllY'three percent of individuals contacting the Partnership for Prescriglon Assistance of
Wes Virginia are 6l years-old and punger (see figure 2c).

Flgun 2r. t||mb.r dw.3r Ulchh|r klctrd ro
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Nationally, awareness of the Partnenhip forfrescription Assistance has been driven through a variety
of communications channels according to KRC Research, a full-service market research firir hireO to-
survey people who used the program (see figure 3):

- Television advertisements (70 percent);
- Television news {25 percent);

- From friends or family (19 percent);
- From doctor or docto/s otrice {16 percent};
- From a mailing sent home (14 percent);

- In a newspaper or magazine advertisernent (11 percent);
- In a newspaper or magazine article (11 percent);

- From a hospitalor medicalclinic (8 percent);

- From a pharnacy (6 percent);
- From using an lnternet search engine such as yahool or Googre (6 percent);
- In a radio advertisement (5 percent); and,
- 0n radio news (3 percent).

Figure 3. How Patients Heard About the Partnership for
Prescription Assistance

Television ad

Televislon neua

Friends/family

Doctor

Mailing to home

print ad

Nartspaper/
magazine article

Doctor's office,
clinic, hoepital

Intemet search engine

Radioad!596

Radio newsl3%

Note: Respndents wae able to provide nore than dre resrynse.
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KRC afso found that (see ligure 4):

- Nationally, 76 percent of responderts
contacted the Partnership for Pracrigion
Assistance because they wdre having trouble
gettirq the medicines they needed and
required assistance;

- Thirty-one prcent found the cost of
prescription drugs too high; and,

- Sixteen percent simply uvanted more
information.

FACT, Nationalty, 76 percent of
people conracted the Partnership
for Prescription Assistance because
they were having trouble gerting
the medicines they needed and
required assistance.

Figure 4. What Prompted patients to Call
1€884PPA.NOW

needed assistance
Presqription

drug costs are
too high

Wanted more
information

Having trouble,

Note: Respuffing were able to provjde mwetlan uE rcsporce.



ryfi*rly, MoPt latients |htchd to Prryans Are Satisfifd with ttp- partnuship for
Prescription Ass istarce

FACT: Seven in ro people who
have contacted the Partnership
for Prescription Assistance are
sarisfied with the program. Fifty
percent are completely satisfied.

Efficient Application Process contibuts to itatiorwt prognnsuccess

After calfing the Partnership for kescription Assistance callcenter:

- Seventy-eight percent of patients requested an applicatiou
- linql'gne percent of callers found the amount and type of personalinformation requested by

the PPA to be reasonable;
- Seventy percent of patients who received applications in the mail affirmed that the call center

representatives had filled out some of the information on the form based on thef phone
conversation; and,

- fine in 10 patients said that the assistance they received from the Partnership for Prescription
Assistance in filling out the appiication was hetpful.

- Satisfaction with the Partnership for Prescription
Assistance is very high-seven in ten are at least
somewhat satisfied, and half are completely
satisfied.

- The Partnenhip for Prescription Assistance is
considered a very useful pubfic service by 83
percent of people surveyed.

-Ellen ward, Executive Dir-"",o, i it took was'sooner than expected" or "about right."
Mental Health Association of
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-;--.; .;- ;;;--'--l More than three-fourths of those surveyed across the U.S.i uw" 

'revery 
exciteil &out the PPA i wrro completed the process received their medicines.i ptogrambccause it gives our clients a i t^*.. ^^-^^-. ^3 lL^-^ _^-_r- ^^:r rL_ -. r:_^ :^:ff;il;;;:',hq":;; i;" " i I'j.v,ff:Ylll3:: gt?Jg ::i911.-1lo_y1:ljTg 

it

prograk tha, -itt prooii i*r-ut, i l*k for the medicines to arive was ahut righu three-

fr"i * warly free presoiption d*gr,." 1 lo$ltsof those who.received their me-dicines.said-the time

Kanawha Valley ! ln addition, callcenter representatives received extremely

, 
---;----. ----: 

- - 
-_-:---:----l:----.-------i high marks on service ratings - "friendly," "helpful,"

'professional,'"efficient" and "concerned aboui caller needs." In fact, sriruey respondents cite good
customet service and assistance as the aspect of the program they liked best Even of those wtro OiO
not qualify for assistance programs, more than half still saiO tney were satisfied with both the people
and the service they received,
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Enrottment and Connunications Chailenges

tl

fl 
A.oo.,sting natbnalenrollment q prblg ard private presaigion drug programs historhally has been a

ll challenge. People cannot get help if they do not knou that help is avaitable. And evenihose that knoil

lf |ttp is available often do not understand, q do not have the titTe to understand, horv to get Srat help.
Il Some dont want help. Some are skeptbal that a program touting 

.free 
or nearly free meibine" is 

'

fl tegltimate.

tl

ll 
A number of studies have identified some of the most common baniers to enrolling in these UFs of

ll 
programs, mcu0|ng:

tl

ll . Lack of knowledge abut programs;

ll . Belief rhar heywcnrld no quatis;

ll . Stigma associated wlth apptying for financial assistance;

ll . Fear of lming orher benefits; and,

ll . The administrative complexlty of enrolling.
tl

ll 
n suustantialgroup of potentially eligible people, inctuding many in West Virginia, do not know abcut

ll 
th9. pPgram,.do.not have a cunent need fw assi$ance, or, for varied reasons, do not follow through

lf 
with the application process for a parthular program. 'National 

research shorrus that:

tl

ll - prior ro rheir rirsr cail to rhe parrnerslp ror ffi;;-=i*,;:;;;;;;.";;-;;";;;;i;1
lf ft:,lption 

Assistance, 65 percent 0f i ;;;;; said that, b"ro,. ."r1"[- ir.." j

ll !:?PL. :l*ty.d were unaware that i partnlrship for prescription Aseisiar,.", i

ll pharmaceuticalcompanies had patient i th"y -"r" orr"-"re th"t pharmaceutical !

lf utsistance programs I fndp patbnts in i comp"nies had patieit """irt"n"" 
j

ll te.d recerye pescription medications. i programs to help patients in need receive i

ll - Of those 
ry.hc yere aware. only 26 percent i prescriptior, -"ii.i'ur. i

ll *ere enrolled in a previous assistance L-----------.__ _--_-_-__-.--_.i

ll Ptogram.
ll
ll nmong those who appeared eligible for assistance but did not cornplete the application process:[-
tl

ll . Twenty-four percent said they needed their doctor's hetp;

ll ' Twenty'four percent gave "procrastination'as a reason for not completing the application;

ll r Thirteen percent said they had been ill;

ll ' Eleven percent said they had other options/did not need help at that time; and,

ll . Eight percent said they had just recently received the forms.
tl

ll fn totttt rnicating the benefit to the eligible population natbnalty, the partnership for prescriprion

ll Assistance has faced a number of challenges, including:

tl

ll ' Misunderstandings about the differences between the Partnership for prescription Assistance

ll lnO specific patient assistance programs that provide medicines ior free or nearly free;

ll 
. Reluctance of peopte to ask for help;

I'



r Lack of appropriate information to ansuver pre-screening questions (e.g., names of medicines).

To address enrollment and communications challenges, the Pailnership for prescription Assistance is
working with its national, state and local partners to find effective *uys bf addressing grese isiues.- 

-
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On a national scale, the Partnership fol Prescriptbn Assistance has used paid advertising and media
outreach to encourage all people who have difficulty affording theh rnediciires to callfre toU-fee
number or visft the user'friendly Web site to obtain information about patient assistarre programs.

But advertisirE alorn is not sufiicient to reach this audience and motivate action. ldenfiifying pter*ial
beneficiaries and encouraging them to apply for help requires creative, varied and consistent outreach
mechanisms.

RottitE out Partnerchip for Prewipion Assistanre Chapterc in Alt fl) Sntes

To reach millions of eli$ble pa$ents across the country, the
Partnership for Prescription As$starce has launched ime-
based chapters in nearly all 50 states, incMing West
Virginia, with the help of local patient, providu and civic
partner organizations.

The Partnenhip for Prescription Assistance of West Virginia
actively spreads the word and boosts enrdlrrent numbels on
a daily basis by:

FACT; As of November zoo5,
nearly all 5o states (in addition
to Washington, D.C. and
Puerto Rico) have state-based
chapters of the Partnership for
Prescription Assistance.

- fartnering with dozens of local health and advocacy organizations;
- Reaching out to religious and minuity groups;
- Holding press conferences and enrollnent events; and,- Distributing informatbn on the program in bw-incorne communities.

Lamching a Natiottwide Enraltment Bus Tu,r: Rorting into wgr;t virginia

The "Help ls Here Express" bus is a traveling enrollment center that
bings the Partnership for ftescription Assistance directly to the
people asoss the United States who need help the most.

The "Help ls Here Express" bus tour was launched during the
Robert Wood Johnson Foundation's Cover the Uninsured Week to
inform milfions of uninsured patients that they may qualify for
assistance with their prescription medicines.

Ihe 'Help is Here Express"
kiclred of ils West Yirginia state

tour at the Capitol.

The "Help ls Here. Express." which is equipped with 10 computer terminals and six telephones to
encourage guided on-site access to progam applications. brings trained program specialists to retail
centers, state fairs, health clinics, communlty events and other destinations.



In June, the'Help ls Here Express'traveled toWest Virginia for media and enrollment ever{s. The
bus first sqpped at the state Capilol building in Charleston for a press conference with Govemor Joe

."'ir" I
ver r,,Jl .rrvppsu sr, lils Jrqrs voptrvt uu||uiltg |lt vildiltr)tuil il,rl at JrIgss conlgrgncg wlln bovgmor Joe ll IManchin.ThebusthentraveledtoTamarackArtsCenterin||l
Beckley, Ruby Mennrial Hospital in Morgantown, Cabela's in
Wheeling and Marshall County Senior Center in Mcnrndsville to#ffi"fifi#;ffifffiffiHilil:T';i.#HffiffJl* ll I
their prescription medicines.

Thousandsofpeop|enationa||y,andmanyinWestVirginia,havel||
boarded the bus to begin the process of enrolling in patient
assistance programs. E

Governor Manchin nlk a the ll I
media about the PPA of WY during

Enlisting the Hetp of Locat aN Natioml pattnqs a June press conferenee' I
More than 1,200 nationll..an!.stat9 partners, i';;;;;;;;;;;;;;i;;';"rt;;;;"i
incfuding those in West Virginia, whb have I ,ru-*"L ;;i;;" fotnil it east to use anaoett iancfudtng those in West Virginia, who have i the sysren anilhave fovni it'"*y to use anilvcta i ll I
signed on to the Partnership for Prescription i hn"Sriol:, ' 

i ll t
Assistance, have also implemented their own i -Roberta Ahearn, Executive Director
communications plans to spread the vuord i American Diabetes Associarion, WV Chapt"r i ll I
about the program. r-.---.--------- -------j ll f

Partner outreach activities include: 
ll t

- Hosting enrollment drives and demonstrations of how the program works;
- Distributing brochures in the comrnunity; ll I- Exhibiting the program at various conventions and expos; il f
- Speaking about the program at high-profile events;
- Adding information anoft ttre progiair to their organization's web site; and, ll I- Mobilizing members, constituents or people within the community to help spread the word. ll f

These pafiners have generated thousands of requests for enrollment kits in Engtish and Spanish fl I

ll!ll I

ll:
1{l
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Reachirg Physicians and D*torrs' gdffs

Physicians, doctors, nurse practitbrrers,-physicians'assistants, nurses and offbe staff play a cnrial
role for the target.populatbn. Refenals from doctors, doctors'oflices, medicalcllnics ahO-hospitats
have hen a catalyst for 24 percent of all calls to the Partnership for Prescription Assistance call center.

In order to assist doctont. FFtlg their patients gain access to the pescription medicines they need,

!fe. Pq{naship for Prescriptbn As-sistance recently provided more than 70,'0m physhiam in ttie
United States with audience-speciftc program matirial. To complement these eifoits, some
pharmaceuticalcompanies have decided to spread rhe word abbut the partnership fo prescription
Assista nce through their sales representatives.

Edtrcating Electd Offi cia,s

The Partnership for Prescriptbn Assistarrce has conducted many projects to help inform and educate
Members of Congress on the resources avatable for their constiiu'enis. In coordination wtth the
nationallauncJr of the progfm, informationalpackets about the Partnership for Presaiption Assistance
were distributed to all 535 Capitol Hill offices and 1,500 corqressional disfi6 ofiices. House and
Senate Hill brielings have also been condrcted, along with iix district Webcast training sessions on the
Partnership for Presoiption Assistance.

Education contirues with state-sPecific delegation bdefings on the launches of state-based chapters of
the Partnershlp for Prescription Assistance is wett as bi-fieekly upOarct to all health care legislbtive
assistants and press secretaries noting the Fograms progresi. 

'

Ongoing tihasuremmt aN hrryovenent

Designedto facilitate enrollment in exi$ing prescrption assistarrce programs, the success of the
Partnership for Prescription Assistance relies heavily on ongoing prbgrim evaluatbn, tracking results
and rnaking the appropriate modifications at both thi national aiO'state levels.

One example of how the program has improved its service to consmers is its expansbn of the
navigation syslgm. 

.When the Partrrership for Prescription Assistance launched nbtionally in April2005,
the program offered patients a single point of accessio information about more than 215 publii and
pr"ivate plggr-am: that could prwide more than 1,200 brand-name prescription medicines.' Today, the
Partnership for Prescription Assistance provides ircess to information about more than 475 public and
prryate programs that could provide more than 2,500 brand-name prescription medicines. In addition,
patients are able to search for a wide range of generic medicines. 

'

The Partnership for ftescription Assistance will continue to add and update programs to its sys,tems
and is constantly evaluating ways t0 imprwe the user experience and'expand de amount of iervice
consumers can receive from the call center and Web site.



PARTNERS OF THE PARTNERSHTP FOR PRESCRIPTION ASSISTANCE OF WEST VIRGINIA:
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Alzheimer's Association of West

Virginia

American Diabetes Association, West

Virginia Chapter

Arthritis Foundation, Ohio River

Valley Chapter

Central West Virginia Aging Services

Epilepsy Foundation, West Virginia

Highland Hospital

Lymphomalleukem ia Society,

Westem PA and W Chapter

MenrtalHealth Association of the

Greater Kanawha Valley

NAMI West Virginia

Pharmaceutical Research and

Manufacturers of America (PhRMA)

Schoenbaum Family Enrichment Center

Wellness Councilof West Virginia

West Virginia Association of Diabetes

Educators

WestVirginia Chamber of Commerce

West Virginia Nurses Association

West Virginia Orthopaedic Society

West Virginia Primary Care Association

West Virginia Psychological Association

Fl^r. I

,.-.:), hrtnc.nhip rprJ-
l_'- t-*@-n"ittttg

WESTVIRGINIA

For general information on the Partnership for Prescrlption Assistance of West Virginia, visit rvumr.rxforwv.org or call 1-888-fPPA-NOW.
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WNSI VTNCTNTA BOARD OF TREASURY INVESTMENTS

scHEDuLE oF Nnt Assnrs' "t"ffi*r" 
CHANGES rN NEr AssErs -

NovEMBEn30,2006
(INTHOUSANDS)

Government
MoneY

Market

ParticiPant
Directed

Other Pools AccountsEnhanced
Yield

Assets

lnvestments:
At amortized cost

At fair value

""ff"[*t 
for securities loaned

Other assets

Total assets

Liebilities
;;;;; i"' securities loaned

oiher liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Assets

289,181 2S',990

20,326 *w
-!' I'!f',*

$ 131,150

$ 1,873,214 $ 200',642 s 273,382 153',112
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l4o,'149
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Investment income.

lnterest and dividends

Securities lending income

i",l."t,ion (amortization)

;;;;i"t for uncollectible loans

Total investment income

ExPenses

Fees

t..ttt,t.t lending borrower rebates

Total exPenses

Net investment income

Net realized gain (loss)

from investments
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in fair value of investments

rqii n"i" (loss) from investments
'N;i;;;;";' (decrease) in net

assets from oPerations

Distributions to ParticiPants
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Administration and Finance

December 30, 2006

Aaron A. Allred
Legislative Manager and
Legislative Auditor
1900 Kanawha Blvd., E.
Room E-132
Charleston, \A/V 25305

Dear Mr. Allred,

In accordance with the requirements of \A/V State Code S12-1-12d(0, I respectfully
submit this report on behalf of the West Virginia University Board of Governors. This
report is intended to provide information about the activities of the University in regard
to investments since passage of Senate Bill 603 as well as investment performance
since the time of investment.

Shortly after investment flexibility was granted to the University on July 1, 2005, the
institution underwent significant changes within the Administration and Finance
Division. Gary Rogers, Vice President of Administration, Finance and Human
Resources announe€d that he was leaving to become the Chief Financial Officer of the
University of Tennessee System in September 2005. John Williams, Associate Vice
President for Finance began an extended medical leave of absence in late summer of
2005. These two roles were filled on an interim basis. I served as Interim Vice
President of Administration, Finance and Human Resources and Dan Durbin served
as lnterim Associate Vice President for Finance.

Since that time, the University has stabilized its management team within the
Administration and Finance Division. I accepted the position of Vice President for
Finance and Administration in March 2006 following a nationalsearch. Dan Durbin
subsequently accepted the position of Associate Vice President for Finance. In light of
the investment flexibility granted by Senate Bill 603, the need for a treasury
management function was recognized. Responsibility of this function was added to
my former position, Assistant Vice President for Planning and a new role, Associate
Vice President for Planning and Treasury Operations was created. Elizabeth
Reynolds assumed that role in mid-June 2006.

The \M/U Board of Governors adopted Policy 43: Investment Policy at its June 2,
2006 meeting. A copy of this policy may be found at
http ://www.wvu.ed u/-boo/bos policies. htrn.

Phone: 304-293-2545
Fax: 304-293-3493

www.wvu.edu/-adminf in/

Offlce of Vice President

104 Stewart Hall
PO Box 6205
Morgantown, WV 26506-6205 Equal Opportunity/Afiirmative Actbn Institution



On September 1, 2006, the Treasury Operations function of \ /VU was formally
organized. Since that time, the staff of that unit have identified the funds available for
investment with the \A/VU Foundation and completed the necessary transactions to
laMully move the resources from the state. After a thorough analysis of the
University's historical cash flows, it was determined that \ /VU has sufficient cash flow
in its largest state account to enable $25 million to be taken from that one account.
Thereby, ensuring a very efficient transfer and eliminating recordkeeping to distribute
interest earning among various state accounts.

\ ruU moved $25 million from the state treasury to the \ ruU Foundation on October
13, 2006. At that time, the funds were invested by the \ ruU Foundation in the
Commonfund Short Term Fund. This is an investment vehicle that is only open to
educational institutions described in Section 170(bxlXA)(ii) of the Internal Revenue
Code and educational support organizations described in Section 170(bX1XA)(iv) of
the Code. This fund seeks a monthly rate of return that matches or exceeds the bond
equivalent yield of 3-month Treasury securities issued for that month. The fund credits
a portion of any excess return over the 3-month Treasury bill rate to a Reserve
Account according to a smoothing formula. This Reserve Account allows the fund to
supplement returns to participants in any month that the Short Term Fund does not
meet this objective. At the time of the report by the \ ruU Foundation, December 15,

2006, this investment had earned $174,000 or an approximate annualized return of
4% without risking principal.

A formal investment summary report from the \ A/U Foundation has been prepared. I

have enclosed fourteen copies of this report for distribution to the House members of
the Joint Committee on Government and Finance.

Subsequent to the investment reporting date, the \A/VU Foundation began investing
the funds in accordance with the investment policy. Details regarding these
investments may be found in the attached report from the \AruU Foundation. Next
yea/s report will provide information on the performance of these investments.

Should you desire any additional information regarding \A/VU's investment with the
\AruU Foundation, please contact me directly.

Vice President for Administration and Finance



Fffi

West Virginia University
Unrestricted Investment Funds

Report as of December 18, 2006

v
Confidential



I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
T

I
t
I
I
I
I
t

-,--WVUI-OUNDATION

December 18.2006

Mr. Narvel G. Weese, Jr.
Vice President for Administration and Finance
West Virginia University
Stewart Hall
Post Office Box 6205
Morgantown, West Virginia 26506

Re: WVU Unrestricted Investment Funds' Interim Report

Dear Mr. Weese:

The West Virginia University Foundation, Incorporated (the "'WV[J Foundation") is
pleased to act as Investment Agent (the "Agent") on behalf of West Virginia University
("WVU") with respect to its Unrestricted Investment Funds (the "Invesffnent Funds"),
pursuant to the Investment Management Agency Agreement (the "Agreement") dated
October 2,2006.

In accordance with $12-l-l2b of WV Senate Bill 603, $25,000,000 of Investment Funds
were transferred from the West Virginia State Treasurer's Office on October 13,2006
and temporarily invested (in their entirety) in The Commonfund Short Term Fund. It is
expected that, on or before January 2,2007, these Investment Funds will be redirected
and invested in accordance with the Policy Portfolio (the "Policy Portfolio") contained in
the WVU Board of Governors' Investment Policy.

As Investment Agent, the WVU Foundation will prepare quarterly and annual investment
reports, within 30 calendar days of each period end, for submission to the Vice President
for Administration and Finance. Each investment report will contain, but not be limited
to, the following items:

'An investment commentary and market review;

'A summary of the change in market value of the Investment Funds;

'A performance review of the investment managers;

' A comparison of the actual asset allocation relative to the Policy Portfolio; and

' Other supplemental materials.

One Waterfront Place . Sevenrh Floor . Morgantown, \DfV 26501
304.284.4000 . Fax: 304.284.4001 . wwwwvuf.ors
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As requested, enclosed herewith is an abbreviated interim report for the investment
period since inception on October 13,2006 through December 15, 2006. The following
items are included herein under Tab 1:

' Third Quarter 2006Investment Commentary, Third Quarter 2006 Market
Review, and Fourth Quarter 2006 Market Review (through November 30);

' The change in market value of the Investment Funds from October 13,
2006 through December 15,2006; and

' The pro forma asset allocation as of January 2,2007 relative to the Policy
Portfolio.

Included under Tab 2 is supplemental information describing each of the investment
managers and funds retained to act on behalf of the Investment Funds.

We are honored to have been selected as Investrnent Agent by WVU and look forward to
serving your needs as they relate to the Investment Funds. If you have any questions or
would like any additional information, please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

g* t/. l^h-

304-284-4034

Dale M. Hunt
Associate Vice President for Investments
304-284-4013

il
il
I
il
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Third Ouarter 2(X)6 Investment Commentarv

"Mountain climbers celebrate on the summit, even though the hardest part
of the trip is still before them: Getting back. Most accidents happen on descent,
when you're tired and drop your guard. Companies and even indivi.dual careers
are subiect to the same rules: You're most vulnerable at the top of your game
and at those times when youfeel most secure and confident despite the odds.
You do it again, and still nothing bad happens. This teaches you that it's safe
and sets you up for failure." (Laurence Gonzales, Deep survival)

While the early part of the quarter was dominated by continued Fed watching, it was quickly
overshadowed in September by news of the debacle at Amaranth Advisorso a 'multi-strategy' hedge
fund that held concentrated positions on the wrong side of the natural gas market. Once u g-q.S

billion fund, its value quickly evaporated by almost 7OVo. Theevents surrounding its demise merit
some retrospection, as they provide insight as to how such a crisis evolves.

At first, the magnitude of the losses suffered by Amaranth was eerily reminiscent of another notable
hedge fund debacle eight years ago to the month. In September 1998, Long-Term Capital
Management's assets had shrunk to $600 million from $4 billion as a result of a series of events
emanating out of the Russian debt crisis. Thankfully, there were few other similarities between the
two crises. In 1998, the cause of the LTCM debacle was a massive global flight to liquidity, to such
an extent that even the U.S. Treasury market had difficulty accommodating demand. Repercussions
were felt throughout the global markets, with the S&P 500Index off more than lOVo for ihe quarter.

Amaranth's problems were also caused by a liquidity crisis, this time emanating from a mild
hurricane season (which went against the fund's bets that natural gas prices *outd rise as they did
post-Katrina last year). Unlike 1998, however, as Amaranth was called upon by its prime brokers to
meet margin calls, there was little widespread dislocation in the rest of the capital markets. Even
though Amaranth's losses were larger in nominal dollar terms than LTCM's,ihere was some solace
to be found in the fact that the repercussions were contained. The S&P 500 advanced 2.6Vo in
September, providing almost half of the quarter,s 5.7Vo return.

To be sure, there were numerous technical factors at work conspiring to prevent a massive
meltdown from Amaranth. As a result of LTCM and other situations, prime brokers had tightened
their risk-monitoring processes to more quickly place margin calls andlimit losses. In addition,
interested third-parties within the industry were quick to seize an opportunity and salvage the
remains. Perhaps, however, some of the market's resiliency could bi attributed to the often scoffed
at phrase that "it's different this time." But, just maybe, it was (is) different this time for reasons
that have little to do with lending limits, credit risk, etc.

In 1998, a devaluation of the Russian ruble set off a chain of events that rippled throughout the rest
of the world. Today, it takes more than a9lll, or a l.ondon or Madrid train bombing, or a coup in
Thailand, or an Amaranth to derail the global markets for very long. Perhaps the world has
changed, and as a result, there is more parity worldwide to insulate against iorn" of these shock
waves. For example, in 1998, the BRICs (Brazil, Russia, India, and China) were the recipients of
foreign direct investment (much of it from the U.S.). Today, however, a Brazilian steel producer is
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interested in Wheeling-Pittsburgh Steel; a Russian oil company, Lukoil, flies its flags over Getty
gas stations; Mittal, a company owned by one of India's wealthiest families, is the largest steel
producer in the U.S.; and the Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd. launched the largest IpO
ever, raising $19 billion and creating a market capitalization just shy of that of JPMorgan Chase.

While these developments could be unsettling for some, it could be interpreted as a healthy sign that
these 'emerging' nations have become 'developing' nations through foreign investment. From our
perspective, it means that the menu of opportunities has broadened, but comrn€nsurately, so have
the risks. The bottom line lesson from the Amaranth situation is perhaps this: while opportunities
abound to make significant returns at home and abroad, we must remain vigilant and disassociate
future expectations from past performance. Our investment world 

"ncoutuges 
the behavior of Brian

Hunter of Amaranth and then is quick to blame and shift responsibility when the tide turns. As
Warren Buffett once said, we need "to be fearful when others are greedy ... [and have] the
temperament to control the urges that get other people into trouble in investing."

Third Ouarter 2fi)6 Market Review

The U.S. economy showed some signs of its much anticipated slowdown during the third calendar
quarter of 2006. Inflation expectations were revised lower during the quarter as key leading
indicators pointed to softer growth and more stable energy prices. While corporateearningi growth
remained robust, concerns regarding a downturn in housing and moderate GDP growth Q3%
versus 5vo) combined to allow the Fed to suspend its program of rate hikes.

The combination of slower growth, easing oil prices, and strong corporate balance sheets was a
positive development for the equity markets after a weak second quart"t. Although seemingly
bewildered in July as to whether the economy was growing too quickty or too slowly, invesiors
gained confidence as the quarter progressed that perhaps energy prices had peaked, the Fed had
paused, and valuations were reasonable (16 times forward earnings, down from 18.5 times). As a
result, the S&P 500Index retumed 5.7Vo andposted another consecutive quarter of double-digit
earnings growth. There was, however, a clear divergence in equity performance during the quarter
between large, mid and small cap stocks. While the S&P S00 fnOef regained its leadeiship position,
the Russell 2000Index became a fallen star, returning only O.4%o,and the S&P 400Index lost l.l7o.
Within the indices, there was also a change among sector performance, with energy, materials and
industrials giving way to health care, telecoms, technology, and financials. As Birinyi Associates
noted, the 50 stocks with the worst performance during the first six months of the year had the best
third quarter returns and vice versa. In addition, while value stocks again outperformed growth
stocks, that trend began to reverse itself during the latter half of the quarter aJtraditional growth
sectors moved to the forefront. Overall, it continued to be a difficult quarter for actively managed
large cap funds, with less than3OVo reportedly able to beat the S&P 500Index.

The international equity markets also recovered in the third calendar quarter as fears of higher
inflation and interest rates receded. As with the U.S. equity markets, iher" *as a wide divergence,
however, in sector returns, with the technology and telecom sectors leading at the expense of the
materials sector. Overall, the MSCI EAFE Index returned 3.97o inU.S. dollar terms. The emerging
markets likewise witnessed a recovery from a weak second quarter, although September ended on a'
somewhat turbulent note as a result of rising political tensions (Thai militury 

"oup 
and Latin
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American elections) and declining commodity prices. Underlying these events was continued
concern about the impact of cooling demand from any slowing of the U.S. economy. Nevertheless,
the MSCI Emerging Markets Index returned 4.9vo for the quarter.

The Federal Reserve held rates steady in August and September, and the bond market rallied,
pushing up prices and, in turn, pushing down yields. Overall, bonds kept pace with stocks. The
Treasury curve inverted as yields along the maturity spectrum declinedipproximately 50 basis
points. By the end of the quarter, the 30-year Treasury was at 4.76Vo, down from 5.25Vo on June
30th. Investment grade corporate spreads widened marginally, remaining near multi-year lows, and
the lrhman Aggregate Bond Index returned 3.87o for the quarter. lnterest rate volatility declined
following the August Fed meeting before a sharp rally occurred in late September.

As in the U.S., moderating growth and well-contained inflation exerted downward pressure on
global bond yields. The Citigroup World Government Bond Index returned l.4Vo for the quarter,
well behind its U.S. counterpart. During the quarter, emerging markets debt performed strongly,
recovering from a weak second quarter when there was a sell-off in riskier asiets. Spreads on 

-

emerging market external debt approached record tight levels, supported by positive technicals
related to reduced supply. For the quarter, emerging market bonds advanced 6.4Vo.

Energy prices dominated the commodities market during the quarter, with oil reaching a high of $77
in mid-July. The price of oil fell to $63 by mid-September, as the market realized rhat the U.S. has
substantial reserves and discussions were underway with kan regarding its nuclear program.
Natural gas prices also tumbled from $8.65 at the beginning of August to $4.40 in mid-September.
Unlike energy, real estate and timber both had strong quarters. As the bond markets rallied and the
dollar strengthened, metals sold off, with gold down 2.9Vo.

Market Indices: Thir-d Ouarter and Calendar year-to.Date

JPM EillBl clobat DivenJfied

s&P t00
MSCI Emerging llarkets Free

Rue|| 3(XXl

MSGI Wortd Index
MSCI All Country World Index

NCREIF Propcrty (One etr Lag)

MSCI EAFE

LB Agglegate

NCREIF Timbedand (One Cttr Lag)

Gitigroup Wodd Gov€rnment Bond

Ru*il 2(XX)

HFRI Fund of FundaCompodte

S&P rrql

cold Index (Btoomberg)

[}J:A|G Commoditae3 lndex

l Srd Galendar Ouarter 2006
I Year-To-Date An6
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FouTth Ouarter 2006 Market Review (throueh November 30tb)

The month of October produced another set of strong equity market returns, as investors
appeared unfazed by mixed economic news and gyrations in the fixed income markets. Stock
market strength was broad-based during the month, with every major equity index advancing
more than 3%. The Russell2000 (Small Cap) Index led the U.S. market, returning 5.8% and
deffing the recent trend towards large capitalization companies.

Having started the month yielding 4.6oA,the 10-year U.S. Treasury note backed up about 20
basis points mid-month on fears that economic growth mightbe reaccelerating and forcing the
Federal Reserve to tighten further. However, by October 23'd (ust prior to the FOMC meeting),
the fed funds futures market had priced in a small probability of further rate increases and,
following the meeting, sentiment was that the Fed was through tightening and could well be
easing by spring 2007. As a result, the l0-year Treasury finished the month where it had started,
yielding 4.6%.

The equity markets continued to make solid upward progress in November, finishing near yearly
highs. Investors displayed some nervousness towards the end of the month on the heels of some
hawkish inflation comments by the Federal Reserve Chairman, but quickly recovered by month-
end. The market appeared to be convinced that the Fed is firmly on hold for the present, and that
an easing by the middle of 2007 may occur. As a result, investors began to lengthen their
investment time horizons, showing greater appreciation for longer duration, growth stocks over
value names. Market strength continued into the first half of December, as the S&P 500Index
reached new yearly highs.

The following table provides selected market data through the first nine months of the calendar
year, followed by October and November's combined performance, culminating in the 1l-month
returns through November 30th.

YTD thru
9t30t06

S&P 500lndex +8.5%

Russell2000Index +8.7yo

MSCI World Index +10.8%

Lehman U.S. Bond Index +3.1%

Citigroup Global Bond Index +4.2yo

3-Month Treasury Bill +3.6%

QTD thru YTD thru
rr3al06 ru30t06

+5.2%

+83%

+6.2%

+l.8Yo

+3.7%

+0.8%

+t4.29

+18.0%

+l7.7yo

+4.9yo

+g.loh

+4.4yo
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Chanee in Market Value from October 13. 2006 throush December 13.2006

On October 13,2006, $25,000,000 of Unrestricted Investment Funds was deposited on behalf of
WVU into The Commonfund Short Term Fund. For the two-month period, the portfolio has
earned $174,056 in interest, bringing the market value to $25,174,056 as of December 13, 2006.

On December 14, 2006, $23,250,000 was wired out of The Commonfund Short Term Fund to a
money market account at State Street Bank & Trust Company N.A. in anticipation of
implementing the Policy Portfolio. These funds will be invested between December 15ft and
28th with various investment managers in accordance with the approved asset allocation. A
summary of the Policy Portfolio follows, along with the pro forma asset allocation effective
January 2,2007. Additional information regarding each of the investment managers and their
funds follows the asset allocation summary.

Asset Allocation

Asset Class (Manaser) Policy Target Permitted Range ll2/07 Allocation

Equities:

U.S. Equity:
Dodge & Cox Stock Fund 25o/o

International Equity:
Dodge & Cox Stock Fund

Total Equity

Fixed Income:

U.S. Bonds:
Income Research & Management

Global Bonds:
Brandywine Global

TIPS:
Income Research & Management

High Yield

Real Assets

Hedge Funds:
Robeco-S age International

Cash:
CF Short Term Fund

Total Fixed Income

s0% 4s-55%

3% 2-5%

s%

30%

20-30%

3-7%

25-35%

2-5%

0-4%

2-6%

0-6%

0-5%

65-75%

24%

4%o

28%

48%

3o/o

2%

4%

4%

4%

70%

8%

4%

0%

0%

4%

8%

72%
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Please note that, while the allocation to Global Bonds appears to be three percentage points
above the maximum permitted within the range, approximately 25% of that portfolio is invested
in U.S. bonds. In addition, there is initially a zero percent allocation to real assets which is offset
by an overweight allocation to cash. It is intended that a commitment to real assets will be made
during the first calendar quarter of 20A7, thereby reducing cash.

Supplemental Materials

Attached to this interim report are summaries, as of September 30, 2006,describing each of the
investment funds cited in the asset allocation. Since the Investment Funds will not be fully
invested with each of these managers until January 2,2007,their historical performance records
are provided for informational purposes only and are not a guarantee as to future performance.
Also attached is the most recent Treasury Report, dated November 2006, from The
Commonfund.
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Dodge & Cox Stock Fund
(U.S. & International Equities)
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Dodge & Uon Stock Fund (D)DGX) September 30, 2006
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Objective

Strategy

Unless otberwise noted, tfu information fulow is as of Septenbet 30,2006.

General Information Asset Allocation

Benefits

The Fund seeks long-term growth ofprincipal and income. A secondary objective is to achieve a reasonable current income.

Ihe lirnd invess primarily in a broadly diversified pordolio of common stocks. In selecting invesfinents, the Fund invests in companies
that, in Dodge & C9x's opiniol, appear to be temporarily undervalued by the stock market-but have a favorable outlook for longierm
grofih. The Fund focuses on the underlying financial condition and prospects of individual companies, including future eaminls, cash
flow and dividends. Various other factors, including financial strength, eionomic condition, cornpetitive advana[e, quality of rh"e 

'

business franchise and the reputation, experience and competence of a company's management ;re weighed adinsivaluation in
selecting indMdual securities.

. A simple way to own a broadly divenilied pordolio of stoclrso Low expenses, no sales charges, no distribution fees

Net Asset Value Per Share

Total Net Assets (billions)

hpense Ratio (annualized, as ofJune 30, 2006)
2005 Pordolio Turnover Rate

30-Day SEC Yield"'
Fund Inception

Investment Manager: Dodge & Cox, San Francisco. Managed by the
Investrnent Policy Committee, whose ten members' average tenure at Dodge
& Cox is 23 years.

Portfolio Characteristics Fund S&P 500 Sector Diversification

6r50.77

$6t.0
0.52/o

t2%
1.20%

1965

Stocks:95.2%

Equivalents: 4.8%

Fund S&P 500

I
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Number of Stocls

Median Market C apitaltzrrtion (billions)
Weighted Average Market Capitalization (billions)
Price-to-Earnings Ratio{u)

Foreign Stocktcr (% of Fund)

Ten Largest Holdings{u)

86

$zq

$69

14.6x

t5.8%

500

$13

$96

r4.%
0.0%

Fund

Consumer Discretionary

Health Care

Financials

Information Technolog5r

Energy

Industrials

Materials

Consumer Staples

21.60/o l0.lo/o

16.5 12.7

t4.5 22.3

13.7 r5.3
8.8 9.3
8.7 l0.g
5.2 2.9

3'8 9'6
t.4 3.4
1.0 3.5

Hewlett-Packard Co.

Comcast Corp. Class A

Pfizer, Inc.

News Corp. Class A

Time Warner, Inc.

Chewon Corp.

Sony Corp. AI)R (fapan)

McD,onald's Corp.

Matsushita Hectric Industrial Co., ttd. ADR (fapan)

Cardinal Health, Inc.

4.17o Utilities

3.7 TelecommunicationServices

3.3

2.9

2.6

2.6

2.4

2.4

2.3
)1

t"lSECYie|disanannualizationoftheFund'stotaInetinvestmentincomepersharero'tt'.lo.ouypi@
rut rhe Fundb prieq:?nlrlp (P/E) ratio is.calculated using l2-month forward earnings Ldm;a.(d Foreign stock are U.S. dollar{enominaled.

I
I

k) Foreign stocls are U.S. dollar{enominaled.
(d)TheIund3pordolioholdingsaresubiecttochangewithoutnotice.T1rementionofspecifcsecuritiesisnotafecommendationorsolicitafionforanypersontobuy,ol

noro any Fanculilr secunty.

www.dodgeandcox.com

5ee other srde
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The Dodge & Cox Stock Fund had a total retum of 4.8% for the trird quar-
ter of 2W5, compard ta 5.7% for ttre Standard & Poor's 500 Index (S&p

500). For the nine monfis ended Septernber 30,20$, the Ffrnd had a
total retllm of,ll.3o/o, compared to 8.5% for the S&P 500. At quarter end,
the Ftrnd had net asses of $6t.0 billion wittr a cash position of 4.8%.

Third Quarter Performance Review
Vhile the Fund performed well on an absolute hasis in ttre third quarter, it
did lag the S&P 500 by 0.)o/o. KE detractors from trre tund's relalive
performance were in areas of the fund that rose strongly, iust not as much
as the corresponding S&P 500 secton. For example, the hrnd's Financial
holdings (up 5%) underperformed ttrose in the S&P 500 (up 8W.CapftlJ
One Hnancial (down 87") was the prlmary detractor in this sector. The
Fund's Health Care stocls performed well on an absolute basis (up 8%),
but laggd *rc return of the S&P 500's Healttr Care secbr (up l0%). Ttre
Ilrnd's invesfinens in Pfizer (up22o/o) and HCA (up 16%) offset declines
from its invesfin€nts in Sanofi-Arentis (down 9o/o) and GlaxoSmithl0ine
(down 4%).

The hrnd benefited from its investnents in ttre Information Technology
sector, whidl returned l0% (e.g., Hewlett-Packard up 15% and Motorola
rp 24%) compared to 8% for fiose in *re S&P 500. There were also a
number of individual stocks wfrich significantlycontributed to or detracted
from the lirnd's ttrird quarter results. Some of the fund's largest positions,
zuch as Comcast (rry l3Y') and McDonald's (up 16%) helped results,
uftile oftrer large positions, like Sony (down AZ), FedEx (down 7,/") arf,
Union Pacific (down 5%), hurt. Baker Hughes (down l7%) was ttre
Flmd's weakest absolute performer during the hird quarter.

As alwap, we focus our efforts on undentanding lhe op,portunities and
risk hcing each of the companies in the Ffmd over a three-b-five year
invesfinent horizon. When a company's stock price moves significantly we
revisit our outlook for ttre companfs long-term eamings proqpects, and
ask oursehes tlrc question, "Given wlnt we know today about the company
and is current stock valuation, do we want to oum it over the next
three-to-five years?" For ftis reason, we encourage shareholders to focus
on lhe long term and not concentate on short-term results.

Investment Strategy
As we have discussed in the past valuations have compresd across the
brcad equity marlat over the past few years, resulting in a different range
of invesfinent opporamfties to consider. By early 2000, wilh equity
valuations at all-time higlrs, investors had become unreasonably optimistic
and had bid up stock prices of certain companies to levels which implicitly

incorporated expectations for future growth ttmt even drc ablest of
management teams would be unable to safisfy. Ieading companies witr
excellent business ftanchises and good proqpects for long-t€rm growth

nmed out to be poor investmens because of excessive valuations.

As valuations have decreased and the rangg ofvaluations has narrowed
across the market since 2000, our invsunent t€am (30 pordolio nranag-
ers and analysB) has invested in a growing number of ttrese 'leading'
companies which no longer trade atluge premiums to the market. We

have been selectively increasing the Firnd's expo$re to drese companies,
many of rvhich are found in: l) areas of traditional growfi, such as

Information Technology (e.9., Hewlett-Packard and Dell), Media (e.g.,

Comcast and Time Warner) and Health Care (e.g., Pfizer and Sanofi-

Aventis), which collectively represent 4fr.9Yo of tre hrnd; 2) mqa-
capitalizltion stocls which repres€nt dominant business frarrctrises (e9.,
Citigroup, GE and Wal-Mart); and 3) multi-national businesses based in
the U.S. and abraadtnt, over time, should increasingly berrefit from the
orpansion of the global economy (e.g., Avon and Masushih).

For further review of the Fund's performance and long-term inyesfinert
stralegy, please visit wwwdodgeandcox.com and download the ftnd's
Third Quarter Rqort, wtrich will be available online in November.

October 2005

* Ihe Flrnd's total ret[ns include dre reinves0nent of dividend and capibl gain

distributions, but have not been adiusted for any income a:res payable by shareholders
on these distributions. The San&rd & Poor's 5fi) Index (S&P 500) is a widely
recognized, unmarnged index of common stock prices. Indo( rcnrns indude dividends
and/or interest income but, unlike tWd retums, do not reffect fees or spenses.

Past per{ormance does not guafimt€e frrnne results. Inveshent rcfirn
and share price wtll fluctuate with rmrket condidons, and investons may
have a gain or loso when shares m sold" Mutml fund performance
changes over tire and currendy nray be significantly lower fu stated
above. Perfonmnce is updated and published monthly. Visit the Fund's
web site af *ww.dodgeandcox.com or calt 800-621-3979 fw current
performance figures.

S'tanfurd & Pun's, Stanfurd & Pmr's 500, and SeP 500@ are trafunarhs of The

Mccrat)-Ilill Confunies, Inc.

You should careftlly consider the Funds investment obiectlves, mamgcment fees, risks and expenses bebre investing. To obtain a Fund's
prospectus vhich containe this and other important information visit www.dodgeandcox.com or cat S00-6Z1-1979. Pleas€ carefully read the
prospectus before investing.

09/05 sr rs

www.dodgeandcox.com

For periods ended September 30, 2006 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years 20 Years

Dodge & Cox Stock Fund

5&P 500 lndex

14.610/o 18.19o/o

10.79 12.28

14.A60/o

6.97

14.47o/o lA.ffio/o

8.59 ',t1.74
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Income Research & Management
(U.S. Bonds and TIPS)
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,nteresf Fates

Treasuries rallied to their
strongest quarter of absolute
performance in 4 years as rates
across the curve moved sharply
lower. With the entire yield
curve sitting well below Fed
Funds, forward rates are
currently pricing in two rate cuts
by the middle ot 2007.

ln R rch & ement
N Quarter 2006 Investment Grade Fixed lncome llpdate

Flefirms

S{DlcATt)R fttoroc It:lto5
s&P 500 1335.85 1248.29

oil $62.91 $61.04

Gold $598.30 $518.90

Euro $1.27 $1.18

Fed Funds Rate 5.25o/o 4.25o/o

2 Year 4.680/o 4.40o/o

10 Year 4.630/o 4.39o/o

30 Year 4.760/o 4.54o/o

Historical Treasury Yield Curves

- 

6/30t2006

- 

9/30/2006

TWO INTERNATIONAL PLACE, 23RD FLOOR, BOSTON, MA 02fiO"ft06
(617) 330-9333 o FAX (617) ss0-9222

www.incomeresearch.com

5.6

5.4

4.6

1.4

4.2

4.0

4.8

T
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corcorates 3m 2yrs s YF 'lo YG 30 vG

I Carry and modest spread tightening enabled corporates to post 41bp of excess return over Treasuries during the quarter, Longer maturity corporates posted greater excess returns (71bp) than intermediates (32bp)I The sector benefited from moderating yet still solid corporate piofits and optimism that the Fed pause would be stimulativeI Risks remain plentiful and include share buybacks, dividend increases and the ongoing possibility of LBOs

Itortsasea / ABS
I 1o-year swap rate fell 56bp during the quarter and interest rate volatility has risen slighily off multi-year lows
' Performance of the Lehman MBS Index has been 28bp in excess of Tieasuries for the quarter and 60bp for the year-todateI We continue to favor Hybrid ARMs for their superior convexity profile, CMBS for their total retum potential, and Studenl Loans fortheir historically low credit spread volatility

Convertibles
r Convertible returns were supported by strength in equities as the underlying equity prices of the ML Investment Grade Convertible

Index rose 3.58% which contributed to both higher returns and higher deltas, Portfolio returns were enhanced by an underweight to the energy-sector

rrPs
t TIPS produced strong absolute re-sults for the quarter, as longer TlpS yields fell 20-30bpr However, short TIPS yields rose 50-300bp as lower near term inflation accruals became readily apparentI f ntermediate TIPS breakevens fell 20-30bp to 2.3%, reflecting lower inflation expectations

Municioals
I Municipal yields fell sharply during the quarter as investorc anticipated the end of the Federal Reserve tightening cycler The yield curve remains u9ryJt"t with 2 to 10 yearM4 yield spread at 31 basis points

' Supply is down 15olo from 2005 levels as refinancing activity has been muted whiie demand remains robust
' Hedge funds and non-traditional buyerc have become more influential and have affected relative liquidity, credit quality spreads, and

market trends. The ultimate impact on the market, however, will not be felt until we see an increase in volatility
Sour@: Lehman Brclhes, Bl@mberg

|tDEX lo YTD

ML 1-3 YearTreasury 1.967o 3.O2o/o

Lehman Intermediate G/C 3.20o/o 3.42o/o

Lehman Aggregate 3.81o/o 3.06%

Lehman G/C 3.91% 2.71o/o

Lehman Long G/C 6.82o/o 1.65%

ML Investment Grade Convertible 2.24o/o 3.34Yo

Lehman TIPS 3.63% 1.80o/o

Lehman 1-10 Year Municipal 2.76Yo 2.99o/o
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Last Montr:

Last 3 Monhs:

Year To Date:

Last 12 Monfrs:

3 Yr Annualized:

Inception
Annualized.:

Inception
Cumulative*:

INDEX**

0.88

3.81

3.06

3.67

3.38

2.52

8.57

INCOME RESEARCH & MANAGEMENT

West Virginia University Foundation
INVESTMENT RESULTS

% CHANGE FOR

PERIODS ENDING: 09/30/00

\,1ruUF

0.91

3.66

3.39

4.U

4.19

326

11.22

*Account Inception: 06/1 0/03
*"f ndex was 60% ML 1-3 Tsy t 40o/o Leh Long G/C through
08/18/05 when the Index changed to the Lehman Agg.

Investment results shown are gross of fees.
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West Virginia University Foundation
Total IPS Portfolio

INVESTMENT RESULTS

% CHANGE FOR

PERIODS ENDING: 09/30/0G

I
I
I
t
t
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INCOME RESEARCH & MANAGEMENT

Last Month:

Last 3 Montrs:

Year To Date:

Last 12 Monhs:

Inception
Annualized*:

Inception
Cumulative*:

\AruUF

0.26

2.77

2.67

2.53

4.38

13.72

INDEX*

0.25

3.11

2.15

2.10

4.59

14.4

*Account Inception: 10/01/03**50% Leh IPS I 50% Leh Int lpS.
Index was Leh IPS through 6/30/04.
Investment results shown are gross of fees.
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Strategy Overview 7
Globat Fixed Income Investment-Grade

F
Brandywine-aLoBAL

Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC
2929 Arch Street,8th Floor / Philadetphia. PA 191O4
USA 8OO 348 24gg / 215 609 35OO ,/ Asia 65 6536 62'13

brandynrineglobal.com
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At a Glance
Primary Benchmark: Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (unhedged) or other international bond
benchmark, as specified by client direction.

Real yield is our primary measure of value. followed
closely by currency valuation. InflaUon, monetary
trends, political risks, the business cycle, and liquidity
measures are also considered.

Efficient duration management and country rotation
(driven primarily by currency considerations) add
incremental value.

Investments typically are concentrated in g-12 countries
deemed to have the best total return potential.

Typical lnvestment Guidelinesi

COUNTRY CURRENCY

Unitedstates 0-65% O-1OO%
UnitedKingdom O-4O% O-4O%
Japan 0-60% 0-60%
Germany O-4O% N,/A

Non-lndexcountries O-25% O-25%
Euro N/A O-7O%

'Lifiits lat ali1caron ranges lor set'ected cuuttt4es an{t cuffeniles arc
OASe{t An tnA&el values

PORTFOLIO MANA.GERS
David F. HottmaG CFA,/
Managing Director & Portfolio Manage{

David is Co-Manager
of our Fixed Incom€
and Balanced
Portfolios and a

member of the
firm's Executive
Committe€. Prior to
ioining Brandywine
Global in 1995, David

was President of Hoffman Capital, a
global financial futures investment firm
(1991-1995); Head of Fixed Income
Investments at Columbus Circl€
lnvestors (1983-1990); Senior Vice
President and Portfolio Manager at INA
Capital Management (1979-1982), and
Portfolio Manager at Provident Nationsl
Bank (1975-1979). David earned a 8.A'
in Art History from Williams College.

St€ph€n S. Smith /
Managirg Director & Portfolio Manager

Steve is Co-Manager
of our Fixed Income
and B€lanced
Portfolios and a

member of th6
firm's E)@cuuv€

Committee. Before
joining Brandywine
Global in 1991.

Steve was responsible for taxable
fixed income investments at two firms:
Mitchell Hutchins Asset Management,
lnc. (1988-1991) and Provident Capital
Management, Inc. (1984-1989). He
was a Founding Partner of Munsch and
Smith Management (1980-1984) and a
Portfolio Managor at First Pennsylvania
Bank 0976-1980). Steve eamed
a B.S. in Economics and Business
Administration from Xavier Universlty.

Objectives

We strive to preserve capital, generate principal growth, and earn interest income. Over a comptete market cycle of
3-5 years, we seek to outperform the benchmark, on an average annual basis, by at least two percentage points.

Universe

The sovereign debt and currencies of countries in the Citigroup World Government Bond Index, as well as the
rnvestment-grade corporate bond and mortgage-backed securities markets in those countries. We may also invest,
to a limited degree, in countries rated A or better by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Investment Process Summary

We apply a top-down, value-driven process when structuring Global Fixed Income portfolios. Real (inflation-
adjusted) yield is our primary measure of value. Currency valuation is next in importance, as the real yield must
be captured in the investor's local currency (dollars for U.S. investors and euros for many of those in Europe, for
example) we focus on appreciating, undervalued currencies and overvalued currencies that can be hedged. Inflation
trends, political risks, monetary trends, and business cycle and liquidity measures are also considered. We typically
concentrate investments in 8-12 countries that appear to offer the best total return potential.

Duration Management

we concentrate investments where value is greatest; as a result, our portfolios tend to have an intermediate- to
long-duration bias when real interest rates are high Greater interest rate exposure is assumed in countries with
more varue, and positions are established along the yield curve where we find the best risklreward profile. portfolio
duration generally ranges from I year to 10 years.

Country Rotation
we believe that concentrating investments in the markets with the highest potential returns-that is, taking above-
average country risk-actually reduces overall risk. Secular trends, political and monetary conditions, and business
cycle risks are considered in determining the likelihood that we can capture the value we see in real interest rates and
currencies. Each factor contributes to our country weighting decisions.

Currency

Currency and country decisions are intertwined. We seek to invest in bonds with high real yields that are
denominated in appreciating currencies. We hedge our currency exposure in countries with high real rates but
overvalued currencies.

lssue Selection

Within the desired country and currency, security selection is made on the basis of yield-curve analysis, desired
duration, and the wideness of credit spreads relative to government jssues.

I Philadelphia Chicago . San Francisco . Singapore
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Assets Under Management ($;<uv>
Brandywine Global, Firmwide: 34,g3g
Fixed Income Strategy Group: 16,696
Global Fixed Income Investment-Grade portfolios..: 8,593

Portfolio Commentary
our actions to increase the duration of your portforio in mid-May, actions that
seemed sound if unproven as of the end of June, turned out to be dead on target
by quarter's end. Our only possible regret was that it was not enough of a good
thing' Armost ail financiar assets, stocks or bonds, recorded positave returns for the
quarter, while commoditaes and energy, the darlings of the last few years, reversed
course and fell.

We believe that higher commodity prices wit| ultimately create more suppty of
commodities and bring down prices to levels where producers, margins are high,
but not off the scale. producers are slow to invest, if they are not confident of the
duration of higher prices. With prices having been high for quite a while, we feel

confident that should demand continue to increase, commodity suppliers will increase
production to meet that demand.

Our biggest portfolio position relative to the benchmarks was our lack of exposure
to the euro. Over the last 12 months, this underweight to the currency has hurt the
portfolio by about lOO basis points (bps). Our view is that the German VAT tax and
ECB tightening will lead to a slowdown that wiil halt ECB tightening and cause the
euro to retrench. We have been hedged into the yen with positions slighfly larger

than the index weight, based paruy on the ideas that the Japanese growth story
was on solid footing and that the Japanese yield curve would normalize. The y€n
was and still is extremely cheap by any measurable basis. However, it does not have
much yield, and this has caused many Japanese investors to export capital, in spite
of the country's economic recovery. In recognition of this, we recently cut back on
our yen positions, as a significant rally in the yen will first require a change in rate
expectations, which we don't see on the near-term horizon. When this rally occurs,
it could be from rising expectations for rates in Japan, or falling expectations for
other markets, such as Europe. We will not be more aggressive in yen-denominated
securities until we see more yield support.

Representative Portfolio Characteristics
BRANOYWINE

GLOBAL

_3y9t99:S!4i!y AAA AAr
Averase Mgturitygggli) ___.- - - 7s6- -- --- - -Tti'

Annualized Composite Returns pretiminary Data

CHARACTERISTICS CWG8t,

Modified Duration(Yeds) !.3O 
_- --5.& -

Average coupon (%) --I 4"6j
Average Yield (%)

-rislq_tolt?lgl1tylp -_ re
Number of lssues - 33 - - --- - --ZOa -- -

c

oo

Representative Region & Currency Weights

United Kingdom

EuropeEx-U.K.

Japan

Pacic BasinEx-Japan

North America

Emerging Markets

3 Year 6.84 6.25

PERIOO

Yeaf

I NET

Year Inception

': cwcBtr a LGABJ

4.O6
5 Year 12.25 6.90

*L Y_eaI _ _ 9.89 g.zs s.55 s.71

,.!,qY-e-gr"
9.92 6.32 63t--Since Inception' 10.53

Quality Allocation
OUAL'TY RATING WETGHT (%)

q6.1-__
1q

11.7

BB or Lowef

Duration Allocation
DUNATION RANGE WEIGHT (%)

O-l Year 24.6

3-7 Years

7-lO Years

199_
28.4

r Region I Currency

40

.CWGBII 4.4
lO+ Years

rSbf, illiwffi-g4i:t*a,:!::::.,Yg,i!i

lnceptionDate:7/1/1992|CWGB|".CttigroupWotldGovemmentBond.|ndexpnhedged)

?ityi!J:'i:ipi#'Ji#,ii!'s;'i:,isf{;s;:fs?::3,:{A'e!fr:,6z,iItiit;W;[rl#r;;l;ay,^i:i,,llsr:fyr#yfYi#i*:z#gn#:,:tiiyr:;f':::;r#;#sg:,,8x*li
herein shoutd not be oerceiv6d as lnvgqtnei{ieConinenditiitiiis.-n'snot}a no! tiiproftable'artha,the.investnenfdecjslonsweiriaieii'tnetiit|irewiine!j,i,iwE"^"i9p-|.iLi'fwetgn.a
varbasedonanvinVes|mentrestictionsapp!icabletotheaccoint.'Groispeiormancdreturnsinc|u{etran-saclroncos|sbu|aonilIreheitiiide
grossandnetpeiformancerektms'oue.ron6year,aieaiiniatiiidiiaass:iri;'1[;n;i;.6iniciiia'iiiiteiies,iiiii
o|oUn'qhestannua|manaoementfeekom.eachquarfer'sqrossraim,-ananeiiinlitiosli.ie,djriijj
!':*t,:!I?.2t1"!t^U:f^f4y_pg!!:ttonirist<saiitiiate{iin.
or our hiqhest annuat manaoement ree rron'eaiiquaier'i g,ff;,il;;;i#;ii;k;"ii;;;i;'i;;';Jiiji;i',?;i,ri;
ditect iniestmept. There ndy be addrtionit isks aiitiiate{iin ifiernatbnai iiie:siiieiii.--tiiii#6nat securtieilsks in.votving forgign econonic. pptqiggt#9n9tai.-a-ialoi tetiiiiitiiiors. tnternia,tioilii iiidi*iiiiiii,ii"i6t oe suitao*of.p.rodu.ct diiersifiiation. potentiithy,lnsLrtta,e.il capat resources and greater eipriiure io auiii dii'iid econon,c t
\!-U!91!,e-qr,ee 9r1,sk and'vokliliy kan inuestmenls in larger nidre elraolsned conpanr'es. Iie yiews exores.sed l.i

iiii,i'iiibiiiid"i6t,ei;;';';:,;ki;3;f;:;t:;;;il:ffi"fr{t{ii{4.fii,e;1ff.v,,#'#,t"Xtfli1i[*b*;8f1,27y3:;y:g:i,f:#fu,f,!{o'{;t#f:fl;:{*,
ofproductdiiersifiation.Dotentii}!lyLinsy!9191199i1it.atyesouicesaidgrggtgrqipriiureioauj!ieiii'ii.idoi6ii
higherdeareeofnskand.vo|a!ilitv|haninuestmen|sinlargermorees{abtisheadonilinii'i.ii,i;,'d;;;fres#.;#
o|guaQnteeoffutureresults.Pleasere|ertotheendofthispre.;;tati6;i6i;fi;ird;,iii'ptiiiieiiialiiini
inckde peiomance toofnofes and drsciosures Past penormdniiii no guaiaite| oii;{u;;6'i;;;f;,i;;;;e uur urrr LalttpilanI penorrnance

Philadelphla , Chicago . San Francisco , Singapore



Robeco-Sage International
(Hedge Fund of Funds)
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I Robeco'Sage Capital International, Ltd.

Performance
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2000

200'l

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

1.73

2.36

0.39

1.57

1.43

0.26

2.41

2.66

't.26

(0.51)

0.31

0.99

1.32

0.29

1.42

0.61

0.60

0.u
0.65

(0.14)

1.80

0.36

0.89

0.83

1.09

(0.45)

(1.171

1.59

0.20 2.11 0.56 1.69

0.26 0.63 (0.10) 1.09

0.71 (1.40) (1.36) O.2g

1.40 1.13 0.32 0.46
(0.45) 0.42 (0.72]| 0.06
0.90 1.41 1.76 0.79
(1.50) (0.38) 0.26 0.55

0.35 0.68 (0.49)

0.00 0.61 0.14

0.50 (o.44) 0.93

1.29 1.27 0.85

0.70 0.44 2.43

1.67 (1.15) 0.91

0.56

0.95 12.890

0.67 8.73o/o

0.90 1.40o/o

1.43 12.070/o

1.45 7.13%

1.77 8.59%

5.66%

Performance Summqry

7.260k

8.39%
7.22e/o

8.31o/o

Distribution of Monthly Returns (Number of Occunences)

@15.0i7o
0.39%
22.7lYo

8.10o

t
t
t
t
!
t
t
t
t
!

83% of Monthly Retums are positive

-2.99 to 2.00 -1 .99 to -1.00 -0.99 to 0.00 0.00 to 0.99 1.00 to 1 .99 2.00 to 2.99
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capital Preservationr Robeco-sage performance when s&p s00 Index is Down

(3.687o)

0.27o/o

3.95o/o

Risk to Reward Comparison

Annualized Return

Standard Deviation

Sharpe Ratio

Beta

-20h

8.31o/o

3.08%

1.71

6.51%

3.74o/o

0.93

0.04

0.20o/o

14.51o/o

(0.20)

0.07

3.09Yo

14.71o/o

0.00

0.10

Robeco-Sage's histoical pertormance demonsfrafes that it has achieved retums simitar to the long termequity rate with significanity tess risk.

Robeco Sage Gapital
1 International, Ltd.

I Lehman Aggregate

MSC| EAFE (USD)

S&P 500Index DRI

2o/o 4oA 60A 8o/o 1oo/o 12o/o 14o/o ,160/o

Risk (Annualized Standard Deviation)

Performance data is net of all fees, including the annual 1.5olo management fee payable.to sage capitral Managernent and the fees paid
H::"":1fl::*:tf"A?':""11:"ln:':;T11"1': Yqqsers are 9omo9!gate! on terms which may incrude nxed or perrormance-basedrees orallocations. Generally: fi*9 rees, irappticabE, range rro ' .is"7ii,i'i,iiliril'ri|jtiifiL:ff;;;:;;:$'i,:1ff:ffi:**
Partnership's investment, and performance tbbs or.allocations ,"ng" iror is yo to 2syoof the net capitat appreciation in thePartnership's investment of the year. A full description of fees is avlitaute in Sage's Form ADV part ll. The returns do not include thereinvestment of dividends because the underlying investments do not declare dividends.
This document is not an offer to sell or an offer to sell o-r an offer to purchase limited partnership described herein. such offer is madeonly by formal Private offering Memorandum. Past performance is not neclssarily indicative of future resulls. No assurance can bemade that profits will be achieved or that losses will not be incurred. v' 'qrurs re-u[D' r\u auitur"rreE (;.l

SAGE CAPITAL
909 Third Avenue, Newyork, Ny 10022 ter:212-90g-9660 fax 212-908-0168
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Commonfund Short Term Fund
(Cash)
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On the inflation front, the second con-
secutive large monthly decline in energy
costs trimmed the headline PPI and CPI
readings. Likewise, the year-over-year
gain in the core PPI and CPI readings
also decelerated in the latest month. while
the productiury data revealed that the
yeady rise in unit labor costs was reduced
sharply downward from more than a

five percent pace to less than a three
percent pace. The moderation in these
economic statistics fueled speculation in
the fixed income markets that FOMC
officials would ultimately ease monetary
policy next year. These events elicited a

moderate rally in Treasury prices into
month end as 2-year and S-year note
yields ended November at 4.61, percent
and 4.44 percent, each.

Annualized
Rates ofReturn

Gross Earned Rate
Expenses
Net Earned Rate
Average Yield on 3-Month
Treasury Bills
iMoneyNet Fund AveragerM
Net Credited Rate

5.60%
.20

5.40

5.07
4.73

5.23o/o

As€ets

AssetSize $13,759,030,793
(ADCB.)

Reserve Balance
as of 10/31/06 $142,859,692

Contribution $1.857.439

Toof

AreE!*
0.96%

11/30/{F
Balance $144,717 ,131 1.050/o

Yield (%)

5.20

5.t0

5.00

4,90

'1.80
4.70

4.60

4.50

4.40

r1.30

3 612 5
illonths Years

The Intermediate Term Fund out-
performed the Merrill Lynch 1-3
Year Treasury Index by 6 basis points,
retuming 0.57 percent. The Treasury
yield curve remained inverted, as

yields on the intermediate portion of
the curve shifted dovmward, vdth 2-
3-, and S-year yields declining 9, 11

and 12 basis points, fespectively. The
fund's overweight positions in ABS,
MBS and CMBS all enhanced retums.
However, the defensive duration
position of the portfolio negatively
impacted petformance as yields fell.
Securitized credit selection emphasis
remains concentrated on issues with
solid credit enhancements, while cor-
pofate credit selection focuses on
sectors with hard-asset protection
and sffong covenants.

lntermediate Term Fund

NetAsset Value 10.42

MonthlyYield 0.42o/o

Asset Size
as of 11/30/06 $1,154,664,700
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tlorcnterltreas u rl moe

The data released during November
continued to reveal signs of a strulc-

tural moderation in undedfng eco-
nomic activity highlighted by another
round of declines in the housing sta-
istics, a sharp downside reversal in

table goods orders, and weak
s-producing employment read-
Although real GDP growth in

20062Q2 was revised upward to +2.2
percent, from +1.6 percent both real
consumption spending and real resi-
dential oudays were rempered in this
latest revision. The maior sources of
the higher GDP print came from an
upward adjustrnent to inventory po-
sitions and a downward adjustment
to imports, which could both be in-
dicators of a further deceleration in

in late 2006/ earh 2007.

The Short Term Fund outperformed

f,lits benchmark, the 
^ve:llage 

3-month

=lT-biX 
yield, by 16 basis points credit-

ffling investors with an annualjzed 5.23

!-l percent rerurn for the month of No-
vember. Economic data released
during this period indicated slower
growth and inflation that was higher
than the Fed's target level. In the lat-
ter paft of the month of November,
the market began to price in the in-
creased likelihood of arate cut by the
Federal Reserve in the first half of
2007.

Despite intra-month volatility, the
short end of the Treasury feld curve
remained practically unchanged as 3-
and 6-month yields modesdy declined
by 5 and 2 basis points, ending the
month at 5.02 and 5.08 percent, re-
spectively. The fund's longer-than-
benchmark duration stance and
barbelled positioning aided relative
performance as yields decreased. The
large exposure to ABS, mortgages
and corporates benefited the fund as

spread sectors outperformed nomi-
nal Treasuries. By the end of the
month, the fund carried a yield-to-
maturity advantage of 32 basis points
relative to its benchmark.

'Aveage Daily &lecled BdaM
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*'Preliminary

Pa$pertormanceisnoguaranteeof futureresufts. Foracomplete discusslon of feesandexpenses of theshortTermFund,see"lnformationFor
Pafticipanb in The Common Fund For Short Tem tnvestments." Secuntrbs offered through Commonfund Secunties, lnc., a member of lfie NASD.

STF Net Credited Rate (Unannualized)
STF NetCredited Rate (Annualized)

&Month T-bill (avg yield)(Unannualized)
3-Month T-bill (avg yield)(Annuatized)
iMoneyNet Fund Averageil(Annualized)

0.42
5.07
4.73

1.26
5.04
4.75

Rates of retum for the Short Term Fund and iManeyNet Money Fund Averagew are net of investment'expenses.

TERM FUND*

Tsy/Agency 3o/o

A1+/P1 160/0

A1lP1 14o/o

MA 58o/o
AA 9o/o

Average Maturity. 3.3
(Monthly)

ITF ML1€Yr
Portfolio Treas. Index

Yield to Maturity 5.4% 4.7o/o
Average Maturity 2.1 Yrs. 1.8 yrs.
Effective Duration 1.5 Yrs. 1.7 Yrc.
Current Yield 5.2Yo 4.2o/o

Treasury 90

Agency 27o/o

AA 10o/o

A 120h

Other 3o/o

One Three
Month* Months'

One Three Five
Year Years Years

fntermediate Term Fund (Net Rate of Return**) O.S7o/o 1.52% 4.650/o

4.78

3.94

5.09o/o

5.23

4.34

3.27o/o 3.42o/a

3.'t0 3.56

2.36 2.83

Intermediate Term Fund 0.58 1.55
(Adjusted Gross Rate of Retum)

Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year Treasury lndex 0.S1 1.42

' Uremudized Rates of Retum
.*Nettotdl6teso|rtumrpo|tedonthEpagerflecttota|rtuma,rtdat||eesandexpeMseithetcha|gedtathefuNotpaiddircttybyMfb*.fherturactua|Iyame|'bya
the net total ntes of retum repotted on this page based on the sizd d its ec@unl.
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Past performance is no guarantee of fu-
ture results. Present and prospective in-
vestors are strongly encouraged to review
with care more detailed information about
Commonfund and its investrnent funds
provided in its publication "Information
for Members" and "Information for Par-
ticipansinThe Common Fund forShon
Term Investrnents." Copies of both docu-
ments are available upon request by your
Commonfund representative.

Commonfund prepares and presents its
performance results in accordance with
the Performance Presentation Standards
of the Association for Investrnent Man-
agement and Research. Retums disdosed
in Commonfirndt Annual Report are ved-
fied by independent accountants A copy
of their reporr is available upon request.

The Common Fund for Short Term In-
vestrnents ('the Short Term Fund') is a
bank common trustestablished and main-
ained by Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trustee
Bank. The Short Term Fund is a vehicle
tluough which educational institutions can
eam income on operating funds, reserve
account balances, and endowment cash.
Participation in *re Short Term Fund is
restricted to Members of Commonfund.

All return information in this presena-
tioo relating to the Shon Term Fund re-
flects renrns after deducting the follow-
ing fees and expenses: Commonfund's
representative fee; the fees paid to the
Short Term Fund's tustee, induding the
trustee's investrnent advisors. and to its
custodian; and orher amounts paid by the
trustee to third-pany vendors with respect
to dhect expenses ofthe Fund. In other
words, the returns of the Short Term
Fund are reported net ofall fees and ex-
penses. The Short Term Fund seeks to
mainain a unit value of one dollar (91),
but cannot guafantee it.

Comparisons between the Short Term
Fund and money market mutual funds
must take into consideration imponant dit-
ferences in pordolio composition, reserve
featureq and valuation methodology. With
respect to portfolio composition" money
market mutual fund portfolios are lim-

ited to an aver ge maturity of 90 days,
with the longest permitted maturity of any
single investrnent being 397 days (subject
to a limited exception). The average ma-
turity of the ShortTerm Fund's portfolio
can extend to one year, and the longest
permissible maturity or 

^verage 
life of a

security in the Short Term Fund ponfolio
is 5.5 years. The longer maturities per-
mitted in the Shon Term Fund increase
the potential of capital gain and capial
loss. Hourever, the Short Term Fund is
managed so that toal retums in any roll-
ing 12-month period will be in the range
of variability of total retums on three-
month Treasury securities over tle same
period and will not exceed variability of
total returns on one-year Treasuries. The
Shon Term Fund also has a unique re-
sefve account feature that is not shared
by money market murual funds. In high
total retum months, the ShortTerm Fund
uses a portion ofits gross eamings to fund
a reserve *rat is disbursed to increase dis-
tributions in lorv total retum months. Par-
ticipans withdrawing assets from the Shorr
Term Fund have no right to withdraw
monies from the Fund's reserve account
(except upon a dissolution of the Fund).
Finally, investrnents in and redemptions
from money market mutual funds are
transacted at net asset value. Money mar-
ket mutual funds conduct their investrnent
programs (and their ponfolio maturities
are regulated) with the goal of maintain-
ing a net asset value of $1.00 per share.
Deposits in and redemptions from the
Short Term Fund are not transacted at
net asset value; instead, interest income
and principal gain or loss during a month
are allocated to participant accounts only
at the end of each month, based on aver-
age balances during the month. Income
and fluctuations in principal value are not
taken into account in calculating partici-
pants' interests resulting from intra-month
investrnent or redemption transactions.

For a complete discussion of fees and
expenses of the Short Term Fund, see

"Information For Participants in The
Common Fund For Short Term Invest-
ments."

Secunties offered through Commonfund
Secuntrbs, lnc., a member of the NASD
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

JOE MANCHIN III
Governor

JANE L. CLINE
Insurance Commissioner
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December 18.2006

The Honorable Joseph M. Minard
West Virginia Senate
Bldg 1, Room 204W
Charleston, WV 25305

The Honorable Harry Keith White
West Virginia House of Delegates
Bldg 1 Room 276}14

Charleston, WV 25305

Aaron Allred
Legislative Services
Bldg t, Room E-132
Charleston, WV 25305

RE: Mental Health Parity Analysis Report for 2006

Dear Senator Minard, Delegate White & Mr. Allred:

Pursuant to West Virginia Code Section 33-16-3a, enclosed herein please find the above-
referenced report prepared by the Offrce's of the Insurance Commissioner for the State of
West Virginia for Calendar year 2005. Should you have any questions, please contact me
at your convenience.

cc: Joseph Altize\ Staff Counsel House Side - House Judiciary
Thomas W. Smith, Staff Counsel Senate Side - Senate Judiciary

Sincerely,

q"Ati.:
Jafie L.'Cline
Mmmissioner

I
I

"We are an Equal Opportunity Employert'

I'HL",$fi [L,'$li?"- 2s 3os -0540

Teiephone 304.558.040 I
Facsimile 304.558.1362

www.wvlnsurance.qov
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Office of the Insurance Commissioner
Of the State of West Virginia

Mental Health Parity Analysis Report
For December 31.2006

This report was prepared as required pursuant to West Virginia Code Section 33-16-
3a(a)(5). This section requires the commissioner to report on or before the thirty-first day
of December, two thousand five, and annually thereafter to the Legislature's joint
committee on govemment and finance and the committees on insurance of the respective
houses of the Legislature regarding the fiscal impact upon irrsurance cornpanies of
providing mental health benefits and which insurance companies' expense of providing
mental health benefits have exceeded the percentage limits established by this subsection.

The section was enacted during the 2A02 Regular Legislative Session and designed to
create parity between mental health and medical surgical-benefits. This report
summarizes the findings based on data provided by the thirty-one insurance companies
reporting their loss experience for the years 2001 through 20A5.

Mental Health Paritv Benefit Requiremenls and Cost Contpinment Measures

West Virginia Code Section 33-16-3a requires that each health benefit plan issued by an
insurer shall provide benefits to all individual subscribers and members and to all group
members for expenses arising from the treatment of serious rnental illnessl. This section
also ensures that any cost containment measures that are not applicable to medical-
surgical benefits are also not applicable to mental health benefits until demonstrated to be
actuarially necessary. The insurer may make determinations of medical necessity and
appropriateness, and may use health care quality and management tools, which may
include but are not limited to utilization review, use of provider networks,
implementation of cost containment measures, pre-authorization for certain treatments,
setting coverage leveis (including the number of visits in a given time period), using
capitated benefit arrangements, using fee for service arrangements, using third party
administrators and using patient cost sharing in the form of copayments, deductibles and
coinsurance. The expenses shall not include custodial care, residential care or schooling.

An insurer may apply additional cost containrnent measures, upon approval of the
commissioner, if the insurer submits actuarially certified information to the commissioner
demonstrating that its total anticipated costs for the first year of implementation for
treatment of mental illness for any plan will exceed two percent, or one percent for any

I 'oserious mental illness" means an illness included in the current American Psychiatric Association's
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, as periodically revised, under the diagnostic
categories or subclassifications of: (i) Schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders; (ii) bipolar disorders;
(iii) depressive disorders; (iv) substance-related disorders with the exception ofcaffeine-rllated disorders
and nicotine-related disorders; and (vi) anorexia and bulimia.
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group with twenty-five members or less, of the total costs for the plan. Each year
thereafter the insurer is required to submit actuarially certified information to the
commissioner demonstrating its total costs for treatment of mental illness will exceed or
have exceeded two percent, or one percent for any group with twenty-five members or
less, for the plan in the base period2.

For purposes of this section, a treatment for mental illness will be determined by
inclusion of the treatment in, the diagnostic response groups, diagnostic codes,
pharmaceutical classes or therapeutic classes related to mental illness as determined by
the current American Psychiatric Association's Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of
Mental Disorders, ps periodically revised. If a treatment is included in one or more
diagnostic related groups, diagnostic.codes, pharmaceutical and/or therapeutic classes, it
shall be included, in the insurer's calculations and actuarial assessment for total
anticipated costs. fhe total anticipated costs rnust be based on actual claims data, and
may not be based on an increase in insurance premiums.

:..

If an insurer anticipates that its total costs for treatment of mental illness for any plan will
exceed or have exceeded two percen! or one percent for any group with twenty-five
members or less, of the total costs for such plan in any base period, the calculation used
as part of an application to implement cost containment measures intended by the insurer
to maintain costs below the ,!wo percent or one percent of total costs threshold is
determined by dividing the totdl anticipated costs for mental health during the base period
by the total anticipated costs duri4g the base period for that plan.

Mental Health Paritv Reportine Results

The attached spreadsheets labeled "Exhibit A" contain the experience of thirty-one
insurance companies that offer, group health benefits in West Virginia and who are
required to provide o'mental health benefits". These companies provided reports
containing five yeBrs of data (2001 through 2005) for mental heatt[ claims benefits
verses the total claims for all benefits. This analysis report examines their ratio of mental
health benefits to ,all benefits (MH ratio) for each year prior to the implementation of
mental health parity legislation in 2003 and compares those calculations to the MH ratios
for each year after implementation.

As of the date of the filing of the instant analysis report, not all insurance companies
subject to the reporting requirements contained in West Virginia Code of State Rules,
Title 114, Series 64 and 66 had submitted their mental health parity expense reports. The
companies that did not report data for 2005 represent approximately A.2oh of the overall
claims for all benefits based on data reported for 2004. Therefore, the addition of their
data is not significant enough to impact the results of the findings in this report.

'Base period means the period used to calculate whether the insurer may claim the two percent or one
percent increased cost exemption. The base period must be twelve consecutive calendaimonths ending on
or about sixty days preceding the next filing of the application.
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Mental Health Paritv cost Analvsis of sigttificant Incr"use

Of the thirty-one companies reporting, there were oniy four companies that had any
significant increase in the MH ratio after implementation of the legislation
((1)Continental General Insurance Company; (2)Optimum Choice, Inc; (3)New york
Life Insurance Company; (a)MEGA Life insurance Company). Results of the MH ratios
for each of these companies is explained more fully below. The results were taken from
Exhibit A and by using a comparison of prior and post implementation.

1' Continental General Insurance Company - Prior to the legislation, the MH ratio
for this company was 1.57%o in 2001and 3.26% in200i for a2.40Yo average.
The MH ratio after the legislation increased to 8.68% in 2003; however, it felfto
2.69% in2004, and then increased to 3.93 in 2005 for an average of 5.06%o which
is approximately two times the level prior to the legislation. Although this
company was eligible for cost containrnent measures, it did not apply for any
such measures.

2. Optimum Choice, Inc. - Prior to the legislation, the MH ratio was 2.21%o in 2001
and 2.24Yo ]n 2002 for an overall ratio of 2.22%. The MH ratio after the
legislation was 5.14%o in 2003, 3.37% in2004, and.4.l4Ya in2005. This resulted
in an overall ratio of 4.25o/o which represents approximately a90o/o increase in
the cost of mental health benefits following legisiaiion.

3. New York Life Insurance Company - Prior to legislation, the MH ratio for this
company was I .54% in 2001 and 2.52Yo in 20A2 for an average of 2.39%. The
2003 MH ratio was 2.21;however, in 2004 the MH ratio increased significantly
to 10.640/o and then fell to 3.98 in 2005. This resulted in an average MH ratio of
5.40% which is approximately twice the level prior to the implemintation of the
legislation.

4. MEGA Life Insurance Company - Prior to the legislation the MH ratio for this
company was 3.41o/o in 2001 and 5.08% in 2002 for an average of 4.37%. The
2003 MH ratio was 4.66Yo; however, the data indicated a significant increase to
12'31% in 2004 but fell to 6.1lYo in 2005 for an average MH ratio of 8.03%.
This represents approximately an 80o/o increase in the cost of mental health
benefits since the implementation of the legislation

Although these four companies have experienced significant increases in the cost of
mental health benefits since the implementation of the legislation, none have applied for
cost containment measures.

Report Results 0verview

Prior to implementation of the legislation, nine companies ) reported mental health
benefits in excess of two percent of the total for 2001 ((l)Opii*,r- Choice, Inc.;
(2)MAMSI Life and Health Insurance Company; (3)The Health Pian of the Upper Ohio
Valley; (4)Pacific Life & Annuity Company; (S)United Healthcare Insurance bb*puny;
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(6) MEGA Life Insurance Company; (7)Connecticut General Life Insurance Company;
(8) Carelink Health Plans Inc. (9)Coventry Health and Life Insurance Company).

ln2002eieven companies reported mental health benefits in excess of 2o/o((1)Optimum
Choice, Inc.; (2)MAMSI Life and Health Insurance Company; (3)The Health Plan of the
Upper Ohio Valley; (4)Pacific Life & Annuity Company; (S)United Healthcare Insurance
Company; (6) MEGA Life Insurance. Company; (7)Continental General Insurance
Company; (8)New York Life Insurance Company; (9)Connecticut General Life Insurance
Company; (I0)Carelink Health Plans Inc. (ll)Coventry Health and Life Insurance
Company).

After implementation of the legislation fourteen insurance companies reported mental
health benefits in excess of two percent of the total for 2003 (l)Optimum Choice, Inc.;
(2)MAMSI Life and Health Insurance Company; (3)The Health Plan of the Upper Ohio
Valley; (4)Pacific Life & Aruruity Company; (5)United Healthcare Insurance Company;
(6) MEGA Life Insurance Company; (7)Continental General Insurance Company;
(8)New York Life Insurance Company; (9)American Heritage Life insurance Company;
(l0)Guardian Life Insurance Cornpany; (1l)Nationwide Insurance Company;
(l2)Connecticut General Life Insurance Company; (l3)Carelink Health Plans Inc.
(14)Coventry Health and Life Insurance Company).

For 2004 twelve insurance companies reported mental health benefits in excess of two
percent ((l)Optimum Choice, Inc:;. (2)MAMSI Life and Health Insurance Compahy;
(3)The Health Plan of the Upper Ohio Valley; (4)Pacific Life & Annuity Company;
(S)MEGA Life Insurance Company; (6)Continental General Insurance Company; (7)New
York Life Insurance Company; (8)Union Labor Life insurance Company; (9)Aetna Life
insurance Company; (l0)Connecticut General Life Insurance Company; (ll)Carelink
Health Plans Inc. (l2)Coventry Health and Life Insurance Company).

Lastly, in 2005 ten insurance companies reported mental health benefits in excess of trvo
percent ((1)Connecticut General Insurance Company; (2)Continental General Insurance
Company; (3)Golden Rule Insurance Company; (4)New York Life Insurance Company;
(5)Markel Insurance Company; (6)Health Plan of the Upper Ohio Valtey; (7) Pacific Life
& Annuity Company; (8) MEGA Life Insurance Company; (9)Carelink Health Plans Inc.
(l0)Coventry Health and Life Insurance Company).

Mental Health Paritv Cost Containment Measures Applied For

The Health Plan of the Upper Ohio Valley was the only company to apply for cost
containment measures in 2004 and it has also filed for cost containment measures for the
year 2005. According to the data provided to this agency, this company's mental health
benefits were in excess of two percent prior to the implementation of mental health parity
legislation. In 2001 its MH ratio was 4.24% and in 20A2 itwas 3.760/o for an average of
4.00% prior to legislation. In 2003 the MH ratio was 3.74yo,in2004 it was 3.12% and in
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2005, it was 2.93% for an average of 3.24%. As you will note all the years reported are
in excess of the minimum requirements for cost containment. The measures it applied for
were the continuation of mental health benefits at the same level they were prior to the
legislation.

Conclusion

Although several carriers experienced MH ratios in excess of the threshold levels that
triggered eligibility to apply for cost containment, the majority already had mental health
ratios in excess of the limits prior to the legislation. When comparing the overall average
MH ratio of 2.98% prior to mental health parity to the average MH ratio subsequent to
implementation of 2.290 , it appears that the cost of. mental health benefits actually
decreased. However, the majority of this decrease can be attributed to United Healthcare.
Since the data for United Healthcare indicated a significantly higher cost for mental
health benefits prior to the legislation than the amount indicated for the other carriers, a
comparison of the overall data without United Healthcare was made. This comparison
produced an overall MH ratio of 2.32Yo prior to implementation and 2.3lYo after
implementation. In addition, the carriers that reported significant increases in the cost of
mental health benefits represent less than five percent of the total business subject to the
Mental Health legislation. This leads us to believe that based on the data provided there
was no significant increase in the level of MH ratios for the first three years subsequent to
the mental health parily legislation.
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